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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MEHEE

Q@

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=1+—HLFE

2020 2019 Change
—E2ITHF “Z2—nEF E=E3)
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 (%)
AR®TT AR®EFIT (%)
Revenue & 12,451,999 8,602,321 44.8%
Gross profit £ 2,812,657 2,954,114 (4.8%)
Profit before income tax FRFTISTR AT AT 2,126,311 2,640,985 (19.5%)
Profit for the year FR @A 1,442,811 1,551,660 (7.0%)
Profit attributable to owners KABFTEEES @ 1,295,966 1,034,931 25.2%
of the Company
Total assets HMEE 85,974,178 62,609,340 37.3%
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 9,649,423 11,094,295 (13.0%)
Total bank and other borrowings RIT R EMERARLE 20,111,354 16,782,693 19.8%
Earnings per share for profit KNABIFFBE RS
attributable to owners Fimilz SiRET]
of the Company of the year
- Basic and diluted (expressed in —EARR#EE (Uek 36.49 29.14 25.2%

RMB cents per share)

ARBDERT)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARAEH

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Redco Building

Tower 5, Qiaochengfang Phase |
No0.4080 Qiaoxiang Road

Nan Shan District, Shenzhen
People’ s Republic of China

PRINCIPLE PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2001-2, Enterprise Square 3
39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay
Kowloon, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
P.0. Box 1350

Grand Cayman, KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’ s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Minsheng Bank

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
The Bank of East Asia Limited
Hang Seng Bank

Namyang Commercial Bank

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir@redco.cn
Fax: (852) 2758 8392

STOCK CODE
1622

WEBSITE
www.redco.cn
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2020 ANNUAL REPORT — KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR
2020 FEHRS —FEKXEFL

JAN

Redco Group was awarded the “2019 Listed Company Social
Responsibility Award” and the “Sunshine Redco - Community Health
Care Project’, an innovative public welfare project established by
Redco Charity Organisation, was awarded the “Public Welfare Project
of the Year 2019”.

Redco Group was awarded “Outstanding Contribution Award” by
University Education Foundation of Chinese Academy of Sciences.

Redco Group successfully acquired high-quality land parcel in Ningbo
and Quanzhou.

FEB

Redco’s online one-stop home purchase platform is officially
launched, facilitating clients by its readily accessibility and three
trustworthy guarantees of Redco UG.

Redco Group successfully acquired premium residential land parcels
in the major area of Zhanjiang, advancing its strategic deployment in
western Guangdong.

MAR

Redco Group was awarded the “2020 China Real Estate Excellence
100 (20207 B B #h & = #100%)” and “Billboard for Real Estate
Developers with Excellent Brand Value in China 2020 (2020 fhE FEithE
MR EEEHE).

Redco Group released the first “Wellness Building Epidemic
Prevention Design Standard” among the domestic real estate
industry.

Redco Group acquired 150 mu high-quality land parcel in Yantai
Gaoxin District.

APR

Redco Group successfully acquired 200 mu high-quality land parcel
in Yantai and continued to increase its investment in the high-value
and high-growth areas around at Bohai Rim to strengthen the solid
foundation for development.

MAY

Redco Group was awarded “Top 100 China Listed Real Estate
Enterprises 2020” by China Real Estate Association.
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2020 ANNUAL REPORT — KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR
2020 FEHRSE —FEEKREL

JUN

In June, Redco Group acquired high-quality land parcels in
Nanchang, Yantai, Ningbo, Hefei and Jiangmen to enrich its land
reserve and lay the foundation for sustainable development.

Redco Group ranked 23rd in the 2020 Top 50 Real Estate Listed
Companies. It also ranked top 10 of the industry in terms of
solvency, operational efficiency and organic growth potential.

Redco Group s UG Property and Totalbuild Investments Group (F&l
%[ ) entered into a strategic partnership.

JUL

Redco Group's UG Property and Gold Medal City (& E) entered
into a strategic partnership.

Redco Group was awarded the “Real Estate Enterprise with
Excellent Products in China 2020 (2020 FEEMEE R HESLE).

Redco Group acquired a premium land parcel in Changzhou,
facilitating its further development in Yangtze River Delta.

AUG

Leisure’ s Mansion in Hongyang, Jinan won the “Best Pre-sale Project
of the Year(FEREFBEEHLLL) in the 15th Kinpan Award (£852).

Redco Group was awarded the “China Innovative Real Estate
Enterprise of the Year 2020 (20207 & & E &l #f /1 #h & & #)
and President Huang Ruoqing was awarded the “2020 China
Influential Figure in Real Estate Industry of the Year (2020 R
FEFENMEAY) for its excellent products and continuous
innovation.

Redco Group was awarded the “Best Governance Award of China Real
Estate Enterprise 2020 (2020 FEI B RERIEE) .

Redco Group acquired premium land parcels in Changsha and
Zhangjiagang.

The Groundbreaking Ceremony of the AVENIR Project in Philippines
of Redco Group was successfully held.

SEP

Redco Group joined hands with Shenzhen University to set up
a Wellness Architecture Research Center({EBEREHEMHZHL). The
Group established the “Redco Architecture Science” research fund
with a donation of RMB3 million in the first phase.
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2020 ANNUAL REPORT — KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR

Redco Group s UG Property was awarded “Valuable Property Service
Enterprise of the Year (FEBEYMERZETZE).

Redco Group s UG Property was ranked 45th in the “2020 China
Property Services Brand Value Billboard (2020 R E¥) ¥R mhREERE

[=1=} )”

oCT

Mount Yuelan in Quanzhou won the “Best Pre-sale Project of the
Year (EERETEEIZEIE) in the 15th Kinpan Award.

Redco Riverside International Project of UG Property of Redco Group
joined the Golden Key International Alliance (& i8R EIFREHER ).

NOV

Redco Group was awarded “Top Business Capability (4&E&8E/1E
¥) of listed real estate companies in 2020.

Redco Group acquired 510 mu of premium residential land parcels in
Zhanjiang.

Redco Group won four awards in the 15th Kinpan Awards.

DEC

The first Wellness Architecture Forum was successfully held,
where the new products of Redco New Oriental Wellness
Architecture products version 2.0 were released.

Redco Group was awarded the “Top 10 Green and Healthy
Demonstration Enterprises (+E4BERTEEZE) by the Tribute to
Activists League 2020 (E2#12020 « TTE1E ).

5 Redco Group’s projects won the 2020 International Kinpan
Week Project Awards (2020 EIR &8 FEE K1), while its number
of awards ranked 29th among developers.

Redco Group s UG Property was awarded the “Real Estate Enterprise
with Excellent Products in China 2020 - Healthy Living Service” award
020 BEEMEEMNEFhx—REEERFBRE).

Redco Group s Riviera One in Taizhou won the Silver Award of the
“5th REARD Global Real Estate Design Award (REARD &I EzFH K
57

Redco Group and Redco Charity Foundation jointly launched the
“Power to the World” series of charity projects to help students in
Biaokouzhen, Ninghe district, Tianjin.
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
EERMEIRH

RIVERA MANSION, NANCHANG

Located in Nanchang, Jiangxi, this is a high-end project jointly
developed by Redco and the SASAC, as well as our first New Oriental
Wellness Architecture in Nanchang. The project situates at the
downtown at the north bank of Gan Jiang in Qingshan Lake District,
a premium area with scenery of the river, benefits from government
policies and easy access. Xin Jiang Fang (#71#5) 1953, the biggest
cultural and business district of Nanchang with an area of 383 mu,
is part of the project. Surrounded by a highway alongside the river
connecting 6 bridges and metro line 4 in 500 meters, the project is
located at the important junction of Nanchang and is easily accessed
from any part of the city.

BMEane - BIF

ZEEA/NBHEBEEN IAMEHARHE
WheskEm’ RRNENSERER
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERE

RIVIERA ONE, TAIZHOU HMHE - RIEREE

With an area of approximately 223,000 sq. m. and a total gross ZBEEMUMNIHRINTZEIMA > MR
floor area of 650,000 sq. m., the project is located at the west of the ZMNBRERE FHIEZ—BC = 1Z
Jiangyan City, Taizhou, Jiangsu, the core area of “Hailing-Jiangyan DRI o A 2238 i’ ARIEMEESE
integration” in the future urban planning of Taizhou. Based on the m o BESIAT DB R @ NOWAJH#E
“Redco New Oriental Wellness” (NOWA) concept, the project ranked TR0 FERFZEHEDREHE
the 15t in terms of sales area, prices and numbers in units in Jiangyan =1 F > 1020214 3 A N0 #E32#404
in 2020, and the most popular buildings no. 32 and no. 40 were  #RIBEX c IBEHMN2020F 11 L EFHE
launched in March 2021. The project was awarded the silver prize in REARD 2= I3 2 5% 51 K BEERAT o

the 5" REARD Global Design Award in November 2020.

NEHEEBEARAT - 2020FERE | 9
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERR

CENTER MANSION, FOSHAN

The project is located at the Gaoming District of Foshan, a city bound
to be the hinterland of the internationally renowned Greater Bay
Area. The site of this project situates right at the Xijiang New City area
which has huge development potential, the well-developed Hecheng
Subdistrict is just nearby and provides all amenities of city life. The
project is positioned as a hi-tech residence with Oriental flavor, its
Chinese style facade blending modern lifestyle with the essence of
traditional architecture. Through its Asian-themed landscape garden,
Center Mansion embodies the concept of creating a residence
of “fragrance, comfort, intelligence and style” and it is highly
compatible with the surrounding traditional Chinese architecture
in the community. This project is a breakthrough of regional
homogenization pattern, its emphasis on resident s comfort stands
out in the neighborhood.

#BLNE - BRE
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MOUNT YUELAN, QUANZHOU

In appreciation of the precious natural scenery, Redco Group and
Fujian Dagang Properties (B ABEZE) meticulously constructed
Mount Yuelan, the 500,000 sq. m. cultural and leisure project. Based
on the concept of pursuing beauty in community, we introduced
ideas of nature and culture, mediation and LOHAS to build an
environmental friendly and healthy living space. The project was
awarded the Best Pre-sale Project of the Year in the 15" Kinpan Award
(£885) of 2020. In November 2020, online sales of Mount Yuelan
was well-received by customers, achieving a sales amount of RMB300
million in just the first half hour.
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FEEMERR
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERR

LEISURE S MANSION, QUANZHOU

Standing on the side of the Citong Bridge in Quanzhou, the project
occupies a section of the core area of south riverside business district,
only a bridge away from Quanzhou and the colorful downtown city
life. The adjacent Fengchi Road and airport connecting highways
provide easy access to every corner of the city.

With a planned plot construction area of about 120,434 m?, the
project is surrounded by bustling malls of Puxi Wanda, Jinjiang
Wanda and Baijie Shangyue City, as well as four major parks and
high-end hotels. Leisure s Mansion demonstrates the quality standard
of Redco Group, aiming at being the benchmark of luxury residence

in Quanzhou.

RNNE - BRF
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PEACH CREEK VILLA, CIXI

The project locates at Cixi, Zhejiang and comprises of 7 mansions and
3 micro high-rise apartments. The project has a plot ratio of 1.8 and
construction area of approximately 99-127 m?. Integrated with new
oriental architectural aesthetics and exquisite and elegant lifestyle,
the project further demonstrates traditional Chinese style and touch,
and implements the spirit of oriental gardening into daily life.

The project is featured with good matching facilities and rich
resources. The commercial facilities surrounded the project are well-
established, with Intime City and Poly MALL nearby, and only 2km
from RT-Mart. With self-owned commercial area of approximately
4,600 m?, residents enjoy the advantage of having bustling city life
just at the doorway.
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERE
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERR

FUTURE LIGHT, YUYAO

Located at the intersection of Xiaolang Expressway and Tonghuan
Road, Yuyao City, Zhejiang Province, the project is only about 2km
away from the entrance of Yuci Expressway and next to the scheduled
Phase 2 of Yuyao Intercity Railway. The project is planned to connect
to the Huanxi Road Tunnel and link to commercial centers such as
Chong an Time Square and Wanda in the future.

The total area of Future Light is approximately 240,000 m?, plot
ratio is approximately 2.2 and the total GFA of the residential area
is approximately 75-125m?. There are various functional areas in the
community including running tracks, theater, activity space for all
ages, recreational space for neighbor, for the purpose of all owners at
all ages to enjoy themselves.

Rk NS - IBIRERE
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BRAZPERR * ERBERREBEALN2AE
AR R B R B BRPK I R B —HAER 0 AR
BIBIRABKIE » KRR ERRZFHRE
5 BEE®HEDD

BREEEBEN2U4EM BXYH
22’ TENEREBERAT5-125m © /)
& AERE T RERE - PORIE - 28E
BEH  MERBEHESESZER &
BEFHRNETHEEFTBNBCHNE
T o

14

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



SPRING VILLA, JINAN

Spring Villa is located on the north bank of the Yellow River, closely
approximated to Jinan, the capital of Shandong Province. The project
has a unique natural resource of double hot spring in the premise,
while its buildings adopted a new Asian architectural style which
made symmetrical use of traditional artistic conception and modern
design, resulted in an ingeniously built mansion. Great efforts were
made to give Spring Villa comprehensive community service. The
service of Yearning Health Living Room and UG Property Management
are also brought in to provide health and community service for all
ages.
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERE
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERR

HANGAO ACADAMY MANSION, CHANGSHA

Jointly established by Dahan Group, Redco Group and Guozi Group,
the project has a total GFA of approximately 250,000 m? and consists
of duplex units, high-rise buildings and apartments. The project has
its own kindergarten and wet market, and is planned to introduce
4-star hotels. Enjoying the advantages of accessibility, proximity to
quality education and commerce, a new criterion of high-quality
residence is going to be set.
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ROYAL TERRACE, XIANGTAN

Jointly established by Redco Group and Niban Group, the land
parcel of the project is located at north of Hetong Avenue, east of
Shuangyong Central Avenue, south of Fuxing Road, and west of
Dishui Lake Park, Yuetang District, Xiangtan City, Hunan Province.
The total area of the project is approximately 187 mu and total GFA is
approximately 420,000 m?2. As the key investment attraction project in
Xiangtan City, the project will involve the development of the 5-star
Sofitel Hotel and high-end residence.
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERE
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERR

SUNSHINE COAST, TIANJIN

Sunshine Coast is located at Sino-Singapore Tianjin Ecocity on the
eastern coast of Tianjin. With a fantastic sea view and good ancillary
facilities, it is being developed into an ideal residence completed
with education institutes, medical service and leisure amenities.
The phased construction has been going on for ten years, offering
villas, mansions and high-rise apartments. The villas are built with
harmonious designs and attention to details, abiding by the quality
concept of “quality architecture lays the foundation of quality life’.
The project is committed to celebrating the beauty of life with nice
and diverse surroundings.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

President / #2#

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

I am pleased to present the business review and prospect of the year
ended 31 December 2020 of Redco Properties Group Limited (the
“Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).

RESULTS

In 2020, the Group recorded property contract sales amount of
RMB40,975.0 million and property contract gross floor area of 4.7562
million sg. m., representing a year-on-year growth of 49.5% and
83.8%, respectively. Our revenue and profit attributable to owners
of the Company was RMB12,452.0 million and RMB1,296.0 million,
respectively, up 44.8% and 25.2% compared with last year. Basic
earnings per share was RMB36.49 cents, an increase of 25.2% over
the corresponding period last year. The Board of Directors proposed
a final dividend of RMB5 cents per share. The Group has adopted
prudent financial strategies to maintain a reasonable capital
structure and gearing ratio. During the reporting period, the Group
had total cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash of RMB13.8
billion, reflected our sufficient liquidity, and our net gearing ratio was
48.7%. The selling and management expenses were well controlled
and the key financial indicators were healthy and safe.
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2020 REVIEW

Under the efficient long-term mechanism and the atmosphere
of maintaining stability in China’ s real estate market, the Group
was up to date with the market trend and achieving good results
from our strategies. In 2020, the Group achieved a stable growth in
operating results and increased profitability leveraging on its efficient
operations, prudent financial strategies and the proactive strategic
investment layout amid the COVID-19 pandemic.

In 2020, the Group acquired 36 new pieces of land under our
proactive expansion strategy and sound investment strategy. In
recent years, the Group has insisted on the “1+3+N” global strategic
layout, with the Yangtze River Delta city cluster as the “lst” core
region to be strengthened; the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, the Yangtze River Midstream City Cluster and the Bohai
Economic Rim as the “3” major sub-regions to be expanded; and
the “N” popular city clusters such as the Western Taiwan Straits City
Cluster and overseas markets. As of 31 December 2020, the Group's
total land bank amounted to approximately 23.4 million sq.m.,
providing continuous impetus to the Group’ s quality development.

With its good corporate governance and prudent financial
management, the Group successfully issued four of US dollar-
denominated bonds in 2020, totaling US$936 million. At the
same time, the Group has actively exploring diversified financing
methods, optimizing its debt structure and achieved a stable level
of assets and liabilities, which have been frequently recognized by
international and domestic rating agencies. In January 2021, Lianhe
Global assigned “BB-" to the Group and in March, Fitch upgraded
the rating to “B+’. Both rating agencies are bullish on the long-term
development of the Group and recognized its remarkable growth on
scale while maintaining a healthy financial leverage and a sufficient
land bank to support the further growth of the contracted sales. S&P
maintains the rating at “B”. Three rating agencies have given the
Group the outlook “Stable”.
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The Group upheld its idea of “striving for a beautiful life”,
maintained its strategies, focused on its quality of products and
services and explored new business opportunities. As the pioneer
in wellness architecture, the Group returns to the underlying
logic of healthy living relationship, re-examining “people and
wellness’, “construction and wellness’, and “wellness and service”
relationships. We have upgraded the New Oriental Wellness
Architecture (NOWA) products from version 1.0 to 2.0. We iterate on
wellness architecture according to four dimensions, namely, “One
single standard of epidemic prevention”, “Two housekeepers”,
“Three-dimensional healthy living” and “Four healthy living scenes’,
marking a brand new page in the development history of Redco's
wellness architecture product system.

At the same time, based on its operations and development idea of
“full coverage throughout the entire lifecycle”, the Group maintained
its“Two-Wheel” development strategy in property and diversified
business sectors, in order to extend the and achieve a closed loop
along the value chain of the industry. The Group s diversified
industries investment group has developed and incubated diversified
businesses, such as healthcare, commerce, technology, property,
cultural tourism and education from the perspective of the whole life
cycle. In 2020, the Group’ s revenue from non-properties development
businesses was RMB221.4 million.

2021 OUTLOOK

The year of 2021 marks the 29th anniversary of Redco Group. Having
come a long way, the Group has weathered the up and down and
made great achievements from a modest beginning and honed its
brilliance with perseverance in the past 29 years. In 2021, the Group
will launch a new three-year strategic plan, insist on the two driving
forces of real estate and diversified businesses and the “1+3+N”
strategy of development.

In 2021, taking into account the current situation and our own
development needs, the Group will continue to consolidate its five
business strategies of investment, financing, operation, products
and diversification, and enhance its comprehensive strengths in
five core competencies of investment and financing, cash flow
turnover, marketing, products and branding. At the same time, we
will strategically focus on the Yangtze River Delta region, which
is the strongest metropolitan area in China, to keep up with the
development of the times, achieve a balance between “maintaining
current status” and “striving for change”, and sustain quality growth.
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In order to achieve the three-year strategic goal, the Group will
insist on high-quality development, always focus on the quality and
efficiency of business operations, retain talents, promote innovation
and efficiency. We will also continue to invest in the research and
development of wellness architecture and its implementation based
on our principle of “hard technology + soft services’, in order to set
an industry benchmark, and build up the core competitiveness of our
products and entry barrier to protect our enterprise development.

Based on our New Oriental Wellness Architecture products, the
Group’ s diversified industries investment group will focus on the
development in property and healthcare sectors, and on building
its core strengths and core capabilities in the fields of digitalization,
technology research, business and cultural tourism and education, in
order to lead the new trend in the industry and create a new height
of strategic development with one industry as the mainstay and
diversified business as vertical development.

The future is calling and it is the right moment to start the journey.
In 2021, the real estate industry will enter the era of long-distance
competition. The Group has the mentality and strength of a long-
distance runner and is confident to run to a better future. Along
the new journey towards a more ambitious strategic goal, the
Group will steadfastly gather the wisdom and strength of all Redco
people, continue to strive for the best without forgetting the original
intention, strengthen the solid foundation, empower the progress,
and jointly build the Company as the wellness architecture leader
and the most valuable comprehensive real estate holding group in
China.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our development is inseparable from the trust and support of
all shareholders, investors, partners, properties owners and the
community. | would like to express my gratitude and respect for the
contributions of the members of the Board, the management of the
Company and all staff members of Redco. Boundless is the ocean
where we sail with the wind. In the future, the Company will continue
to strive for development and creating maximum value in return for
your support.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company currently consists of six Directors, comprising three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The powers and duties of our Board include determining our business
and investment plans, preparing our annual financial budgets and
final reports, formulating proposals for profit distributions as well
as exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred by
our Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”) and Articles
of Association of the Company (the “Articles of Association’). The
biographical details of the Directors are as follows:-

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Yeuk Hung (&%) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 57, has been
an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board since 9 March
2017. He was the founder of the Group in 1992. He was responsible
for strategic planning and overall management of the group’s
business from 1992 to 2014. He currently serves as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He currently serves as a member
of the committee of the Thirteenth National People' s Congress of
the Chinese People’ s Political Consultative Conference, as a Vice
Chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations, and
as a Vice Chairman of the China Association of Poverty Alleviation
& Development. He is a founder and donor of Redco Charity
Organisation. Mr. Wong is currently pursuing a Master degree of
Business Administration in the University of Science and Technology
of China.

Mr. Wong is the elder brother of Mr. Huang Ruoging and he is not
related to any of the other directors or senior management of the
Company. By virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”), Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in 1,387,258,000 shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) held by Global Universe International
Holdings Limited (“Global Universe’)as at 31 December 2020. For
further details, please refer to the section headed “Directors and
chief executive s interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures” in the directors report.
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Mr. HUANG Ruoqing (E&E&ES%E) (“Mr. Huang’), aged 52, is our
executive Director and the president. Mr. Huang has been a Director
since 14 July 2008 and was re-designated as our executive Director
on 14 January 2014. Mr. Huang is the authorised representative of
the Company and the chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”’) and a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”). Mr. Huang is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group, supervising the land
acquisitions and overseeing project planning and execution of the
Group. Mr. Huang is currently a director of Times International
Development Company Limited (“Times International’) and many
of our subsidiaries. Mr. Huang received a bachelor s degree in
architecture from Huagiao University (ZEfBAZ) in the PRC in July
1990. From August 1990 until he joined us in May 1994, Mr. Huang
worked as an architecture designer, assistant architect and project
manager successively in Quanzhou Construction Design Institute (&
MR EPT). Mr. Huang has over 30 years of experience in the
real estate industry in the PRC, and he has received various awards,
making him a new leader in the real estate industry in the PRC. Mr.
Huang was appointed as a visiting professor at Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics (JIFERAAEAEE) in December 2015 and a
visiting professor at Shenzhen University in September 2020.

Mr. Huang, who is honoured as one of the “2019 Top 10 CEO of
China’s Listed Real Estate Enterprises’ (2019 EhEEME EH AT+
K& CEO) in 2019, is the younger brother of Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung
and he is not related to any of the director or senior management of
the Company. By virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”), Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in 947,018,000 shares
of the Company (the “Shares’) held by Times International as at 31
December 2020. For further details, please refer to the section headed
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures” in the directors’ report.
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Mr. TANG Chengyong (E&B¥4%) (“Mr. Tang’), aged 57, is an
executive Director and our executive vice president. Mr. Tang has
been a Director since 18 October 2013 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 14 January 2014. He is a president of Diversified
Holding Group of the Group, mainly responsible for the daily
management business of the Diversified Holding Group. Mr. Tang
has over 25 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.
Mr. Tang joined the Group as the general manager of Yantai Redco
Development Co., Ltd. in August 2001, where he was responsible for
the daily operation of this company. Mr. Tang was also successively
appointed as the general manager of Jiangxi Man Wo Property
Development Co., Ltd., Jiangxi Redco Property Development Co.,
Ltd., Redco Development (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd., Shandong Redco
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and vice president of Redco
(China) Real Estate Co., Ltd. from May 2006 to February 2012, where
he was responsible for daily operation of these companies and
overseeing various projects. He is also currently a director of many
our subsidiaries. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang was employed
by Jiangsu Province Supply and Marketing Cooperative Real Estate
Development Company (JLERE HiHt EMZERME L E]), a company
primarily engaged in property development from March 1993 to
August 2001 and his last position was deputy general manager and
deputy director of department of economic development. Mr. Tang
received a bachelor s degree in engineering from Shenyang Institute
of Architectural Engineering (EFZEEIIZEZET) in the PRC in July
1986.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David GBS, BBS, JP (kK EEL) (“Dr. Wong"),
aged 62, has been an independent non-executive Director since 14
January 2014. Dr. Wong is a member of each of the audit committee
of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the Nomination
Committee. Dr. Wong received a doctorate degree in Economics from
the University of Chicago in 1987. Dr. Wong has extensive experience
in manufacturing, direct investment and international trade.

Dr. Wong is active in public service. He is a Hong Kong deputy of the
13th National People’'s Congress of the People' s Republic of China
(F+=E2BEARMRFTAE). He is also the Chairman of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority. Dr. Wong was appointed a Justice
of Peace (JP) in 2010 and was awarded a Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS)
and Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2017 and 2012 for his valuable
contribution to the society.

Dr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of
Huayi Tencent Entertainment Company Limtied (Stock code: 419),
CSSC (Hong Kong) Shipping Company Limtied (Stock code : 3877),
Shenzhen Investment Limited (Stock code: 604), Sinopec Kantons
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 934) and Guangnan (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 1203). The shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Dr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of Yunfeng
Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 376) during the period from
December 2012 to 3 November 2017 and Concord New Energy Group
Limited (Stock code: 182) during the period from December 2016 to
June 2018.
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Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen (AZER%LE) (“Mr. Chau’), aged 73, has
been an independent non-executive Director since 14 January
2014. Mr. Chau is a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chau
received a bachelor s degree in Chinese language and literature from
Xiamen University (JEFIAZ2) in August 1968 in the PRC. Mr. Chau is
currently a Standing Committee Member of the Thirteenth National
Committee of the Chinese Peopl€ s Political Consultative Conference,
and the Eleventh honorary consultant of the Hong Kong Federation
of Fujian Association. Mr. Chau was also awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star by the government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in July 2016.

Mr. Chau is currently an executive director and chairman of ELL
Enviornmental Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1395), and independent
non-executive director of Good Resources Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 109), Come Sure Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 794)
and Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1897). The
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chau was a non-executive director and honorary chairman of
China Ocean Shipbuilding Industry Group Limited (Stock code: 651)
during the period form 23 June 2015 to 1 December 2019.

Mr. YIP Tai Him (EMH%E) (“Mr. Yip®), aged 49, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 14 January 2014. Mr. Yip is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee. Mr. Yip received a bachelor of arts (hons) degree in
accountancy from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong, now known as
the City University of Hong Kong in September 1993 in Hong Kong.
He has been a practising accountant in Hong Kong since 1999. Mr. Yip
was admitted as a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales in September 1996 and January
2006, respectively. He has approximately 25 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management. Mr. Yip is currently
an independent non-executive director of the following companies,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Yip is currently and independent non-executive independent
director of China Communication Telecom Service Company Limited
(stock code: 8206), GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (Stock code:
3800), Zhongchang International Holdings Group Limited (Stock code:
859), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board/GEM board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yip was an independent non-executive
director of the following companies, the shares of which are listed on

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:
Companies Duration

November 2016 to
February 2018

New Wisdom Holding Co. Ltd
(Stock Code: 8213)

Sino Golf Holdings Ltd.
(Stock code: 361)

August 2015 to
November 2018

Bisu Technology Group International Ltd
(Stock Code: 1372)

August 2015 to
April 2019

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Lei (EZE%EE) (“Mr. WU”), aged 39, is the President of our
property holdings group. Mr. Wu joined the Group on 2nd December
2020 and served as the President of our property holdings group,
where he is responsible for the day-to-day management. Mr. Wu has
substantive experience in the operation, investment and financing of
real estate companies. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu served as
the chairman of the board at H-Change Group (F1&%E) from June
2015 to December 2020. He also held several positions in China Vanke
Co., Ltd. (SZ: 000002) (“Vanke”) during July 2005 and June 2015,
including the vice general manager of Ji nan Vanke from September
2012 to June 2015. Mr. Wu graduated from Tianjin University (FKZX
£) with a bachelor of engineering degree and is a EMBA student at
School of Economics and Management, Tsinghua University.

Mr. Wu has 16 years of experience in real estate industry in China. He
was awarded Opinion Leader (ERB#HMAYLEL) by NetEase (485) in
2016, Fashion Figure of China Real Estate Industry (PRI ZE &S A4
#%) by Guardian.cn (ERBk#1ZE) in 2017 and Top 30 CEO of China Real
Estate Industry in 2019.
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Ms. WANG Shuyu (EBBIEL L) (“Ms. Wang’), aged 48, joined the
Group in November 2016. She is the Vice Presidents of the property
holdings group of the Group where she is responsible for the
marketing management of the Group. Ms. Wang has over 25 years
of experience in real estate marketing and corporate operations
management. Prior to joining the Group, she worked as the Vice
President in charge of brand marketing in China Aoyuan Property
Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
3883) for the period from 2010 to 2015. Previously, she has held
various senior positions in China Overseas (stock code: 688), Wanda
Group and other different reputable real estate companies, and has
accumulated substantial experience in property development and
management. Ms. Wang was awarded a diploma in Laws by Hunan
University in China in 2004.

Ms. LIANG Wanchan (284 1) (“Ms. Liang’), aged 43, is the Vice
President of the property holdings group of the Group where she is
responsible for financial, financing and internal control compliance of
the Group. She has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance and
internal auditing. Ms. Liang joined the Group as the chief financial officer
of Redco (China) Real Estate Co., Ltd. in November 2010 and she has been
responsible for the corporate finance and accounting of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, she had served as assistant director of finance and
investment management department of Hopson Development Holdings
Limited (B4AIBEEABRAE ), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 754), from September 2002 to October 2010, during which
she was responsible for financial management of the group. Ms. Liang
received a bachelors degree in economics from the Renmin University of
China in the PRC in July 2000.

Mr. CHEN Pengfei (BREEFRSE) (“Mr. Chen”), aged 40, joined the
Group in April 2016. He is the Assistant President of the property
holdings group of the Group where he is responsible for the Group’ s
operation and related analysis. Mr. Chen has accumulated over 15
years of experience in cost management and tender procurement
management area. Prior to joining the Group, he served as the
General Manager of Cost Management Center of Shenzhen Yitian
Group* (¥ ™ 23 FH £ @) where he was responsible for the cost
management and tender procurement of the whole group, and has
accumulated extensive management experience in cost management
as well as tender procurement. Mr. Chen received a Bachelor s degree
in Management from Sichuan University in 2003.

EEREREEERERE

FRBIBL T (TELE]) > 485 ZT—
F+—BINARER > ARERMMETR
EENRES PEXAEBEHERET
fEe R TEMESH R HEEEIEE
1A E 25 E TIERE: « MAKREBRZATR
TE-EEE T —FEHRBEEBIRT
rhrRaEtEREEMEER BRHGMHAE !
388 FEEBBHEETREEHTE-
bRl B RS (B CSE © 688)
BEERSZRABMEADRETEET
B ERMEBELREETEESLEEMN
TREEER F4 T - TENMEEHREH
R ARBEEEE R UK ©

BB (TRL L)) 435 BEE
M EEREBOBEIEE  DEAEEY
B RMERNEERTIE  ZRENEE
RE RN ERE St B RIRE 20 FAE85 o £
IR ZE—FF+—RBMALXER " H
FEhE(FR) MEARADEREMBE
BltESAREENTEMBENE S o 1O
AFEBZH RZLEIR -T2 "FNA
EZ-THFETRPBBRERRA LT
ABBRERIRERERAR (RMH R
T54) N B RIEEBEAOAEREENIE
BEEEENYBEE RLEIRN_ZEZ
SFECAEPENFEARKSEBELCH

BB EMy o

BRESRAEE(TBRELEL) * 40 K&
—RNFEUAMALTER > HAEEME
EREBREY > 2EAEENEERKE
B0 IIE o BRBEEMR T EERIBIRRF
BEEENAER IS FITFEER - EMAR
EHA @R RYITmAERHEMREE
BAROMEEE a52EENMAEER
BREELF ERMENERBRRE
BEABENEELR MREENR_TFT
—HFERNIIAZEERSE L2 -

NEMEERERAR - 2020 FERS

29



™

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
ESREREERERE

Mr. LI Huiyong (ZF¥EE%4%) (“Mr. L"), aged 39, joined the Group
in August 2013 and is the vice president of the property holdings
group of the Group where he is responsible for the investment
development. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in real estate
investment development. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
Logan Property, a Shenzhen company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 03380.HK), from October 2009 to August 2013, acted
as the manager of investment development center and was in
charge of projects development in Chengdu, Chongging and other
southwestern regions as well as Zhuhai and Zhongshan. Mr. Li
obtained a bachelor s degree in engineering management from
Harbin University of Commerce (/5 # & & 2 K 2) in 2007 and a
master s degree in real estate investment in technical economics and
management from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (&
JEBHAEKER) in 20009.

Mr. Chian Jie LEE (FEAR), (“Mr. Lee”), aged 39, jointed the Group
in December 2019 and is the General Manager of Investment and
Financing for the Company in oversea. Mr. Lee has over 15 years of
experience in real estate, capital market and investor relations. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Lee served as a Director and CFO for Yihe
Real Estate Holdings from June 2017 to June 2019. During this period,
Mr. Lee was responsible for overseeing fund raising and corporate
finance matters. Mr. Lee also served as joint company secretary
and the head of corporate finance and investor relations of Jingrui
Holdings Limited (HKex stock code: 1862.HK), from June 2014 to June
2017. During this period, Mr. Lee was responsible for capital market
matters, investor relations and regulatory compliance. Mr. Lee was
also responsible for the operation and management of the Hong
Kong office. Prior to joining Jingrui, Mr. Lee was a general manager of
investment and operation department of Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited and an associate director with UBS AG where he
worked as an equity analyst covering China real estate sector. He
was awarded “best stock picker - real estate and construction” by
StarMine in 2008. Mr. Lee has a bachelor s degree in Economics from
London School of Economics in 2005.
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Ms.GUAN Jing (BAEE%Z L) (“Ms.Guan”), aged 37, is the general
manager of the strategy & planning center of the Group where she is
responsible for strategic planning and execution, business planning,
new business research and cultivation, enterprise Digitization of
the Group. She has over 10 years of experience in operation and
organization management of real estate. Ms. Guan joined the Group
as the assistant to Group President in March 2015, where she also
served as the vice supervisor of the president s office. Prior to joining
the Group, she had served Coastal Greenland Limited (3 /8 4 &
REABRAT), a company listed on the HK Stock Exchange (stock
code:1124), from June 2008 to March 2015, during which she was
in charge of business planning of the Group. Ms. Guan received a
bachelor s degree in economics from the Renmin University of China
in the PRC in July 2007.

Company Secretary

Mr. CHAN Hing Chau (Bf B B & &) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 41, has
been our company secretary since 28 October 2013. Mr. Chan is the
authorised representative of the Company and the general manager
of Hong Kong Office of the Group. Mr. Chan joined the Group as the
general manger of finance department of Redco Holdings (Hong
Kong) Co., Limited in March 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan
was with PricewaterhouseCoopers from December 2004 to March
2013, during which he was promoted to a manager of assurance
department. Mr. Chan obtained his bachelor s degree of arts in
accountancy and master degree of Corporate Governance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2004 and September
2018 in Hong Kong. He was also qualified as a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in July 2008.

EEREREEERERE

R (TRAZ L) > 37T’ AREEE
BEEIROAERTE  aEARERNEKE
BIEHIT ~ DELKSESE ~ HEEIITHE

BE - ﬁ%@%ﬁfﬁ%L & TAE o K
B EREES MMABEE A EmRER 10
Emmoﬁﬁimig AFE=HBMAK
EFH BEERQRBIERESIE T
EEHIKPE P OAELSIE o RIMAKXERZ
g R ETRZEENFABE_Z—H
FABRAEREREBRAR(—
BREBHMZF EHHNAT  RHARSE !

1124)  EEEEHEEE TFo AL+
N_EELFELBETEANFEHARKS

PR AR BT o

AEME

REREE(REE) 41w’ B-F
—=F+AZ+N\BEEERMAHRTH
& REERERRNEERRFERER
ERMBEEEE - REAEENR"T—=F
ZRMAXER HENSER(FE)
BRABIMBEAREIE - RIMAXEER
ZH BREER _ZZEME+_/AE"E
——FE-AERERBKESHMER
PR HHF‘?“?’-PZ’E%@*‘ ARSI o RITER T
ZENF+—BR-ZE-N\FNLAEFE
kS ,%Eﬂlkmﬁﬁé’é‘;;r%x%iﬁuﬂz
TEEERBRLIRN - REAEETR TN
FLEWMSEBEMAGTEEER -

NEMEERERAR - 2020 FERS

31



M

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERES

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Review Period’).

Maintaining high standards of business ethics and corporate
governance has always been one of the Group’s prime tasks. It
believes that conducting the Group's businesses in a transparent
and responsible manner and following good corporate governance
practices serve its long-term interests and those of its Shareholders.

(A)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Cod¢€”) as its own code to govern
its corporate governance practices. The Company has been
conducting its business according to the principles of the CG
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the CG Code.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of
the Company with an aim to maintaining and improving a high
standard of corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors securities transactions. In response
to a specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The Board currently consists of seven Directors, comprising
four executive Directors and three independent non- executive
Directors. As at the date hereof, the composition of the Board is
set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Ruoging (President)

Mr. Tang Chengyong

Mr. Wang Weifeng (Resigned on 28 May 2020)

EFEMARIEARDEE_ST_FTHF
+ZR=+—HLEFE(TERE#)) Bk x

ERmE

MR FBEERREREEE G —
ERAEENEEIFZ— ZEEEE
BEERRBENEELEEBTRETR
FRREER ARERAAERRERRNE
BHam o

(A) EEERER

RAB BN EE AT (TRESE
AR WSFANE U EAE A B EA
HAMEEAREHRNTH o KABRE
ECETEF+"F=+—HIEEE
BRI — B 3% _E MR B M+ U P
EEATRMRAIAE H2ER o

REE-Z-TF+"H=-+—HIt
FEEHE > AR BETEEEART
BB9SFRMEST ©

BERRBESEENLEEA
11 BB RERAAT
By o

(B) EFMEHFRS

AR B LRI +FrEl
TETAEFETESFXZHNREST
Al (MREESFR) ) ERBARIESETE
FRZBTAER] o HEAREFH
W EEH > 2REFEDRENE
E_ZEF+_B=+—HLFE
HEBTRESTR -

(C) E=F
ESTHEMN

EFeRKEECRESE HPhEZ
BRPTEST 2 ABUFNTE
F o RNARSHE EFZRVEMRT
o

HITEF

BmENSE (EFE)

BE A ()

EEENLE
TEagiE(RZEEF
AR+ N\HEHE)

32

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David GBS, BBS, JP (Resigned on 8 April 2021)

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS
Mr. Yip Tai Him
Dr. Tam Kam Kau GBS, SBS, JP (Appointed on 8 April 2021)

The biographical information of the Directors and the
relationships between the members of the Board are set out
and disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this annual report.

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for determining our business and
investment plans, preparing our annual financial budgets and
final reports, formulating proposals for profit distributions
as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by the Memorandum and Articles of Association.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Directors must dedicate sufficient time and attention to the
Group' s affairs. Besides, the Company also requested all
Directors to disclose to the Company annually the number and
the nature of offices held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitments with an indication of the
time involved.

Attendance Records of the Directors

At the Board meetings, the Directors discussed and formulated
overall strategies for the Company, discussed and approved
the financial budgets, annual results, dividends and other
significant transactions of the Group. Issues relating to the daily
management and operations of the Group have been delegated
to the management of the Group.

Notices of Board meetings were given to all Directors at least
14 days prior to the meetings and all Directors are entitled to
include items which they think fit for discussion in the agenda of
the meetings.

Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Board and
the committees meetings were sent to the Directors and
the committees members for their comment and records
respectively in a timely manner.
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The individual attendance record of each director at FESHFOEMAENESS IS
the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee, RELEGEE  FNEEEEE
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and the general BZEEEEREMEALABREATH
meeting of the Company held during the Review Period is set BRI HEACERET T -
out below:

Qo

Annual

general

meeting

held on

19 June

2020

T THF

Audit Nomination Remuneration 7xB+AhH

Board Committee Committee Committee ARK

EEE® BREHET RV/EET WNEEE RRBEAG

Number of Meetings 4 2 1 1 1
BERH

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. WONG Yeuk Hung 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1

=t s NEA NEA NERA

Mr. HUANG Ruogqing 4/4 N/A 1/1 1/1 1/1

BEEERE NiERA

Mr. TANG Chengyong 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1

EAB L A iE A TiEmA

Mr. Wang Weifeng (Notel) 1/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/1

Fasgied (st 1) B NEA ~EA

Independent Non-executive Director

BIERITES

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David GBS, BBS, JP 4/4 2/2 1/1 N/A 1/1

=R EE T GBS * BBS KF4L NERA

Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1

B ZiE RS E SBS * BBS

Mr. YIP Tai Him 4/4 2/2 N/A 1/1 1/1

ERERTE i

Note 1: Mr. Wang Weifeng resigned as an executive Director on 28 May sEl: FRBEEENR S ZEFR
2020. The board meeting which he did not attend was held after BZ+N\HB#HENTES - &
his resignation. FEREZEEEEERONEAE

BHERET -
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Apart from the regular Board meeting, Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung,
the Chairman of the Company, also held one meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without other executive
Directors present during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Independence of the independent non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in compliance with
the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors in the
Board, representing more than one third of the Board, with one
of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Based
on the foregoing, the Board considers that the balance between
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and
balances that safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the
Group as a whole.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors independent. The
Board believes that there is a strong independent element in the
Board to safeguard the interest of Shareholders.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
are clearly identified in all corporate communications of the
Company. A list of Directors is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and will be updated, where
necessary.

Induction and Development

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
All Directors received an induction package covering the
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
Company also plans to provide briefings and other training
to develop and refresh the Directors knowledge and skills.
The Company shall provide (a) the Directors the update on
the material changes to the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements; and (b) the employees of the Group
abreast of updates in the anti-bribery laws and regulations.
The Directors shall participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Circulars and guidance
notes may be issued to Directors and senior management of
the Company where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best
corporate governance practices.
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The Company has put in place an on-going training and
professional development programme for Directors. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors received regular
briefings and updates on the Group's business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters. All Directors
provided the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years with effect from 30 January 2020. Whereas, Mr. Wong Yeuk
Hung, Mr. Huang Ruoging and Mr. Tang Cheng Yong entered into
a service contract with the Company under which they agreed
to act as executive Directors for three years commencing from
January 2020.

Code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Two Directors will retire, and being qualified, have offered to be
re-elected at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Friday, 25 June 2021 (the “Annual General Meeting”).

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

a) to develop and review the Company s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

c) to review and monitor the Company s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(D)

(E)
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d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to Directors, senior management and
employees of the Company; and

e)  toreview the Company s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board reviewed
the Company s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in 2020 corporate governance
report of the Company.

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company established three
committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Those committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 14 January
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C3 of the CG Code.
As at the date hereof, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Tai
Him (being the chairman of the Audit Committee who has a
professional qualification in accountancy), Dr. Wong Yau Kar,
David GBS, BBS, JP and Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process, to
develop and review the policies of the Group and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board. In
particular, the Audit Committee is empowered under its terms of
reference to review any arrangement which may raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of the
Audit Committee were held to review annual results and report
for the year ended 31 December 2019, interim financial results
and report for the six months ended 30 June 2020, appointment
of external auditors, the internal control of the Group and.
The external auditors attended the meetings. The attendance
records of the Audit Committee are set out in the section
headed “Attendance Records of the Directors”.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 14
January 2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and paragraph B1 of the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Tai Him (being the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen and
one executive Diraector, Mr. Huang Ruoging. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee include (but without limitation):
(i) making recommendations to the Directors regarding the
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;
(i) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing
and approving the management s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’ s corporate goals and objectives; and (iv)
considering and approving the grant of share options to eligible
participants, if any, pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

There is one meeting of the Remuneration Committee held
during the year ended 31 December 2020 to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the existing remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management. The
attendance records of the Remuneration Committee are set out
in the section headed “Attendance Records of the Directors’.
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The remuneration of senior management of the Company was
within the following bands:
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KABSRERBNFINERENT :

: Number of individuals
AE

The emolument bands (in RMB) 2019 2020
HENEEE (AR —EB—hF TECEL
0-1,000,000 3 2
1,000,001-2,000,000 7 T
2,000,001-5,000,000 4 3
Nomination Committee ERELEY

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 14
January 2014 with written terms of reference. The Nomination
Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Yau Kar, David BBS, JP and Mr. Chau On Ta
Yuen and one executive Director, Mr. Huang Ruoqing (being the
chairman of the Nomination Committee). The primary function
of the Nomination Committee is to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of members of the Board.

There is one meeting of the Nomination Committee held during
the year ended 31 December 2020 to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and review the re-
appointment of Directors at the annual general meeting held
on 21 June 2020. The attendance records of the Nomination
Committee are set out in the section headed “Attendance
Records of the Directors’.

Further, the board diversity policy (the “Policy’) was adopted
by the Company on 28 January 2014. The purpose of the Policy
is to set out the basic principles to be followed to ensure that
the Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. Selection of Board candidates shall be based on a
range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’ s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience.
The Nomination Committee shall review the policy and the
measurable objectives at least annually, and as appropriate, to
ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.
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Nomination Policy

When considering candidates for the nomination and
appointment as Directors, the Nomination Committee aims to:

ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company;
and

there will be continuity and appropriate leadership at
Board level.

The nomination and appointment process is carried out strictly
in accordance with the nomination committee’s terms of
reference, the articles of association of the Company and all
applicable rules and regulations.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following factors would be considered:

Character and integrity.

Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company s business and corporate strategy.

Diversity in all aspects with reference to the Diversity Policy
of the Board.

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.

Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Hong Kong Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and diversity.

Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.
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- Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.

Notwithstanding that the Board has delegated its responsibilities
and authority for selection and appointment of directors of
the Company to the Nomination Committee of the Company,
the ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of
directors of the Company rests with the entire Board.

Diversity Policy

The diversity policy of the Company aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Board
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diversity of
the Board to enhance the quality of the Board performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company considers increase diversity
at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and sustainable
development. In designing the Board s composition, the Board
will take into account a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board members appointments will be based on
the principles laid down in this Policy, and candidates will be
considered against the aforesaid objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to be a Board member will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the
Company and the Group and the conditions and factors as set
out in the dividend policy, dividends may be proposed and/
or declared by the Board during a financial year and any final
dividend for a financial year will be subject to Shareholders
approval.

The declaration of dividends by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the
Articles of Association of the Company and any applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

In determining payment of dividends, the Company shall share
its profits with Shareholders while maintaining adequate
reserves for meeting its future growth, with a view to declaring
dividends higher than the industrial average level and achieving
a stable and better return for the Shareholders.

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of
the Group when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

financial results;
. cash flow situation;

business conditions and strategies;
. future operations and earnings;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;
. interests of shareholders;

any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

. any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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(F)

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced and clear
assessment of the Group's performance and prospects. The
Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company s ability to continue as a going-concern
basis.

A statement by the auditor of the Company in respect of their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the independent auditor report from page
108 to page 117.

The remuneration paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
Company s auditor for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to RMB7,003,000 in respect of the audit service and
RMB2,226,000 for non-audit services during the year under
review.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company s risk management
and internal control systems and for reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve the business objectives of
the Group and to only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the 2020 reporting period, the Board supervised the
management s design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis; such
review covered all major control aspects of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls.
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The Group's risk management and internal control systems
covered each operation department, to ensure that the Group
could effectively manage the key factors that might affect
the Group in achieving its strategic objectives, such factors
including events, accidents or behaviors with a material impact
on the Group’ s reputation, assets, capital, profit or liquidity.

The Company has established three layers structure for risk
management. In the risk governance structure, the first layer
consists of the business departments of project company
and responsible individuals, with the Group’ s business and
functional centers serving as the second layer and the internal
audit team as the final layer. The first layer bears risks and
responsible for the direct responsibility for risk management
and it identifies, measures and controls the risks in respective
business fields and operating activities. The second layer
formulates rules and standards as business guidance to
subsidiaries/business units, and supervises their execution
to ensure that risk management takes place for the Group,
with continuous control of relevant work. The third layer is
responsible for monitoring, with an emphasis on providing
independent monitoring over the effectiveness of the Group's
risk solutions and measures by combining the monitoring over
the risk management and internal control systems.
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In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Group shall
disclose to the public any insider information as soon as
possible after such information comes to the attention of the
Group, unless such information is within the scope under any
safe harbours provision in the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
The Group will ensure such information will be kept confidential
before it is fully announced to the public. If the Group considers
that the confidentiality required cannot be kept, or such
information may have leaked already, such information will
be disclosed to the public immediately. We also endeavour to
ensure that the information contained in the announcement
shall not be deceptive or misleading in all material aspects,
and there are no other material matters the omission of which
would make the information contained therein to be deceptive
or misleading, such that the insider information disclosed
can be made available to the public in an equal, timely and
effective manner. In addition, if there occurs any significant risk
events, the related information will be disclosed to appropriate
authorities and personnel, so that appropriate decisions and
measures can be made and implemented by the Group to deal
with such risk events. Meanwhile, in order to further develop
the risks management culture of the enterprise, as well as to
enhance the risk awareness of our staff, the Group has already
rolled out training programs to enhance the risk awareness of
our staff, so that we can assure to maintain the balance between
business expansion and risks management in our operation.

The Group's internal audit team plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The team
mainly monitors and reviews the matters relating to the internal
control and compliance of the Company, and provides regular
risk-oriented internal audits for its branches and subsidiaries.
The internal audits cover project obtainment, procurement
tendering, sales, financial reporting and information security
and so on. The internal audit team reports to the Board twice
a year. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’ s risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee has received
a report of risk management and internal control prepared
by the internal audit team, and has considered that the risk
management and internal control systems remain adequate and
effective throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 with no
material issues to be brought to the Board' s attention.
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(H)

(1)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Chan Hing Chau as its company
secretary. Mr. Chan has confirmed that for the year under review,
he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training. The biographical details of Mr. Chan are set out on
page 31 of this annual report.

Mr. Chan is an employee of the Company. He is also the General
Manager of Redco Holdings (Hong Kong) Co., Limited which is
the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary’), to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition, including making proposals or moving a
resolution at the extraordinary general meeting.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at the extraordinary
general meeting must deposit a written requisition (the
“Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Room 2001-2, Enterprise Square
3, 39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in
the Company, the reason(s) to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, the agenda proposed to be included and
the details of the business(es) proposed to be transacted
in the special general meeting, signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned.
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. The Company will check the Requisition and the identity
and the shareholding of each Eligible Shareholder will
be verified with the Company s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong. If the Requisition is found to be proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting within 2 months
and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) at the extraordinary
general meeting after the deposit of the Requisition. On
the contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not
in order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not
call for an extraordinary general meeting and/or include
the proposal or the resolution proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder at the extraordinary general meeting.

. If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board
has not advised the Eligible Shareholder(s) of any outcome
to the contrary and fails to proceed to convene such
extraordinary general meeting, the Eligible Shareholder(s)
himself/herself/themselves may do so in accordance
with the Memorandum and Articles of Association,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned by the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward their written enquiries to the
Board. In this regard, Shareholders may send those enquiries or
requests as mentioned to the following:

Address: Room 2001-2, Enterprise Square 3
39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2758 8392

Telephone: (852) 2331 2839

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, Shareholders who
wish to propose resolutions may follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association for requisitioning an extraordinary general
meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. The
requirements and procedures are set out in the section headed
“Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting” in this report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The management of the Company believes that effective
and proper investor relations play a vital role in creating
Shareholders value, enhancing the corporate transparency as
well as establishing market confidence. As such, the Company
has adopted a stringent internal control system to ensure
true, accurate and complete disclosure of information. The
management of the Company has proactively taken and will
continue to take the following measures to ensure effective
Shareholders communication and transparency:

. the Chairman, President of the Company, the respective
chairmen of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, will make
themselves available at the annual general meetings to
meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries;

. regularly update the Company s news and developments
of the Company’ s website;

. arrange on-site visits to the Group’ s projects for potential
investors and research analysts.

Through the above measures, the Company endeavors to
communicate with the investment community and provide
them with the latest development of the Group and the PRC
real estate industry. The Company will disclose information
in compliance with the Listing Rules, and publish periodic
reports and announcements to the public in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the
Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed
decisions.

There was no significant change in the Company s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2020. Should
there be such significant changes in the constitutional
documents, the Company shall upload the revised version onto
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in due
course.
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CONCEPT AND PRINCIPLE

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG’) Report (the “ESG
Report’) covers the ESG matters of Redco Properties Group Limited
(stock code: 01622) and together with its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The ESG Report is prepared in compliance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Group' s beliefs

The Group believes that a successful enterprise should not maximise
profits at all costs, but should endeavour to balance stakeholder s
interests and social responsibility for maintaining an enterprise s
sustainable development. The Group strives to lower carbon
footprints and strictly complies with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. The Group aims to achieve such balance and fulfill social
responsibility along with its mission of “Signature architecture with
tremendous honour”.

Any effort starts at home. In 2018, the Group relocated its
headquarters to Redco Building located in Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, People s Republic of China. The new headquarters is
furnished with up-to- date energy efficient equipment including for
example LED lighting systems, thermostat controlled and energy
efficient air conditioning. While improving the Group’ s environmental
performance, the arrangements also improves the working
environment for its employees and save costs for the Group.

Overview

As a property developer focusing on mid-to-high-end residential
and commercial property development in the PRC, the Group is
committed to being a responsible social enterprise. The Group is
subject to various environmental laws and regulations set by the
PRC at the national, provincial and municipal levels. These include
regulations on pollution (including air, sound and water pollution)
and discharge of construction waste and sewage. Compliance
procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

IRIR - HHERERKRS

REESRERRA

AIRBE-#HBFREA(NREBE - HERE
BWRE(NRIE - B RERKRS)) St
BHE_ T ZF+_/F=+—HILEES
SBHEEEERAS BRMSE  01622)
RENBATZIBE - HGREAEE o

KRR U EREARESHETEEME
RERBRABES EHAERM SR+t
FREGRIE s HEREBREIES) MR
o

FEFENES

AEERRE ° BEREISHRINAR I RER
PENTEMGEE UEFEETHE
HE MIFAE—TNERRAFE - &
S B REER B P B S BT AR R IRIR
ERRER c AEBERA/RABIRE
&~ EHEE B EXNARTEKRE
THESE-

TEZIT BRET - RIZ—-N\F 'K
EEREESRBEMNPEARKENER
R ELUENIEARE - HBHRAR
MBI ERE  BELEDREARS |’
BIEGIREIEESR - BRZHFAEMNESR
SEEVRIERE  TENEE TR
15 UK BAEEEBEME

i

ER—REIETERES  SHETY
ERBEDENEHERER  AEER
NARBEEHERE - AEET LA
BIEIR « &~ MRIRIEERRERRE
BESREEER BERKSHR)R
151 52 B R U SRBE W) K05 7K BY AR B o 2<
EEEBHMSRESR  URRETERE
2 RBUKOER -

NEMEERERAR - 2020 FERS

49



™

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RiR - HERERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the operations of the Group. The Group has various measures
and policies in place, as discussed in further details in the following
sections of this Report. In addition, the Group also provides a fair and
safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides competitive
remuneration and benefits and career development opportunities
based on their merits and performance. Adequate and ongoing
trainings, development and resources are provided to the employees
of the Group so that they can keep abreast of the latest development
of the market and the industry and, at the same time, improve their
performance and job satisfaction. The Group keeps up to date with
the changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Group believes that its employees, customers, supplier and
business partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners.

The preparation of the ESG Report involved the participation of the
Group' s key stakeholders, including the management and relevant
staff who jointly assessed the importance of the relevant ESG matters
for the purposes of understanding the expectations and propositions
from various stakeholders of the Group and provided all relevant ESG
information.

Source of information

The figures and data in this Report were derived from the Group's
archived documents, records, and surveys in relation to the core
and significant projects of the Group’s operation and property
development business covering material matters and key
performance indicators in relation to environmental management,
social responsibility and governance. The Group s efforts devoted
to the implementations of the measures disclosed in this report
demonstrate its commitment and determination to become a socially
responsible corporate.

Feedback

If you have any feedback for the Report, please feel free to contact us
by email at ir@redco.cn.
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ABOUT THE GROUP

The Group is an integrated property developer focusing on mid-to-
high-end residential and commercial property development in the
PRC. The Group has been upholding the operating philosophy of
signature architecture with tremendous honour (fFiREiE . FHEE
#2) and has executed its multi-regional strategy through its sound
and pragmatic approach to business, the forward-looking plans for
strategic investment, quality products and operational efficiency.

1.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Construction work during the Group’ s property development
projects inevitably produce emissions, including exhaust,
sewage and construction wastes. The Group' s emissions include
mainly greenhouse gas (carbon dioxide and the equivalent),
nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides and particulates). The Group
also disposes waste materials during the construction process.
The Group believes that the increase of the efficiency and
effectiveness of its construction process would significantly
reduce the raw materials waste and use of energy.

The Group is committed to reducing carbon foot print and
energy consumption. It has implemented both internal and
external environmental protection policies to minimise the
impact of business activities on the environment, and support
environmental-protection initiatives, including:

Externally at building sites for property developments,
(i) diesel generators are not preferred, under the same
or similar conditions, power from electricity supplier is
preferred as it is expected that the electricity supplier's
power generation system is more efficient and is more
adapted to reducing carbon emissions than traditional
onsite diesel generators; (ii) idle machines are switched off
to reduce unnecessary fuel consumption and to reduce air
pollutants; (iii) prior to commencement of a construction
project, the Group would assess and predict the amount of
emissions to be generated, and formulate an optimal plan
to effectively manage emissions and production; (iv) during
the construction stage, emission and waste are monitored
to ensure that they do not exceed any statutory applicable
limits; and (v) in certain of the Group’ s projects, roof space
will be filled with greenery and/or solar panels.
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ii. Internally at the office, (i) staff members are constantly
reminded to turn off the air conditioning, lights of the office
area before leaving work every day and check, from time
to time, whether the lights and equipment in the common
areas are turned off when not in use; (ii) after completing
their tasks for the day, staff members are reminded to
turn off their computers and monitors; (iii) employees
are encouraged to use duplex printing to minimize paper
consumption; (iv) trays are placed next to photocopiers
for collecting single-sided paper for reusing purposes; (v)
envelopes are also reused for internal mails; and (vi) air
conditioning thermostat is set at 25 degree Celsius.

The Group will continue to review the environmental impact
of their operations, remain alert to the latest environmental
friendly machinery and make use of best practices, records
and monitors resources consumption data and implementing
better performance strategies as to enhance the contributions
to environmental sustainability through good environmental
practices.

The Group is subject to a number of laws and regulations in
China in relation to environmental protection, impact to the
environment, noise pollution and environmental protection for
development projects, including the Environmental Protection
Law of the People s Republic of China ((FFEARKMNEIEE
1R 3% )), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ({fh#E A RHFE K
JSEBRAEY), the Law of the People’ s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({FFZE A A0
B AR5 RBAAL)), and the Law of People' s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Wastes ((FZE A\ RHEMEEIRSEEY)S RIRR G ED).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.
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Greenhouse gas and other air pollutants

The following table sets out the greenhouse gas and other air

pollutants emitted during the year: MZERSEY .
Emission Type Unit Amount
HEmUER B HE
Greenhouse gas (carbon dioxide equivalent) kg 246.77
BERSE (ZEEREZEY) Ny

Nitrogen oxide Kg 188,786.17
aaity /N

Sulphur oxide Kg 72,059.55
=kl Ny

Particulates kg 296,875.50
#IF Ny

By implementing the policies set out above, the Group increase
49.2% of Greenhouse gas emission after we acquired the
property management Company which have more greenhouse
gas emission compare to property development, compared to
last year.

BIBER DHAYEER © BEAFALL
FEERREREHRERKREY
FEEQARR  BEREIKIEM
49.2% o

Waste EE¥)

The following table sets out the waste produced during the year: TREIINFEELENEEY .
Waste type Unit Amount

ek bl =i HE

Hazardous waste kg 0

BEREY /NI

Non-hazardous waste Kg 1,156,000

mEREY) /NI

Waste includes building debris, asphalt, wood, earth and metal
scraps.

Waste is unavoidable due to the nature of the business of
the Group, the Group works closely with contractors and
construction workers to carry out various measures to reduce
waste, including the separation and recycling of construction
waste including steel, glass, paper waste and concrete blocks.
The Group will carefully analyse their construction plans
before work commencement to reduce the need for refits or
demolitions which creates substantial amount of industrial
waste.
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2. USE OF RESOURCES

In 2020, the Group continued to implement measures to reduce
energy usage and to conserve resources.

Energy consumption

The policies set out in the paragraph headed under section
headed “1. Environmental’ above are also targeted towards
energy and resources conservation internally at the Group's
headquarters and during the construction process. In addition,
in the construction and design of the Group’ s projects, the
Group pays attention to energy conservation by adopting
designs that utilises natural lighting and ventilation. LED
lightening are installed in most of the projects of the Group
during the year.

The following table sets out the energy consumption of the
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Group:

: Density (per unit by
Energy Unit Consumption gross area)
AEilR (U HEEE BE (B—EURULER)
Electricity kWh 23,345,320 1.00
B/ T ERE

The Group only increase 49.2% of the electricity density as
compared to the previous year after acquisition the property
management company during the year.

Water consumption

Water is required for project constructions and in the everyday
use of office space.

In compliance with relevant environmental laws, all the
construction sites of the Group's projects are equipped with
sewage clarifiers, construction wastewater, rainwater and other
domestic sewage are drawn into the clarifiers for filtration.
Filtered water is then recycled for vehicle cleaning and dust
removal. Pipes are inspected and maintained regularly to ensure
no leakage. There was no issue with sourcing water that is fit for
construction.

Although the Group cannot have automated control of water
usage in the office premises, the Group constantly reminds its
staff on water conservation, including reducing unnecessary
wastage in the pantries and toilets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group utilised
1,635,702 cubic metres of water. The increase of water
consumption mainly due to the acquisition of property
management company.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group is a property developer. The Group recognises that
for each step of construction in the ordinary course of business,
the Group's activities will have an impact on the surrounding
environment and community. The nature of the Group’'s
business reuigres the use of raw materials including cement,
steel, ceramic tiles, glass panel and paint. Throughout the
construction process, the Group will use electricity or other form
of energy sources. Furthermore, the Group must also manage
the waste and by-product (including emissions and sewage)
arising from the construction process.

The Group does not consume packaging materials in its course
of business, disclosure for packaging materials does not apply.

While all of the abovementioned must be carried out in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in China,
the Group attempts to include environmental protection to
every process of its production chain to limit its impact on the
environment and natural resources. The Group, on one hand,
tries to keep up- to- date with its construction process by
utilising modern technology and construction which is believed
to increase efficiency as well as reducing carbon foot- print,
while on the other hand, the Group implements various policies
as described under the sections headed “1. ENVIRONMENTAL’
and “2. USE OF RESOURCES’ to minimise water usage, reduce
emissions and waste.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group recognises the importance of offering fair, impartial
and open opportunities for recruiting and also retaining talents.

The Group has implemented and adheres to its employment
guidelines to prevent employment discrimination on the
grounds of age, nationality, race, religion, sexual orientation,
gender, marital status, or political stance.

Recruitment personnel is provided with recruitment and
selection training courses to align recruitment process with the
Group’ s standards.

IRIR - HEREREBS

BETZZHE+_A=+—HILF
B AEBBAKEARL6357021175
Ko FAKERENEEZHNEEYE
BIEATF o

RIERRAER

NEBEAYERERE o AEEMBE
RABERBRINE—ERES
B AEENEEBIEHEERER
HBERTE - ~EBNEREE R
FEREME > BIFACR i« &
B WA o REFEIBES
NEBBEREHIEMP A
TR o Itboh 0 AEBMNAETIEREIBIE
REENEYREE S (SEERK
75IK) °

FEBLEREDHBIETEBERY
# o B R B R YEHREE o

REBBEPITIIA LTI ELUEST
FREEREBIROER * TRESRIRIE
REMARLEERNEIZFT U
REEHIRIERRAE REMBIF
g -AEE-SHERBBERRN
MR R R E 2R 7 R
i BIEEABE S W a MUB R D B
BY Z—7HE’ AEEBTILIR
B2 BRERI— PR 218
R > UEBITREAKE ~ BUOHIR
K BEH) o

(EfERETER

TIRIBEIES > AEBEBERAT A
IE~ ~HNRAERRIEBANT

FAEBEDETIENEEES]  LUE
ZFl s BEFE BHK > B0 EE
A~ 155~ EIRACR BUA N A E 5L
IR o

HPITFAEEA S RIABRIEAN
FE BREBEFTEAEERN

.
THE o

NEMEERERAR - 2020 FERS

55



™

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RiR - HERERRE

Apart from lawful employment contract, the Group protects
employee benefits by practicing standard working hours. The
Group offers paid leaves, social insurance and provident fund as
basic protections. In addition, recognizing women’ s legal rights,
the Group ensures female employees are not only entitled to
applying maternity leave, breast-feeding leave and annual
gynecological examination, but also provided with the safety
and protection scheme for women workers. With respect to
gender diversity, as at 31 December 2020, the Group has a total
of 3,247 employees, comprising 59.4% of male employees and
40.6% of female employees.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group strives to enhance the Group s safety performance
and ensures that all employees are provided with a safe working
environment. The Group' s administration and management
center performs compliance assessment and black spot
monitoring while appointing an external technical advisory
body to provide professional advice to the Company on the
environment, health and safety (EHS) policies.

To ensure compliance with the relevant guidelines on
occupational health and safety, the Group s administration
and management center requires its subsidiaries to submit
feedback reports regularly, and analyzes and evaluates their
health and safety performances under the occupational safety
assessment mechanism of the Group. Meanwhile, the Group
performs targeted inspections to oversee implementation of the
regulations among its subsidiaries.

In addition to occupational health and safety, the Group
cares about the mental health wellbeing of its employees, it
encourages and supports employees to achieve work-family
balance. The Group holds various family activities annually and
provide health checking to each staff annually.

Staff meetings are thus held frequently to facilitate problem
solving and communication for staff at all levels.
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The Group has set up production safety committee and
special internal safety working groups to conduct regular
safety inspections for improving the Company s safe working
conditions. The Group protects employee wellness through
upgrades such as installing dust removal and noise reduction
equipment. In respect of safety training, the Group holds safety
management training programs every six months to improve
workplace safety awareness.

The Group also capitalizes on technology to cope with potential
hazards and guarantee occupational safety. For construction,
the Group adopts prefabrication residential construction
techniques and uses pre-assembled external walls instead of in-
site scaffolding and formwork to save manpower and time for
aerial work significantly, which reduce staff s exposure to risk of
work and enhance construction safety.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group aspires to reach higher by growing and training its
talents to accelerate business development.

New hires are provided with induction training since the first day
of work to internalize the corporate culture including executive,
administration and management and personnel management
practices.

Regular management meetings are also arranged by the
Company s management for new recruits to express their
views of working. The Group has launched various programs
for in-service employees monthly to raise management skills
and expertise via internal sharing, public lecture, and external
meeting. For example, the Company provides training courses
regarding the psychology of selling and sales team management
for its sales staff during the year to help them improve their
performance.
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The Group places strong emphasis on staff development.
The Group has established a Redco College which organizes
structured training programmes for all the staff to familiarise
with Redco’ s culture and the industry, and regular training are
also provided to update knowledge of its staff from time to time.

In 2020, the Company provided more than 20 training hours
per employee. Along with the development of the Group and
realizing training demands of staff, the Group continually
offers, reviews and improves training courses to keep team
performance abreast of the Group’ s business development.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group considers it utmost important to strictly abide
by the requirements of National Labour Law (B & & &) %),
prohibiting the recruitment of child labour and forced labour.
Such restrictions are incorporated into the Group’ s recruitment
manual in the election process, and includes for example
requirements to reach the legal age and to enter into labour
contract before work commences. Identification documents
of the applicants are required to make sure all potential hires
are legal, and to avoid any instances of child labour or forced
labour.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group's supply chain structure is simple and clear. It
conducts supplier visits and sourcing processes to select
suppliers. Eligible suppliers are registered in the Group's
database and categorized into two groups: the “Recognized
suppliers” or the “High performer suppliers’.

Through an internal shortlist mechanism, the “Recognized
suppliers” that displays excellent performance will be promoted
to become the “High performer suppliers” that can enjoy more
collaboration opportunities with the Group. Partnership with
unqualified suppliers will be terminated to ensure supplier
quality in the database.

The supplier selection and management are undertaken by
subsidiaries in the corresponding cities.
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The Company has engaged suppliers with an aim to also ensure
environmental protection. To improve operating practices
of the suppliers, they are required to reduce construction
waste, comply with energy conservation regulations, and
save electricity and gas. Suppliers are required to conform to
relevant environmental laws and regulations, including local
environmental management practices and dust pollution
management regulations for each project. Non-compliant
suppliers will be fined for breach of regulations.

The Company has its own supervisory unit, which holds regular
supplier meetings to ensure positive interaction and collect
opinions and complaints of the suppliers to ensure that the
Company can respond to any potential non- compliance in a
timely manner.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group constructs residential premises with an aim to create
a comfortable home and harmony in communities.

The Group strives to ensure property safety, in expectation
of improving residents’ quality of life through providing
preeminent houses and thereby contributing to the
community’s harmony. The Group strictly complies with
national laws including “Contract Law of the Peopl€ s Republic
of China” and “Construction Law of the People’'s Republic of
China”, and regulations on construction and acceptance such
as the “Regulations on the Quality Management of Construction
Projects” to prevent mistakes and defects.

For proper implementation of the relevant regulations,
the Company makes sure that the relevant construction
requirements are met by carrying out regular on-site inspection
with a third-party construction supervision institution. The
Group also conducts construction assessments in terms
of safety, construction quality and project management
performance on a quarterly basis to ensure compliance with
local safety standards.

In the marketing process, the Group complies with laws and
regulations such as the “Regulatory Measures on the Sale of
Commercial Houses” and “Provisions on the Release of Real
Estate Advertisements’ in order to provide customers with
true and accurate property information. Meanwhile, the Group
adhere to the “Notice on Issuing the Model Commercial Housing
Sales Contract” and other laws and regulations to provide
clients with standardized sales contracts and protect their
interests.
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10.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

“Knowing our client” is the Group's starting point to build a
graceful community. The Group has comprehensive complaint
handling procedures, “customer relationship management’
(CRM) system and the Group’s complaint and risk reporting
systems to facilitate customer feedback.

Upon receiving complaints, customer service officers and
property agents on site will handle the complaints through
the CRM system that visualizes sales processes. Through inter-
departmental collaboration and proactive communication,
the Group resolves complaints effectively to bring satisfactory
services to the Group' s customers. To gather a wider range of
resident feedbacks and accordingly improve service quality, the
Group has established three channels, which make these reviews
more easily communicated to the Company s management:

1. District customer service center - immediate complaint
directly handled by property managers; and

2. Online reporting form - soliciting customers feedback
around the clock and directly reporting to the back-end
system of the Company;

The Group will continue to upgrade its service management
system and improve the privacy protection policy to safeguard
the interests of its clients.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

10.

BE_ZTTHF+_RA=+—HLHF
E - AERUANEEAREETY
BRAFTRME RN RBHBELZ
2 EE  BERLEFEURMBR
HEHBET ABEAFENEMEAR
FOERRZ B ©

AEERTTHREEFSE
B NNHEREEHE - XEEEH!
SEENRFREERE TELIE
FRAGEIE (CRM) R RN EEE
#F ~ EBR{E B LIRS o

EERIEPKFE > ERRBASH
RISMEREREIPISIE * BRE
BCRM R MIETT R RICIEH R IE
BIBRIR BB EREBRTSE * 1
RIZEFAEISEI AR ° RERER
MO - REEZHITEERNE
R~ B I SRR

S INAEL

RBER > ~EER _1I&uﬁm
B EERAEESNEEERE
2

1L NeEMEFRBO-—BYEE

BEAEEEOZ&EELIEMHED
FFERME ; &

2. BERHRE-BERIBRH
HREER TEHESEZERE
AERBERENRLG ©

REEKTE %%Eﬁﬁ“mﬁﬁ%% ’
BUBTEMHEERMRERR
INas¥ R P R AYAERE o

PhEEES

BEZZHFA+RB=+—H"=XK
EETANBEAREETHARN
IEBRRE ~ R ~ BGFRORREEH T

NBEAZENBRIERRERZIE
e

60

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



11.

™

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Integrity is a key element that drives steady growth. To prevent
corruption, the Group establishes clear regulations and
procedures for corporate management and supervision while
ensuring employees comprehension of work duties. Also, the
Group sets up an inspection department and assign project
inspectors to implement ethical management for each project
and department.

The Group fully complies with national laws and regulations and
prohibits staff from bribing any person, namely civil servants,
government officials, or connected persons. Staff members
are also forbidden from embezzlement, theft, concealment, or
misapplication of the Company s assets. When becoming aware
of suspected corrupt conduct, the Group carries out internal
investigation and take disciplinary actions against the staff
concerned, including duty suspension and contract termination.
If the case involves violation of national laws, offender will be
taken to the concerned departments.

The Group’s suppliers have signed binding agreement on
integrity to ensure corruption-free operating practices of
suppliers and prevent bribery and conspiracy. The Group has
set up a report and reward system for supplier, employees and
other stakeholders for whistle blowing of malpractice. Reports
are handled by the risk management department and then
scrutinized by the internal audit department. The Group will
improve the anti-corruption system and step up supervision to
support its plan of sustainable development. During 2020, no
corruption cases were filed against any member of the Group.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Supporting education and building a more productive
community are the main focus of the Group’s community
investment strategy and the donations made by Redco Charity
Foundation, the charity fund established by the Group. In 2020,
the Group donated RMB14,454,000 to Tianjin Redco Charity
Organisation (KZNEEZESEE), Red Cross Society of China,
Shenzhen University, Jinjiang Qingyang Education Development
Organisation (B IM BB HE LR E £ T) and some other
foundation.
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The Board hereby presents its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in the property development, property
management services, property investment services, project
management services and healthcare services business in the
People s Republic of China. During the year, there were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’ s principal activities.

The activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
14a to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Overview

In 2020, under the new trend of a slower growth in the real estate
industry, the Group achieved a stable growth in operating results
and increased profitability, leveraging on its efficient operations,
prudent financial strategies and the proactive strategic investment
layout amid the COVID-19 pandemic. During the reporting period,
the Group attained a profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB1,296.0 million, a year-on-year growth of 25.2%,
and the net debt to equity ratio slightly increased to 48.7%.

The Group upheld its idea of “striving for a beautiful life’, maintained
its strategies, focused on its quality of products and services and
explored new business opportunities. As the pioneer in the healthy
architecture, the Group upgraded our New Oriental Wellness
Architecture products to version 2.0 in December 2020. At the same
time, based on its operations and development idea of “full coverage
throughout the entire lifecycle’, the Group maintained its “Two-
Wheel” development strategy in property and diversified business
sectors, in order to extend the and achieve a closed loop along the
value chain of the industry.
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The fast-growing contracted sales achieved its record-high

In 2020, the Group launched the online home purchase platform
“Redco UG’ in response to the interrupted offline sales brought by
the COVID-19 pandemic, putting forward our integrated online and
offline selling strategies to facilitate recovery of funds. Meanwhile,
the Group also organized different campaigns under the new
selling model, namely, “Spring Home-Purchase Festival’, “Season
of Community Home Purchasing”, “618 Home Purchase”, “Open
referral’ to encourage the property purchase demand, boosting the
growth of sales.

The Group achieved contracted sales of approximately RMB40.975
billion and contracted total floor area of approximately 4,756,200
sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of 49.5% and 83.8%,
respectively, ahead of our annual sales target.

Continuous cultivating Yangtze River Delta and expanding quality
land bank

In 2020, the Group acquired 36 new pieces of land under our
proactive expansion strategy and sound investment strategy. In
recent years, the Group has insisted on the “1+3+N” global strategic
layout, with the Yangtze River Delta city cluster as the “Ist” core
region to be strengthened; the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, the Yangtze River Midstream City Cluster and the Bohai
Economic Rim as the “3” major sub-regions to be expanded; and
the “N” popular city clusters such as the Western Taiwan Straits City
Cluster and overseas markets. As of 31 December 2020, the Group’s
total land bank amounted to approximately 23.4 million sq.m.,
providing continuous impetus to the Group’ s quality development.
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Focusing on product quality and launching New Oriental Wellness
Architecture products version 2.0

In the post-epidemic era, consumers have put forward new
requirements for residential scenarios such as community
control, property services and architectural epidemic prevention
performance, and “healthy architecture” has presented a significant
opportunity for development. As the pioneer in healthy architecture,
the Group starts from the underlying logic of healthy living
relationship, re-examining “people and health’, “construction and
health”, and “health and service” relationships. The Group has
upgraded the New Oriental Wellness Architecture (NOWA) products
from version 1.0 to 2.0. according to four dimensions, namely, “One
single standard of epidemic prevention”, “Two housekeepers”,
“Three-dimensional healthy living” and “Four healthy living scenes’,
marking a brand new page in the development history of Redco's
healthy architecture product system.

Driven by diversified businesses and rapid development of the “two
housekeepers’

In recent years, while strengthening the property development
business, the Group has been promoting diversified business layout
in line with the development trend of the industry, in order to
extend the value down the line and incubate the closed loop of the
entire industry chain. The Group’ s diversified industries investment
group has developed and incubated diversified businesses, such
as healthcare, commerce, technology, property services, cultural
tourism and education from the perspective of the whole life cycle.
In 2020, the Group s revenue from other segments was RMB221.4
million.

The rapid development of UG Property Management of Redco
was demonstrated by surging number of management services
projects and significant improvement of service quality. UG
Property Management, Totalbuild Investments Group (& & #& £
B ), Gold Medal City (£ 2™ B) and Forest Properties (FRM#2£)
entered into strategic cooperation agreements, achieving win-win
situation and synergies. As the only healthcare brand with national
presence in the real estate industry, Yearning Health innovated
the “7+7+N” integrated care system, establishing the seven-layer
care system, including prevention, curing, emergency treatment,
referral, healthcare, nutrition and nursing, while involving 7 types
of specialist, namely, general practitioners, nutritionists, Chinese
medicine practitioners, pediatrician, etc., providing access to N kinds
of possibilities of healthy life.
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Market recognition to our financial health and strong funding
positions

In 2020, the Group had total cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash of RMB13.8 billion, reflected our sufficient liquidity, and our
net debt to equity ratio was 48.7%. The selling and management
expenses were well controlled and the key financial indicators were
healthy and safe.

With its good corporate governance and prudent financial
management, the Group successfully issued four of US dollar-
denominated bonds in 2020, totaling US$936 million. At the
same time, the Group has actively exploring diversified financing
methods, optimizing its debt structure and achieved a stable level
of assets and liabilities, which have been frequently recognized by
international and domestic rating agencies. In January 2021, Lianhe
Global assigned “BB-" to the Group and in March, Fitch upgraded
the rating to “B+’. Both rating agencies are bullish on the long-term
development of the Group and recognized its remarkable growth on
scale while maintaining a healthy financial leverage and a sufficient
land bank to support the further growth of the contracted sales. S&P
maintains the rating at “B”. Three rating agencies have given the
Group the outlook “Stable”.

Receiving awards leading to rising reputation

Leveraging on its rapid development and outstanding overall
strength in 2020, the Group was put on various authoritative
rating organizations lists and its brand reputation has increased
significantly. The Group has been awarded the 2020 China Real Estate
Excellence 100 (2020 FEIE#ES# 100#%E), the Top 10 China Listed
Real Estate Enterprises in terms of organic growth potential (FRE
FHEEAREREEITOPL0), the Top 10 China Listed Real Estate
Enterprises in terms of solvency (B + 7 & & & & 85 77 TOP10),
the Top 50 Listed Real Estate Enterprises with Comprehensive
Strength (#E_EHAB4RAEETOPS0), China Innovative Real Estate
Enterprise of the Year 2020 (2020 FEFEEAFOMERZE), the Top
10 Green and Healthy Demonstration Enterprises (+{E4B#EETRE
#2£), the 2020 Real Estate Companies Worth Watching in the Capital
Market 2020EBEAMBBENE#MEAF), Chinad s Listed Real
Estate Enterprise with Leading Product Quality - healthy housing 2020
Q020 EEHME AR ERIERLELE--BEMET), the Real Estate
Enterprise with Excellent Products in China 2020 (2020 fhE =it E & &
IEFH ), Social Welfare Entity 2020 (2020 E AT ERE), etc.
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The Group’ s UG Property Management were awarded Top 100
Property Service Enterprises in China 2020 (2020 &/ E¥) 2R &8
%), the Valuable Property Service Enterprise of the Year (EEEE
YIERFEEE), China Service Demonstration Enterprise (FERFE =
#b2), and the Outstanding Special Property Services Enterprise in
China 2020 (2020 FEIZEFERFBESE=ZRZE). Five of its projects
received 5 sub-division awards of Golden Site Award (2B R AEDE
&A#E), a global high-quality real estate project development award.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROJECTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group s property portfolio comprised
122 property development and investment projects with an
aggregate GFA of 23,377,184.7 square metres under various stages
of development remaining unsold in various cities in the PRC and
Australia. The following table sets forth a summary of our property
development and investment projects as at 31 December 2020:

Qo

EEETEEERYEET2020FHE
MERFERELE FEEBEMERF R
F -~ PERFRERE ~ 2020 PEIYIFES
BRFEFEERE  ETRERE KRR
BEE2NEREMERERERE-SK
BRENEE AL -

Bt ER R RIRERE

A ZETEF+ZRA=1+—H8’ £&H
MY 4R & BIE AL E KRN 2 @
MERTEREMREBEHREERN122
BEEMERERKEER QEEERE
23,377,184.7F F5 K o TRBAIFEMIKZ
ZTEF+A=+—HWEHMERZER
SEIEH .

Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BERAME
Total GFA®@ BAEE P ER Y
Project Site area® MR ES =t
]S Gt ER @ mE MIEEmEEC
(sg. m.) (sq. m.) (sg. m.)
(FHXK) (FEHK) (FFHXK)

JIANGXI REGION JIFEESE
Spain Standard HEE R 466,665.3 861,274.2 5,115.3
Riverside International EILERR 37,346.0 163,999.9 1,469.3
Bluelake County AR 135,285.0 286,794.7 14,879.9
Riverlake International BB 68,373.0 168,752.5 5,048.1
Imperial Mansion EIHER 41,993.3 103,594.8 7,470.3
Imperial Metropolis EHEE 84,093.3 210,142.7 32,129.3
Bluelake International HAE R 47,151.0 113,323.0 5,396.7
The Garden of Spring +E2EFR 30,378.0 15,278.0 11,334.7
Scenery Bay Bl 51,919.0 177,985.0 177,985.0
Delight Scenery == 62,455.0 123,856.6 25,733.2
YONG Lake Scenic Center &R 132,505.0 412,507.2 412,507.2
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EEgRE
o Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
=i N
Total GFA®@ B EE P ER Y
Project Site area® LY E £ iR &
]S {EthERE @ mEe WEEERBC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(FHXK) (FEHK) (FHHK)
Life Sunshine Town HanfEotin 33,396.4 50,181.8 50,181.8
The Phoenix - Phase | BB KX—EA 16,295.3 78,177.8 13,415.9
The Phoenix - Phase Il BEE#X=H 39,030.5 155,617.8 155,617.8
Eastern Imperial Garden RAEEERE 49,225.0 165,979.0 165,979.0
Eastern Exquisite RAKEE 23,209.0 75,630.6 75,630.6
Golden Mansion EEF 92,314.0 240,346.0 240,346.0
Royal City B8 225,296.0 642,093.3 642,093.3
Sunshine Capital PA=15 93,824.1 208,170.4 208,170.4
Eastern Harmony RAME 31,422.0 97,757.0 97,757.0
Eastern Crystal RAEE 57,876.0 177,645.0 177,645.0
One Riverside Glory BEEIH 52,896.0 158,124.3 158,124.3
Two Riverside Glory E2EEI-H 42,301.0 100,623.2 100,623.2
Eastern Grand RAEE 66,667.0 214,244.0 214,244.0
Fifth Avenue BMNERKE 107,814.9 642,971.9 511,171.9
Leisure’ s Mansion BRF 49,335.6 135,797.5 135,797.5
Rivera Mansion AN 101,008.5 311,874.2 311,874.2
Majestic Bay K& 108,665.6 390,000.0 390,000.0
Mid-Levels Villa FIE 46,415.4 115,473.7 115,473.7
Zhonghui Acadany House FhiE 2 fF 61,052.7 159,030.3 159,030.3
Royal Impression BEHR 49,780.5 148,609.6 148,609.6
Park Isle Lake AEIEH 59,811.0 186,159.2 186,159.2
Violet Pavilion KE/ 134,667.3 191,973.0 191,973.0
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Qo

Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
=i N
Total GFA®@ B EE P ER Y
Project Site area® LY E £ iR &
]S {EthERE @ mEe WEEERBC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(FHXK) (FEHK) (FHHK)
TIANJIN REGION KEEE
Sunshine Coast GitERE 481,394.0 1,445,893.2 917,647.4
Land Lot Nos. Al and A2 Al Rz A2 S35 69,336.2 55,469.0 55,469.0
Perfection Ocean 218E 159,465.9 316,654.0 316,654.0
Luminescence Ocean /s 68,827.0 130,921.7 130,921.7
Eastern Aesthetics IR E 105,115.2 310,991.2 310,991.2
HUNAN REGION A &
Changsha Phoenix RIVEEMHK 18,002.1 128,168.2 128,168.2
Yuelu Green Town EEEN 215,333.0 753,667.0 753,667.0
Yuelu Celebrity Town EEZH 140,000.0 350,000.0 350,000.0
Hangao Acadamy EaPLr
Mansion 67,613.7 252,117.1 252,117.1
Royal Terrace BEE 111,027.5 432,514.0 432,514.0
Yuelu Green Town EEEN 241,333.0 675,734.0 675,734.0
ZHEJIANG REGION A&
Cloud Metropolis ERg 132,701.0 467,684.9 467,684.9
Peaceful Sea EFIEHT 56,499.6 108,074.0 23,4457
Riviera One REEE 223,245.0 645,806.7 645,806.7
Peach Creek Villa WEEE 25,475 61,679.8 61,679.8
YuYao Project RPkER 78,512.0 241,627.7 241,627.7
JIANGXU REGION JIEREY
Jade Grand Mansion BERFER 41,533.0 126,600.9 126,600.9
Tongzhou Project BMN&IEE 88,043.0 244,037.1 244,037.1
Leisure’ s Maneion BRI 199,538.0 515,389.9 515,389.9
Time Spring Palace BN b 57,962.0 144,394.0 144,394.0
Yanshan Impression e Ll B 61,021.0 163,483.6 163,483.6
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EEgRE
o Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
=i N
Total GFA®@ B EE P ER Y
Project Site area® LY E £ iR &
]S {EthERE @ mEe WEEERBC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(FHXK) (FEHK) (FHHK)
SHANDONG REGION LEREH
Bluelake County TREAER 68,066.0 256,658.6 2,829.9
Royal Family xR 30,682.0 131,919.7 18,692.4
Imperial Mansion EER 44.966.0 125,742.3 14,387.8
Redco Visionary HERKIFE—HA 90,616.9 311,327.2 61,682.2
Redco Visionary Il NERKIH_HA 236,992.1 607,995.8 540,728.5
Spring Villa 7SR 268,113.0 596,669.4 418,258.0
Jiyang Il R K —ER 166,967.4 389,510.0 389,510.0
Grand Mansion IR 60,940.0 175,440.0 175,440.0
Leisure’ s Mansion BB 34,290.0 111,702.9 111,702.9
Sunshine Coast - Phase | fBitisE—5—8A 51,693.7 93,512.7 7,802.8
Sunshine Coast - Phase Il GisE—5_H 21,371.0 34,388.3 1,315.5
Sunshine Coast - Phase Il GiEFE—FH=H 33,142.0 81,358.2 3,418.7
Sunshine Coast - Phase IV Wyt ER — S IUHA 63,411.0 213,814.7 104,834.4
Sunshine Coast - Phase V fitEFE— S RHE 99,194.0 199,574.0 199,574.0
Cathay Palace AT 57,991.0 182,230.0 182,230.0
Imperial Mansion REQH 100,511.8 279,024.0 279,024.0
Delight Mansion RIRERT 133,352.0 375,577.5 375,577.5
Visionary B2 Lot SRR B2 88451 10,734.0 50,489.0 50,489.0
Visionary A7 Lot KA AT ZB 5> i 23,651.0 75,335.0 75,335.0
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Qo

Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BERAME
Total GFA®@ BAEE PR ERHY
Project Site area® LY E £ iR &
]S {EthERE @ mR @ MEEEmAC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(FHXK) (FEHK) (FHHK)
ANHUI REGION ZHE
Mix Kingdom Redco T o A 395,596.4 823,818.0 66,805.3
Prince Royal Family xR 88,025.5 300,887.9 31,506.5
Royal International EHEE 43,873.0 114,894.0 17,685.0
Bluelake City BRI 76,058.8 229,941.8 37,198.5
Majestic Residence KIRAF 67,931.0 198,138.0 135,960.2
Huaan Southern City BEERH 165,601.7 496,943.5 496,943.5
Cloud Terrace EHED 47,925.5 130,636.2 130,636.2
Royal Universe EBHXT 83,478.3 125,217.5 125,217.5
Bauhinia Residence KHIATF 56,185.5 140,610.5 140,610.5
Virtuous City e 363,736.9 880,110.0 420,701.9
Leisure’ s Mansion BRF 47,098.0 123,142.0 123,142.0
Mingbang Golden Age R EE 135,994.1 324,232.2 324,232.2
Prestige Mansion EAk=45i 48,580.8 152,541.0 152,541.0
Garden Lane yNEE: 61,199.8 157,613.4 157,613.4
HUBEI REGION b EE
Redco Courtyard I 100,411.0 112,217.4 91,295.5
Youthfulness BESF 61,450.2 113,693.4 113,693.4
Golden Bridge Horizon B R 30,364.0 91,046.9 91,046.9
Intelligence City 28 31,696.3 118,039.0 118,039.0
Redco Majestic Residence HeXIRF—ER 53,392.4 198,071.9 54,706.4
Redco Majestic NEXRIRT_HA
Residence Il 42,512.8 157,435.2 157,435.2
Fortune East InERER A 46,666.9 71,815.0 71,815.0
Scenery Mansion LIk ERTF 47,012.0 201,516.0 201,516.0
Delight Dragon City 1RIERE 158,891.0 556,118.5 556,118.5
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EEgRE
o Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
=i N
Total GFA®@ B EE P ER Y
Project Site area® LY E £ iR &
EH {EthERE @ mEe WEEERBC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(FHXK) (FEHK) (FHHK)
Royal City - Phase | mEE—%5—H 69,466.8 205,541.0 9,690.6
Majestic Mansion KIRERT 88,319.8 171,000.0 116,508.4
Royal Family xR 27,588.1 78,431.6 78,431.6
Royal Redco NEE 46,855.5 90,131.7 90,131.7
Yangxin Causeway Bay 5 31 48 7 e 457
Plaza 161,064.9 485,260.3 485,260.3
GUANGDONG REGION EREE
Royal International NEEHIEE 33,035.3 138,833.9 11,360.1
Royal Family Bt 30,819.6 95,493.7 15,172.5
Bluelake Landmark RNES 28,113.0 69,275.2 18,013.8
Center Mansion EEERT 17,428.0 74,617.7 74,617.7
Royal Mansion EEKF 13,611.1 36,217.4 36,217.4
Bluelake Mansion RN 12,543.8 41,452.0 41,452.0
Sky Palace EHEEE 48,179.0 220,954.9 220,954.9
Sky Terrace EI£RE 27,820.0 85,791.7 85,791.7
Huizhou Leisure’ s Mansion EMNEBIRAF 24,956.0 100,123.0 100,123.0
Blissful Bay 1RIRE 71,946 262,489.7 262,489.7
Jiangmen Leisur€ s Mansion  IPIEI&ERF 65,359.0 231,427.0 231,427.0
Riverside One BHNER 340,175.6 969,560.0 969,560.0
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Qo

Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BERAME
Total GFA®@ BAEE PR ERHY
Project Site area® LY E £ iR &
| = EtEE© mR @ MEEEmAC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(FEFHAK) (FFAK) (FFHAK)
FUJIAN REGION mEEE
Putian Causeway Bay Plaza  #HIREEES 170,330.7 430,888.8 430,888.8
Bayview i 18,306.0 53,034.1 3,466.7
Enjoy Peak 1RIEEE 13,336.0 58,647.7 58,647.7
Leisure’ s Mansion BT 40,279.0 151,406.0 151,406.0
Mount Yuelan iR L 186,656 518,725.2 518,725.2
Royal Central B8R 15,376.0 48,596.1 48,596.1
Tang Dynasty KEHR 83,199.0 250,000.0 250,000.0
Royal Glory HEERIR 28,381.0 117,230.0 117,230.0
OVERSEAS REGION BINEE
Prime 15,830.0 56,579.0 14,709.0
TOTAL aast 23,377,184.7
1. Information for “site area” is based on relevant land use rights BREMEHEE I N E R B AE R M

certificates, land grant contracts, tender documents, or other relevant
agreements (as the case may be).

2. “Total GFA” is based on surveying reports, construction works
commencement permits and/or construction works planning permits or
the relevant land grant contract and/or public tender, listing-for-sale or
auction confirmation letter.

3. “Total GFA under various stages of development remaining unsold”
include the GFA of the completed projects remaining unsold, GFA
of projects under development and the GFA of projects for future
development.

ER#E s TMHERR « BEXHR
HAMERA 7% (RIERME) °

MeEREmB I HERAERS  BE
TREBIFERHEZR TR
PE SRR L AR R, RARE
1R~ HHE LRSI ERERE o

TR T FIF PR BV A R & AR A
BIEEHREHNE R TIEEMNRER
B AETEENREERUAAI MR
REERMIAENRRER

72

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 increased by 44.8%
to RMB12,452.0 million from RMB8,602.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. Such increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in our GFA delivered for the fifth Avenue in Jiangxi, Bluelake
City in Anhai and Sunshine Coast and Redco Visionary in Shandong,
and was partially offset by the decrease in the GFA delivered for Royal
Family in Shandog, Prince Royal Family in Anhai and Delight Scenery
in Jiangxi. Total GFA delivered increased by 61.2% to 1,571,838 sq.m
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from 975,094 sq. m for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The increase in our total revenue was also
net-off by the decrease in the recognised average selling price (the
“ASP”) for the properties delivered in the year ended 31 December
2020. The ASP for properties delivered decreased to RMB7,781 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB8,692 for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing a 10.5% decrease which was primarily
due to the decrease in GFA delivered in Greater Bay Area which
recognised a relatively higher ASP.
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The following table set out a breakdown of the Group’ s revenue, GFA TREIIGHMEDIEN DRI A EER WG
delivered and recognised ASP by geographical segments: EXVERABRERITIIEBZH

i

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+-HLEFE

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“Z2EF “Z-nF ZBIEE “Z-nF ZBIEE “Z-NF
Revenue GFA Delivered Recognised ASP
G ERNEERR BRATIER
(RMB' 000) (sq.m) (RMB persq. m.)
(\RETT) (E7RK) (NE®7/FHK)
Greater Western Taiwan Straits B
Economic Zone TR 2,500,327 1,798,900 203,292 183,866 12,299 9,784
Central and Western Regions hEETE 5,049,726 2,983,860 922,044 387,722 5,477 7,696
Bohai Economic Rim RHELER
- Construction service* —BRRE 21,977 256,490 - - - -
- Properties sales —RHEHE 4,391,082 2,403,466 416,767 306,403 10,536 7,844
Greater Bay Area KEE 261,456 1,032,602 29,735 97,103 8,793 10,634
Others Hith
- Property management services —MEEERS 144,714 80,885 - - - -
- Project management services - BEEER% 59,436 33,552 - - - -
- Rental income —HSWA 15,825 10,574 - - - -
- Others —Hftr 1,456 1,992 — - — -
Total 3t 12,451,999 8602321 1571,838 975094 7,781 8692

*

Construction service represents the construction service provided by the * JE SR 7515 2 5 B OB R 1€ (A SR
Group in Jinan b
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A summary of the segment results is set forth below:

Greater Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone: segment
revenue for the Greater Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone
increased significantly by 39.0% to RMB2,500.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB1,798.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. Such increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in GFA delivered for Fifth in Jiangxi
and net-off by the decrease in GFA delivered for Delight Scenery
in Jiangxi.

Central and Western Regions: segment revenue for the Central
and Western Regions increased significantly by 69.2% to
RMB5,049.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
RMB2,983.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Such
increase was primarily attributable to the increase in the GFA
delivered for Peaceful Sea in Jiangxu and Bluelake City in Anhui.

Bohai Economic Rim: segment revenue for the Bohai Economic
Rim increased to RMB4,419.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 from RMB2,660.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. Such increase was primarily due to the increase
in the GFA delivered in Redco Visionary and Sunshine Coast in
Shandong net-off by the decrease in the GFA delivered for Royal
Family in Shandong and the decrease in the construction service
in Shandong district.

Greater Bay Area: segment revenue for the Greater Bay Area
decreased to RMB261.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 from RMB1,032.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in GFA
delivered for Bluelake Landmark Royal Family in Zhongshan.
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. Others: It mainly represents property management services
provided by our subsidiaries UG Property Management which
mainly for the property management services to our group
projects and project management services provided at our
headquarters in Shenzhen. The project management services
income mainly refers to the acquisition advisory service and
financing service to our joint venture project company.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased by 70.7% to RMB9,639.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from RMB5,648.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. Such increase was primarily due to the increase
in GFA delivered to 1,571,838 sq. m. for the year ended 31 December
2020 from 975,094 sq. m. for the year ended 31 December 2019;
netted off by the increase in average land acquisition cost per sq. m.
delivered amounted to RMB2,690 for the year ended 31 December
2020 from RMB2,263 for the year ended 31 December 2019. Such
increase in average land acquisition cost per sq. m. delivered was
primarily due to the general increase in the land acquisition cost over
PRC and increase in land cost by the acquisition valuation due to
business conbination accounting treatment.

Gross profit

Gross profit decreased by 4.8% to RMB2,812.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from RMB2,954.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Our gross profit margin decreased to 23%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from 34% for the year ended
31 December 2019. The decrease was primarily attributable to the
increase in average land acquisition cost and the decrease in ASP
from RMB8,692 in 2019 to RMB7,781 in 2020.

- Hfth: TEIEARMNNBEARERE
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Other gains, net

Other gain increased 61.6% to RMB719.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 from RMB445.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase of re-
measurement valuation gain for RMB251.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 and increase in bargain purchase arising from
acquisition of subsidiaries for RMB51.5 million and net off by the losses
on disposal of subsidiaries to RMB51.6 million which was gain for
RMB113.8 million in 2019.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by 65.6% to RMB743.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB448.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Selling and marketing
expenses mainly represent expenses incurred in the promotion of
our properties and the sales commission to the sales agents. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase in the marketing promotion
activities for the projects and the increase in the sales agency fee as
there was an increase in the contracted sales.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by 58.3% to RMB817.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB516.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. Such increase was primarily
due to the increase in salary expenses, legal and consultancy
expenses and office and travelling expenses because of the increase
in the number of projects located in different cities.
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Fair value gain on investment properties

The fair value gain on investment properties represents the increase
in the value on the commercial portion of the culture park in Tianjin
and a portion of the Redco Building in Shenzhen which is held for
rental. The fair value gain decreased by 95.9% to RMB2.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB63.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Fair value gain on investment properties upon transfer from
properties under development for sales

The fair value gain on investment properties upon transfer from
properties under development for sales represents the valuation
gain for the commercial properties of Sunshine Coast in Tianjin
when it changed from the properties under development for sales to
investment properties. This amount is nil in 2020.

Operating profit

As a result of the foregoing, operating profit decreased by 22.9%
to RMB1,973.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
RMB2,560.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Finance income

Finance income increased by 22.3% to RMB149.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from RMB122.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. Such increase was primarily attributable to the
loan to independent person and the increase in interest during the
year.
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Finance costs

Finance costs increased by 18.7% to RMB23.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from RMB20.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in
interest expense which is not eligible to be capitalised to projects
under development.

Share of profit/(loss) of investments accounted for using the equity
method, net

Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method,
net reported a profit of RMB26.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 from loss of RMB21.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, which mainly due to the increase of completion of
GFA delivery for the joint control entities in 2020.

Profit before income tax

As a result of the foregoing, profit before income tax for the year
ended 31 December 2020 decreased 19.5% to RMB2,126.3 million
from RMB2,641.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased by 37.3% to RMB683.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB1,089.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Such decrease was primarily due to the
decrease in PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT’) for RMB198.8 million as
a result of decrease in the gross profit of the Group and net-off by the
increase in the PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) for RMB302.3 million
due to the increase in the revenue recognised for the year.
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Profit for the year ended 31 December 2020

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 decreased by 7.0% to RMB1,442.8 million from RMB1,551.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The profit for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was mainly attributable to the profit in the
Greater Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone of RMB404.8 million,
Central and Western Regions of RMB412.1 million, Bohai Economic
Rim of RMB691.5 million, Greater Bay Area of RMB63.7 million and the
others segment loss for RMB129.3 million.

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 attributable to owners
of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company increased by 25.2% to RMB1,296.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from RMB1,034.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
decreased to RMB146.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
as compared with RMB516.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 which was mainly due to the decrease in the profit from
property development projects with other investors.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Position

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB9,649.4 million (31 December 2019: RMB11,094.3 million) and
restricted cash of RMB4,156.9 million (31 December 2019: RMB3,965.2
million) as at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’ s
cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Hong Kong dollar
(“HKS”), RMB, United States dollar (“US$”) and Australian Dollar
(“AUD”).

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB20,111.4 million (31 December 2019: RMB16,782.7 million).
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2020 2019
k=5 —E-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AREBTT AREFTT
Long-term bank borrowings RHAIRITERR 9,390,276 3,451,066
Senior notes BRER 4,009,532 1,243,720
Non-current borrowings JEBNHAfERR 13,399,808 4,694,786
Short-term bank borrowings AHRIRITIE™R 3,077,546 3,152,063
Senior notes BRER 2,681,103 5,630,402
5,758,649 8,782,465
Portion of term loan from bank ERRSRTTEER D

- due for repayment within one year —BR—FRNEERE 829,176 3,173,759

- due for repayment within one year which —BR—FERNEERE
contain a repayment on demand clause (BEREREREER) 123,721 131,683
Current borrowings BPERMERR 6,711,546 12,087,907
Total borrowings 1BRNAE%R 20,111,354 16,782,693
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The amounts based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements and the maturities of the Group s total borrowings
at the respective balance sheet dates (i.e. ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause) are shown below:

Qo

AEERKSBEEENERBRENEE
(BN EM T8 EER HH)EZEH%
HAIR (BN BB E AR EREERROZE)
I

2020 2019
RMB' 000 RMB 000

ARETT ARETT

Amounts of borrowings that are repayable: AR T YIHRREENEREEE !

- Within 1 year — 18R 6,711,546 12,087,907
- Between 1 and 2 years —1E2% 5,331,643 2,558,545
- Between 2 and 5 years —2E55H 8,068,165 2,136,241
Total borrowings 1BRAE%R 20,111,354 16,782,693

The carrying amounts of the Group s bank borrowings approximate
their fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant or the
borrowings carrying floating rate of interests.

OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Net debt to equity ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’ s net debt to equity ratio was
48.7% (31 December 2019: 17.9%). It is calculated as net debt divided
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowing less cash
and bank balance (including cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash). Total equity is as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Net current assets and current ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Group' s net current assets amounted to
approximately RMB24,301.3 million (31 December 2019: RMB11,858.3
million). The Group's current ratio, which is calculated as current
assets divided by current liabilities, was approximately 1.42 times as
at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 1.25 times).

Cost of borrowings

The Group' s average cost of borrowings (calculated by dividing total
interest expenses incurred, including interest capitalised by average
borrowings during this period) increased to 9.78% for the year ended
31 December 2020 from 9.33% for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had the following contingent liabilities in respect of
financial guarantees on mortgage facilities as at the dates below:
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Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities for FEAEREYESTERN
certain purchasers of the Group’ s properties  1ZiBRIE 1R HAVEF

2020 2019
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RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARMFRE  ARETFT
9,694,814 9,001,924

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
the Group' s properties and provided guarantees to secure their
obligations of such purchasers for repayment. Such guarantees
will terminate upon the earlier of (i) the transfer of the real estate
ownership certificates to the purchasers which will generally occur
with the period ranging from six months to three years from the
completion of the guarantee registration; or (ii) the satisfaction of
mortgage loans by the purchasers of the properties.
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Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default of mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is obliged to repay the
outstanding mortgage principal together with accrued interest and
penalties owned by the defaulting purchasers to the banks and
the Group is entitled to retain the legal title and to take over the
possession of the related properties. The Group’ s guarantees period
starts from the date of grant of mortgage. The Directors consider that
the likelihood of default of payments by the purchasers is minimal
and their obligations are well covered by the value of the properties
and therefore the fair value of financial guarantees is immaterial.

There are certain corporate guarantees provided by the Group’s
subsidiaries for each other in respect of borrowings as at 31
December 2020. The Directors consider that the subsidiaries are
sufficiently financially resourced to fulfil their obligations.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 3,247
employees (31 December 2019: 2,966 employees). For the year ended
31 December 2020, the remuneration of the Group’ s employees
(including directors emoluments) amounted to approximately
RMB664.1 million. The remuneration of the Group s employees
includes basic salaries, allowances, bonus and other employee
benefits. The Group’s remuneration policy for the Directors and
senior management members was based on their experience, level
of responsibility and general market conditions. Any discretionary
bonus and other merit payments are linked to the profit performance
of the Group and the individual performance of the Directors and
senior management members. Further, the Group adopted a share
option scheme on 14 January 2014. Further information of such share
option scheme is available in the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The Company provided on-the-job
training, induction courses together with other training programmes
for the employees at different positions to raise their professionalism
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
approximately RMB21,762.8 million (31 December 2019: RMB18,843.5
million) for overdrafts, bank loans and trade financing. The unutilised
banking facilities as at 31 December 2020 amounted to RMB1,557.0
million (31 December 2019: RMB2,060.8 million).

These facilities were secured by bank deposits, certain properties
under development held for sale provided by the Group’s
subsidiaries, the Group’ s equity interests in certain subsidiaries and
corporate guarantee.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 23 March 2021(after trading hours), the Company (as borrower),
certain subsidiaries of the Company (as original guarantors) and
Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited (as leader) entered into a
facility agreement (the “2021 Facility Agreement’) in respect of
a HK$117,000,000 transferable term loan facility with a term of 36
months from the date of the Facility agreement.

On 11 December 2020 (after trading hours), the Company (as
borrower), certain subsidiaries of the Company (as original
guarantors), certain financial institutions (as original mandated
lead arrangers) and a facility agent entered into a facility agreement
(the “December 2020 Facility Agreement”) in respect of a
US$100,000,000 transferable term loan facility with a term of 36
months from the date of the Facility agreement. Subject to the terms
of the Facility, the total commitment may be increased to not more
than US$150,000,000 as a result of the accession of lender(s).
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On 10 June 2020 (after trading hours), the Company (as borrower),
certain subsidiaries of the Company (as original guarantors), Global
Edge Opportunity VI Limited (as lender) entered into a facility
agreement (the “June 2020 Facility Agreement’) in respect of a
US$50,000,000 transferable term loan facility with a term of 364 days
from the date after the utilisation date and at an interest rate of 10%
per annum.

On 27 March 2019, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “2019 Facility Agreement’, together with the June
2020 Facility Agreement, December 2020 Facility Agreement and
2021 Facility Agreement, the “Facility Agreements’) with a group of
financial institutions as lenders, pursuant to which the lenders agreed
to make available to the Company a USS denominated transferrable
term loan facility in an aggregate amount of US$175 million, with a
term of 36 months from the date of the 2019 Facility Agreement and
an interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 5.1% per annum.

Under each of the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if:

i.  Mr. Huang Ruoging (“Mr. Huang’) and Mr. Wong Yuek Hung
(“Mr. Wong”) individually or collectively do not or cease to
hold (directly or indirectly) 51% or more of the beneficial
shareholding interest, carrying 51% or more of the voting rights,
in the issued share capital of the Company or do not or cease to
maintain management control over the Company; or

iil.  Mr. Huang is not or ceases to be the president and an executive
director of the board of directors of the Company.

On and at any time after the occurrence of an event of default
which is continuing, the facility agent may cancel all or part of the
commitments, or declare that all or part of the loans, together with
accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued or outstanding be
immediately due and payable.
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As at 31 December 2020, US$175 million, USS50 million, USS60 million
and HKDO remained outstanding under the 2019 Facility Agreement,
June 2020 Facility Agreement, the December 2020 Facility Agreement
and 2021 Facility Agreement respectively.

The Company will continue to make relevant disclosure in its
subsequent interim and annual reports of the Company pursuant to
Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules for as long as circumstances giving rise
to the obligation under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules continue to
exist.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company did
not have other disclosure obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed, no other significant investments held, nor were
there any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year ended 31 December 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Company will continue to purchase land located in the
strategically selected cities. It is expected that the Group's internal
resources and bank borrowings will be sufficient to meet the
necessary funding requirements. Save as disclosed in this report, the
Company did not have any plans of significant investments or capital
assets as at the date of this report.
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IMPORTANT EVENT AFFECTING THE GROUP AFTER 31 DECEMBER
2020

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated on 18
February 2020. As at the date of this report, the Group has terminated
the Share Purchase Agreement dated 18 February 2020 with MCSI and
Infradev due to the expiry of long stop date of the Share Purchase
Agreement. As at the date of this report, the Group has not provided
any funding to the project.

Save as disclosed, no other important event affecting the Group has
taken place since 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report.

OUTLOOK

The year of 2021 will be a year of opportunities and challenges for
real estate enterprises. The full recovery of the economy after the
epidemic will provide energy to the industry. Meanwhile, under
the keynote of housing without speculation (5 £ A &) and city-
based policies (A # i £5), the market supply and demand will
gradually return to stability in 2021, and demand will become more
rational. With the increasing concentration of the industry, property
development should not focus on only grasping the opportunity of
various cities and rational strategic layout, but also look into the
advantageous areas, strengthen key cities, study and analyze the
needs of different customer groups, and enhance the cooperation to
create more room for development.

The year of 2021 marks the 29" anniversary of Redco Group. Having
come a long way, the Group has weathered the up and down and
made great achievements from a modest beginning and honed its
brilliance with perseverance in the past 29 years. In 2021, the Group
will launch a new three-year strategic plan, insist on the two driving
forces of real estate and diversified businesses and the “one main
and three sub-strategies” of development.
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In 2021, taking into account the current situation and our own
development needs, the Group will continue to consolidate its five
business strategies of investment, financing, operation, products
and diversification, and enhance its comprehensive strengths in five
core competencies of investment and financing, cash flow turnover,
marketing, products and branding, so that our reputation will prevail.
At the same time, we will strategically focus on the Yangtze River
Delta region, which is the strongest metropolitan area in China,
to keep up with the development of the times, achieve a balance
between “maintaining current status” and “striving for change”, and
sustain quality growth.

In order to achieve the three-year strategic goal, the Group will
insist on high-quality development, always focus on the quality and
efficiency of business operations, retain talents, promote innovation
and efficiency. We will also continue to invest in the research and
development of healthy architecture and its implementation based
on our principle of “hard technology + soft services’, in order to set
an industry benchmark, and build up the core competitiveness of our
products and entry barrier to protect our enterprise development.

Based on our New Oriental Wellness Architecture products, the
Group' s diversified industries investment group will focus on
developing property and healthcare sectors, and on building its
core strengths and core capabilities in the fields of digitalization,
technology research, business and cultural tourism education, to lead
the new trend in the industry and create a new height of strategic
development with one industry as the mainstay and diversified
business as vertical development.

The future is calling and it is the right moment to start the journey.
In 2021, the real estate industry entered the era of long-distance
running. The Group has the mentality and strength of a long-
distance runner and is confident to run to a better future. Along
the new journey towards a more ambitious strategic goal, the
Group will steadfastly gather the wisdom and strength of all Redco
people, continue to strive for the best without forgetting the original
intention, strengthen the solid foundation, empower the progress,
and jointly build the Company as the healthy architecture leader and
the most valuable comprehensive real estate holding group in China.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’ s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties which are not
currently known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Risks pertaining to the property market in the PRC

The Group’s business and revenue growth is dependent on
favourable economic conditions in the PRC, particularly the
performance of the PRC residential property market in the cities in
which the Group develops its property development projects, and
therefore any potential decline in demand for properties, property
sales or property prices in the PRC, particularly in the cities where
the Group has operations, could have a material adverse effect on its
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Operational Risks

The Group’ s operations are subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to the property related businesses. Shortages of materials,
equipment and skilled labour, labour disputes, default on the part
of its buyers, contractors and strategic business partners, natural
catastrophes, adverse weather conditions, inadequacies or failures
of internal processes or other external factors may have various
levels of negative impact on the results of the Group' s operations.
Additionally, accidents may happen despite systems and policies set
up for their prevention, which may lead to the Group’ s financial loss,
litigation, or damage in reputation.

Further, property development is capital intensive in nature. The
Group has financed its property development projects primarily
through proceeds from sales of properties and bank borrowings. It
may also access the capital markets to raise further financing. Its
ability to obtain external financing in the future is subject to a variety
of uncertainties, including the condition of the international and
domestic financial markets and financing availability and general
economic conditions in the PRC. If the Group fails to secure adequate
financing or renew its existing loans prior to their expiry as a result
of these governmental actions and policy initiatives, there may be
a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and
financial condition of the Group.
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Foreign Exchange Risks

As at 31 December 2020, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily with respect to certain of its bank borrowings and senior
notes which were denominated in HKS and USS. RMB experienced
certain fluctuation against HKS and USS$ during the year 2020 which
is the major reason for the exchange differences recognised by
the Group. The Group does not have a formal hedging policy and
have not entered into any foreign currency exchange contracts or
derivative transactions to hedge the foreign exchange risk.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible developer, the Group has endeavoured to comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and adopted effective environmental measures to ensure that the
conducting of the Group s business meets the applicable local
standards and ethics in respect of environmental protection.
The Group puts great emphasis in environmental protection and
sustainable development. Through the establishment of an ever-
improving management system, enhancement on procedure
monitoring, energy conservation and environment protection were
strongly promoted, leading to the remarkable achievement of
environmental management.

Several measures have been implemented in order to mitigate
environmental pollution, including the environmental protection
as one of the key factor when we consider the major contractor in
the contract tendering; we implemented the electronic approval
system (“EAS’ system) to reduce the use of paper in our working
environment.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group. The Audit Committee is delegated
by the Board to monitor the Group s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and such policies
are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and
relevant operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP' S STAKEHOLDERS
Workplace Quality

The Group believes that the directors, senior management and
employees of the Group are instrumental to the success of the Group
and that their industry knowledge and understanding of the market
will enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.
As such, the Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the Eligible
Participants (as defined below) who contributed to the success of the
Group' s operations.

The Group provides on the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees career progression. Through
different trainings, staff s professional knowledge in corporate
operations, occupational and management skills are enhanced. The
Group also organised staff-friendly activities for employees, such as
annual dinner, to promote staff relationship.

The Group provides a safe, effective and congenial working
environment. Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are
implemented to ensure the working environment is healthy and
safe. The Group provided health and safety communications for
employees to present the relevant information and raise awareness
of occupational health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of its staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, its employees are entitled
to medical insurance benefits.
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Relationships with the Group’ s other stakeholders

The Group placed efforts in maintaining good relationships various
financial institutions and banks given that the Group's business is
capital intensive and require on-going funding for the development
and growth of the Group’ s business.

Further, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of
quality in the products to its customers in order to stay competitive.

During the year, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its financial institutions and/or customers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 118.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB5
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (year ended
31 December 2019: RMB3 cents) to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 2 July 2021.
The final dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholder at
annual general meeting to be held on 25 June 2021 (“AGM”) and will
be payable on or around 14 July 2021. The proposed final dividend
shall be declared in RMB and paid in HKS. The final dividend payable
in HKS will be converted from RMB at the average exchange rate of
HKS against RMB announced by the People’'s Bank of China on 25
June 2021.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for development and/or sale
are set out on page 302 to page 316 of this report.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no new shares
issued by the Company.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, stipulating that any
new shares shall be offered according to the respective shareholding
of the existing shareholders when new shares are issued.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB14.45 million (2019: RMB4.52 million).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 301 of this annual
report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’ s turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers was less than 5%.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases from the Group s
largest and the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
4.9% (2019: 4.7%) and 28.2% (2019: 27.9%) of total cost of sales of the
Group, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or any
of their close associates or any Shareholders of the Company, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the issued shares
has any interest in the above- mentioned suppliers and customers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

On 19 May 2020, the Company issued Senior Notes due 2023 with
principal amount of US$150,000,000 at a coupon rate of 13% per
annum for the purposes of refinancing certain of its indebtedness.
Further details relating to the issue of the Senior Notes due 2023 are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 20 May 2020.

On 19 May 2020, the Company made an offer to purchase for cash
its outstanding 11.0% senior notes due 2020 (the “2020 Notes’)
to the maximum aggregate principal amount of the 2020 Notes at
a purchase price of US$1,000 per US$1,000 principal amount of
the 2020 Notes. On 28 May 2020, The Company has accepted such
tender of the 2020 Notes for US$120,001,000. The tendered 2020
Notes was subsequently cancelled at settlement, following which
USS$190,399,000 in aggregate principal amount of the 2020 Notes
remained outstanding subject to the terms of the indenture governing
the 2020 Notes.

On 30 July 2020, the Company issued Senior Notes due in 2022 with
principal amount of US$220,000,000 at a coupon rate of 11.0% per
annum for the purposes of refinancing certain of its indebtedness.
Further details relating to the issue of the Senior Notes due 2022 are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31 July 2020.

On 11 August 2020, the Company issued Senior Notes due 2021 with
principal amount of US$300,000,000 at a coupon rate of 8.5% per
annum for the purposes of refinancing certain of its indebtedness.
Further details relating to the issue of the Senior Notes due 2021 are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 August
2020.

On 10 November 2020, the Company issued Senior Notes due 2024
with principal amount of US$266,000,000 at a coupon rate of 9.9% per
annum for the purposes of refinancing certain of its indebtedness.
Further details relating to the issue of the Senior Notes due 2024 are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 November
2020.
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Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company s
listed securities for the year ended 31 December 2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 14 January 2014, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board may, at its
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such number
of new shares of the Company (the “Shares’) to (a) full-time or
part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; (b) any directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
(c) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries (the “Eligible Participants”) as
described in the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Upon acceptance of the
option, the grantee shall pay HKS1 (or an equivalent amount in RMB)
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, no share
option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

During the Year, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or
lapsed and there is no outstanding share option under the Scheme.

(a) Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 160,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the
issued capital of the Company as upon completion of the global
offering of the shares of the Company, excluding for this purpose
Shares which may have been issued upon the exercise of the
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes of our
Company). Subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/
or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time, the Board may: (i) renew this limit at any time
to 10% of the Shares in issue as of the date of the approval by
the Shareholders in general meeting; and/or (ii) grant options
beyond the 10% limit to Eligible Participants specifically
identified by the Board.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options shall
be granted under any schemes of the Company (including the
Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being
exceeded. The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall be adjusted, in such manner as the
auditor of the Company or an approved independent financial
adviser shall certify to be appropriate, fair and reasonable in the
event of any alteration in the capital structure of the Company in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme whether
by way of consolidation, capitalisation issue, rights issue, sub-
division or reduction of the share capital of the Company but in
no event shall exceed the limit prescribed in this paragraph.

Maximum number of options to each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular by the Company
which shall comply with Rules 17.03(4) and 17.06 of the Listing
Rules containing the identity of the Eligible Participant, the
numbers of and terms of the options to be granted (and options
previously granted to such participant) the information as
required under Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the disclaimer required
under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and (ii) the approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time with such
Eligible Participant and his associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) abstaining from voting.
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(c)

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of: (i)
the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities; (ii) the average of the official
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

The period within which the Shares must be exercised under
an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more
than 10 years after it has been granted.

Remaining life of Share Option Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from 14 January 2014.

(c)

(d)
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Yeuk Hung

Mr. HUANG Ruoging

Mr. TANG Chengyong

Mr. Wang Weifeng (Resigned on 28 May 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David GBS, BBS, JP
Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS
Mr. YIP Tai Him

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set forth in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles of this report.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, one-
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from their offices
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. As
such, Mr. Wong, Mr. Huang and Mr. Yip shall retire from office and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors independent.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung, Mr. Huang Ruoging, Mr. Tang Chengyong,
Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen and Mr. Yip Tai Him
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from January 2020. Such service contract can be
terminated by either party thereto serving at least three months
notice prior to the expiry of the term thereof. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors signed an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years with effect from 30 January 2020.
Mr. Wang Weifeng resigned as executive Director with effect from 28
May 2020.

None of the Directors (including any Director who may be proposed
for re-election at the Annual General Meeting) has entered into any
service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, Directors or other officers of the
Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall
be indemnified from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of his/her duties in his/her office, except such (if any) as
he/she shall incur or sustain through his/her own fraud or dishonesty.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its Directors and officers.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares, or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The Group also participates in an employee
social security plan as required by the regulations in the PRC, under
which the Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of the
payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. Save as disclosed
above, the Group has not operated any other retirement benefits
schemes for the Group’ s employees.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS IN COMPETITION
BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition dated 17 January 2014 (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) was entered into between the Company and
the controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. Wong, Mr. Huang, Global
Universe and Times International, who have undertaken to the
Company (for itself and for the benefit of its subsidiaries) that it or
he would not, and would procure that its or his associates (except
any members of the Group) would not directly or indirectly, either
on its or his own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any
person, firm or company, among other things, carry on, participate
or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold shares or interests
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, principal, agent,
director, employee or otherwise) in any companies or businesses
that compete directly or indirectly with the property development
and property investment business engaged by the Group, unless
otherwise permitted according to the Deed of Non-Competition.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance by them
and their associates with the Deed of Non-Competition.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-Competition and assessed whether the controlling Shareholders
have abided by the non-competition undertaking. The independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that the controlling Shareholders
have not been in breach of the non-competition undertaking during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors or their respective associates
have any interests in any business that competed or is likely to
compete with the Group' s business (other than the Group’ s business)
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interest in the Company:

Qo

Name of Director Nature of interest

Total number of Shares

B FATES BRI T RE TG
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15015 352 R AE SN sx IR PR it B 50 B9
BB R RBRETRIENE A LT
RSP m AR BT

RAEAE

Percentage of the
Company s issued
share capital

LEATBRIT
R EmE VI EE S [ ZNE=L dan
Mr. Wong (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 1,387,258,000(L)(Note 1) 39.06%
BEAEMUAEE (HE2) LB R (F5E 1)
Mr. Huang (Note 3) Beneficiary of a family trust 947,018,000(L)(Note 1) 26.66%

=EFRE (MEE3) EN BRI

(MFEE 1)
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Notes:
(1) The letters “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  1,387,258,000 Shares are registered in the name of Global Universe
International Holding Limited (“Global Universe’). As at 31 December
2019, Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung (“Mr. Wong”) beneficially owned 100% of the
issued share capital of Global Universe and was therefore deemed to be
interested in the 1,387,258,000 Shares held by Global Universe by virtue
of the SFO.

(3) 947,018,000 Shares are registered in the name of Times International
Development Company Limited (“Times International’). The entire
share capital of Times International was held by Honour Family Holdings
Limited (“Honour Family’). Honour Family was held as to 100% by UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited. Mr. Huang is the settlor and a beneficiary of the
discretionary trust, he was deemed to be interested in the 947,018,000
Shares held by Times International.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in this annual
report, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 was the
Company, its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES FERRMNEFHES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the Directors were aware of, the RN_E_ETF+_A=+—H" ZRER
following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of  BFEHRIIEKEMIEI6CKEFEENRE
the Company) interests or short position in the shares and underlying SaoAracsk * MESAAE  MTAL
shares of the Company, being interests of 5% or more, as recorded (BEERARBERITHRABRIN RAR
in the register required to be kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO B IR 1h R ABRA R (7 B i Kok B (BIER
were as follows: 5% UL ERER) I F ¢

Qo

Percentage of
the Company's

Number of Long/Short issued
Name Nature of interest Shares position share capital
AT
2217
2is REEE AR ESCE] I = [ ZNE=L dan
Global Universe (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 1,387,258,000 Long Position 39.06%
IRFERE (M95E 1) FaEAA wa
Times International (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 947,018,000 Long Position 26.66%
BRFACEERR (P 2) BEmEAA wa
Honour Family (Note 2) Interest in controlled 947,018,000 Long Position 26.66%
corporation
Honour Family (5 2) R EEER 59}
UBS Trustees (Note 2) Trustee 947,018,000 Long Position 26.66%
UBS Trustees (Fff5E2) ZEEA wa
Power Ray (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 311,609,322 Long Position 8.77%
Power Ray (FfizE3) EmsERE A SF=)
Mr. NG Leung Ho (Note 3) Interest in controlled 311,609,322 Long Position 8.77%
corporation
REEFRE (HEE3) S EEE R 55}
Notes: e -

(1) RERESEH BFEERZERARLQE
(MRFER) (—HKNEBRERES (T3H
BREZES ) EMMINERAR) WS
BRARHEEIEE(TEREDFE < R
BEEF ARG BAERGANIERT
B A BRI PR #a o

(1)  As at the date of this report, the entire share capital of Global Universe
International Holdings Limited (“Global Universe”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI’) with limited liability,
was held by Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung (“Mr. Wong”). By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Wong was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Global
Universe.
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(2)  The entire share capital of Times International Development Company
Limited (“Times International’) was held by Honour Family Holdings
Limited (“Honour Family’). Honour Family was held as to 100% by UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited (“UBS Trustees’). Mr. Huang is the settlor and a
beneficiary of the discretionary trust. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Times International.

(3) To the best knowledge of the Directors, the entire share capital of
Power Ray Investment Development Limited (“Power Ray’), a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability, was wholly owned by Mr.
NG Leung Ho. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. NG Leung Ho is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Power Ray.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS MATERIAL INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY S BUSINESS

Save as the transactions set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director or an entity connected with the
Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or
at the end of the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There is no connected party transaction conducted during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had certain
related parties transactions under the applicable accounting
standards. There are no related parties transactions disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements which constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction which should be
disclosed pursuant to Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The Company confirmed
that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance between the
controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries
and the Group has been made during the year ended 31 December
2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM
to be held on Friday, 25 June 2021, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 22 June 2021 to
Friday, 25 June 2021, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer documents should
be lodged for registration with Company s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712- 1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 21 June 2021.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who qualify for the final dividend, the register of members of
the Company will be closed on Friday, 2 July 2021. In order to
qualify for the final dividend, all transfer documents should be
lodged for registration with the Company s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 30 June 2021.
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RESERVES

Details of the changes in reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders was approximately HK$4,723.5 million.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the
Directors knowledge as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float as required by the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
which has indicated its willingness to continue in office as the
Group s external auditor for 2021 for Shareholders approval at the
Annual General Meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If any shareholder of the Company is unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares, it is advised to consult
an expert.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Yeuk Hung
Chairman

29 March, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
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i
pwc

To the Shareholders of Redco Properties Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Redco Properties Group
Limited (the “Company”’) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 118 to 300, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs’) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code’), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Classification of investments

. Impairment of goodwill

»
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Qo

Key Audit Matter
RSB EIA

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMESNFIEERAEESER

Classification of investments

Refer to Note 2.2, 14, 15 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group made investments with consideration of
approximately RMB1,734.3 million in subsidiaries and
approximately RMB342.1 million in associates and
joint ventures.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
investments and the fact that significant judgements
were made by management in determining the
appropriate classification of the investments that
involved complex terms and arrangements.

REDHE
FR2RAHPBRERME2.2 14 15K 27

BETZ_ZHE+_A=1T—HILFE’> SEERENKH
BABNABOAARE 734388 MKERBER
AIRGERENRBOSARK I 1IBET

HPELEFERIEZERARENRE  UNEEENE
RS RAERHR R R L R BN G B D ER (FHH E 2 -

Our procedures in relation to the classification of
investments included:

We read the contracts, agreements and
Memorandum and Articles of Association in
relation to those investments made in the current
year. We assessed the terms and conditions of
those investments, including evaluation of whether
there is any indication or evidence of control,
joint control or significant influence found in the
detailed arrangements of these investments, to
determine whether appropriate classification had
been adopted by management in relation to those
investments based on the consideration of the
totality of facts surrounding the operations of the
investee companies and the terms of the contracts
and agreements.

We discussed with management and obtained
management assessment to understand their
critical judgement that they had applied in the
classification of investments.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FAEETEIE (8)

»
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B ZEETRS

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BMESE A RIERARETEIE (18)

Classification of investments (Continued)

REDEE)

. We also discussed with management to obtain an
understanding on the details of such investments,
including relevant activities of the investee
companies and how decisions about those
activities are made, how the Group and other
investors participate in the decisions, the rights
and power of the Group and other investors on the
investee companies.

Based on the procedures performed, we noted that
management' s judgement applied in the classification
of investments was supported by available evidence.
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Qo

Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FAEETEIE (8)

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BMESE A RIERARETEIE (18)

Impairment of goodwill

Refer to Note 2.9, 2.10 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group carried RMB285.7 million goodwill on the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020.

Goodwill is required to be assessed for impairment
at least annually. In performing the impairment
assessment, management compared the carrying
value of the cash generating unit to which the
goodwill is allocated with its recoverable amount
based on a discounted cash flow forecast to
determine if any impairment provision was required.
Management has concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the Group’ s goodwill in the
current year.

EERE
FEREHYBREME2.9 2.10%13
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ERIEHITRE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
goodwill included:

We obtained an understanding of the
management s internal control and assessment
process of impairment assessment of goodwill and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud;

We assessed management s identification of CGU,
allocations of assets and overall methodology
adopted by management with reference to the
requirement in the relevant accounting standards;

We compared budgeted results in prior years
forecast with actual performance of the current
year to assess the reliability of management s cash
flow forecast and made enquiries for the reasons of
any significant variations identified;
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FAEETEIE (8)

»

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
B ZEETRS

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BTSN RIERRETEIE (18)

We focused on this area as the assessments made
by management involved significant estimates and
judgements. The key assumptions used are as follows:

- Compound annual growth rate;
- Budgeted gross margin;
- Long-term growth rate; and

- Pre-tax discount rate.

HFREIE D BB EREEMMEZ &Y REXRES KR
FIER o FREER Z BRRRIT -

- WAFEEE;

—  EEEAE;
- EfER;R
—  BRATRIEE

. We challenged the key assumptions adopted in the
cashflow forecast based on historical data, actual
performance as well as industry data and assessed
whether there were indicators of management bias
in the selection of these assumptions;

. We involved our internal valuation specialists
to assess the appropriateness of the valuation
assumptions and methodologies used in
determining the recoverable amounts;

. We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by
management in the process of impairment
assessment of goodwill;

. We reviewed sensitivity analyses prepared by
management on the key assumptions adopted in
the cashflow forecast to ascertain the extent of
change in those assumptions would be required
for the goodwill to be impaired.

Based on the procedures performed, we noted that
management s judgement applied in the impairment
assessment of goodwill was supported by available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’ s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor' s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor s report is Mr. Chow Shiu Hay, Antonio.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BHETR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —F - FF+_—F=+—HIFFE

Qo

Note 2020 2019
hEd —E8F “EB-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT AREBFT
Revenue Wz 5 12,451,999 8,602,321
Cost of sales THEM AR 6 (9,639,342) (5,648,207)
Gross profit EF 2,812,657 2,954,114
Other gains, net Hhm 358 7 719,359 445,194
Selling and marketing expenses HE R EiHEMAS 6 (743,036) (448,737)
General and administrative expenses —R AT S 6 (817,774) (516,701)
Fair value gain on investment properties  &&EYEANFER G 12 2,606 63,723
Fair value gain on investment properties  {tIFEHHERIRIE T
upon transfer from properties under BARBYMENRTE
development for sales W 12 — 62,432
Operating profit REEF 1,973,812 2,560,025
Finance income FEEUA 9 149,846 122,486
Finance costs EL=1 %N 9 (23,726) (19,981)
Finance income, net MBEUWAFEE 126,320 102,505
Share of profit/(loss) of investments FELIERE R A AR E
accounted for using the equity wH, (B518) $48
method, net 15 26,379 (21,545)
Profit before income tax MRERTS IR AN 2,126,311 2,640,985
Income tax expense Fri§fRMA= 10 (683,500) (1,089,325)
Profit for the year FRiEF 1,442,811 1,551,660
Profit attributable to: THIANLRELER -
Owners of the Company KABIPREE 1,295,966 1,034,931
Non-controlling interests PRI R 146,845 516,729
1,442,811 1,551,660
Earnings per share for profit TRFIFMBERGERN
attributable to owners of the Mz SRR
Company for the year
- Basic and diluted (expressed in —ERRE#E (USK
RMB cents per share) AREBDERT) 31 36.49 29.14

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FHtE R RS S FEMI M A —HFRIEE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
aHZEBER

BEZE -ZTF+—H=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2020

: 2020 2019

ot b 2 “E-NEF
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARBTT ARETF T
Profit for the year FERiEF 1,442,811 1,551,660
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hth2mkss (5518)
Item that may not be reclassified to profit AEAgGREMNDEEEmNIER
or loss
- Currency translation differences —EMERELE 436,037 (88,781)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ Hfth2mEua /(B5iR) 488 436,037  (88,781)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZENELEZE 1,878,848 1,462,879
Total comprehensive income THALEGZEKELLEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABIFTEE 1,730,004 946,770
Non-controlling interests FEPERIM R 148,844 516,109
Total comprehensive income for the year FEREEINELEZE 1,878,848 1,462,879

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should it S 2 T U 2R B P B 5T — B
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SHEEREAER

As at 31 December 2020 j* —FE _—FF+_H=+—H

Qo

Note 2020 2019
Ff5E 2T HF “E-NF
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARHEFIT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BB R 11 264,715 259,152
Investment properties BB 12 1,027,610 1,025,004
Intangible assets mvVEE 13 364,031 332,252
Investments accounted for using A AR E
the equity method 15 916,256 654,872
Deferred income tax assets FIEFRSIEE 16 1,428,001 834,614
4,000,613 3,105,894
Current assets TMENEE
Completed properties held for sale FIEHENBBRIY = 17 6,165,642 3,037,052
Properties under development for sale FIEHENMEFYE 18 50,085,317 30,969,759
Contract assets BNEE 5 695,239 700,000
Trade and other receivables and deposits &5 & EthFEUEIE
U ta s 19 2,838,368 2,595,926
Prepayments TAfTRIE 19 2,376,585 1,858,769
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW & & 2 RIE 33 119,718 59,949
Amounts due from associates FEW = A B FIE 33 1,470,072 482,845
Amounts due from non- FEUL FEAEHI It R E TR IE
controlling interests 32 4,000,464 3,951,248
Income tax recoverable EEEEE 415,878 788,393
Restricted cash ZREIRE 20 4,156,859 3,965,210
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 20 9,649,423 11,094,295
81,973,565 59,503,446
Total assets HMEE 85,974,178 62,609,340
Equity T
Equity attributable to owners AT ER LR
of the Company
Share capital fg s 21 139,632 139,632
Reserves G 22 6,667,423 5,041,820
6,807,055 5,181,452
Non-controlling interests JEEERI Y 6,140,620 4,453,096
Total equity g 12,947,675 9,634,548
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SHEERER
RCE-ZFEA+—FH=+—H As at 31 December 2020

Qo

Note 2020 2019
M{I’E\E —_= —?..'ﬂE ><_j-|.:£'5
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARBTT ARHEFIT
Liabilities af&
Non-current liabilities JERENER
Borrowings B 23 13,399,808 4,694,786
Deferred income tax liabilities EEPTERARE 16 1,954,477 634,906
15354285 5329692
Current liabilities mENAaE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERIE 24 15,352,054 12,020,186
Borrowings B 23 6,711,546 12,087,907
Amounts due to non-controlling interests  FE{tIEEHIMERERFNIE 32 6,075,226 5,146,101
Amounts due to associates EBE A RRIA 33 159,274 485,280
Amounts due to joint ventures FE & B ERIE 33 50,784 50,776
Contract liabilities BHEE 25 26,815,905 15,552,490
Income tax liabilities FriSMaE 2,507,429 2,302,360
ERE g 47,645,100
Total liabilities e (s 73,026,503 52,974,792
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 85,974,178 62,609,340

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction Ll EHEESEREARENHEE—HE
with the accompanying notes. & o

SIEHMNE 18 E0EMNHMBHREREHE
FERBE_—F=ZA-+HBHET
B WHUTEFAREE !

The financial statements on pages 118 to 300 were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021 and were signed on its
behalf:

=&Y WONG Yeuk Hung
EZ Director

®#H B HUANG Ruoging
EZE Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SHEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —F - FF+_—F=+—HIFFE

Qo

Attributable to owners of the Company

NAFREEERM
Non-
Share controlling Total
Note capital Reserves Total interests equity
(i R 1] s JRERIMER i gaE e
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT  ARBTn ARETn ARETn  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-hE—B—AMEES 139,632 42371813 4,377,445 2,287973 6,665,418
Comprehensive income 2EKE
- Profit for the year —ERiER - 1,034,931 1,034,931 516,729 1,551,660
Other comprehensive loss Hith2EesHE
- Currency translation -GHERER
differences - (88,161) (88,161) (620) (88,781)
Total comprehensive income FERNTENGEE
for the year - 946,770 946,770 516,109 1,462,879
Transactions with owners BREEANRS
Change in ownership interests  EZERIEEZBNER T1
in subsidiaries without change ~ —XIBATFMBRERN
of control 23 - (36,215) (36,215) (785) (37,000)
Non-controlling interests arising ~ EEHB AR EER
from acquisitions of JEERIER
subsidiaries - - - 1,565,755 1,565,755
Non-controlling interests arising DRI EEN IS
from step acquisitions - - - 116,223 116,223
Capital injection from non- RN ERTE
controlling interests - - - 448 435 448 435
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR — - - (419,072) (419,072)
Dividends relating to 2018 final ~ #ZZ— /\EXHHEEEE'JHX — (106,548) (106,548) — (106,548)
Dividends paid to non- IpRiElli dali)ids
controlling interests - - - (61,542) (61,542)
Total transactions with owners, EiERKRABDEREEAN
recognised directly in equity ~ XBHE%E — (142,763) (142,763) 1,649,014 1,506,251
Balance at 31 December 2019  RZZ—h&+ZA=+—-H
fEER 139,632 5,041,820 5,181,452 4,453,096 9,634,548
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
At mEER
B F —F T+ " H=+—HIFFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2020

Attributable to owners of the Company

EAREEEREMN
Non-
Share controlling Total
Note capital Reserves Total interests equity
(i fas it st R gk
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETE®
Balance at 1 January 2020 RIBZSE—A—AMNEES 139,632 5,041,820 5,181,452 4,453,096 9,634,548
Comprehensive income Eil
- Profit for the year —ERER — 1,295,966 1,295,966 146,845 1,442,811
Other comprehensive Hth2EE
income
- Currency translation -BRERER
differences _ 434,038 434,038 1,999 436,037
Total comprehensive income FREAEWRER
for the year - 1,730,004 1,730,004 148,844 1,878,848
Transactions with owners BREFANRS
Change in ownership interests ~ TEZHIEEESNIERT
in subsidiaries without R B ATPEERER
change of control i) 274 = 2,147 2,147 (27,315) (25,168)
Non-controlling interests arising ~ WEEHBARESE 271
from acquisitions B3I and &
of subsidiaries 212 - - - 232,277 232,277
Non-controlling interests DRUEREEOIEETIEER
arising from step acquisitions 213 - — - 1,063,266 1,063,266
Capital injection from non- At ERTE
controlling interests - - - 905,641 905,641
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 28 - - - (631,189) (631,189)
Dividends relating to 2019 final ~ BEZE—hERBERNRE 34 - (106,548) (106,548) - (106,548)
Dividends paid to non- IS F IR R R S
controlling interests - - - (4,000) (4,000)
Total transactions with owners, EERRAEDEER A
recognised directly in equity ~ MR F4%E - (104,401) (104,401) 1,538,680 1,434,279
Balance at 31 December2020 KZZ-Z&+-F=+-H
BysEss 139,632 6,667,423 6,807,055 6,140,620 12,947,675

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LIS B B B 7R S AR R Y S — O R
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. ge
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —F - FF+_—F=+—HIFFE

Qo

Note 2020 2019
fiysE k- k-3 .y
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETTT ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RS EERER
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations s (FRR) /Fri3Re 38 26 (186,943) 2,778,560
Income tax paid BEIER (1,007,336) (818,465)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RS (FE) /Fi3Re 38
operating activities (1,194,279) 1,960,095
Cash flows from investing activities BREEERER
Additions of property, plant and equipment REME  BERRE (49,145) (44,732)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENZE  BERZEMSTIE
plant and equipment 1,141 4,841
Capitalised subsequent expenditure —BRENENEERSERER
on an investment property 12 — (1,097)
Cash (paid for)/acquired from acquisitions and ~ WERDRUEIEB AT
step acquisitions of subsidiaries, (Ffd) /ERiS3R%
net of cash payment MRRSAR 27 (681,556) 242,696
Net cash inflows in respect of HHERBATNRE
the disposal of subsidiaries AR 28 98,280 99,270
Payments for investments in joint ventures LENEELENT 15 (201) (10,000
Payments for investments in associates RERBERARNR 15 (341,883) (179,100)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—REEARMEMIEA 77,014 24,380
Advances to non-controlling interests [EE[EGTFamEN (33,356) (2,781,444)
Advances to associates El=YNCIE-E (987,227) (47,300)
Advances to joint ventures AeEhERR (59,769) (55,105)
Loans due from third parties FEWE=HEM - 210,000
Interest received BUFIE 133,986 65,234
Net cash used in investing activities RETHMAREFE (1,842,716) (2,472,357)
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"

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

aRERE

BE T - ZTF+ —H=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2020

Note 2020 2019
fiysE ZEIEE .y
RMB' 000 RMB 000
AREFTT AREFT
Cash flows from financing activities REEHRER
Decrease in restricted cash ZIRHIRE R 40,255 57,545
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMERFIERE 10,032,449 7,663,125
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITREMER (6,727,239) (5,934,044)
Issuance of senior notes BITEAEE 6,230,539 5,372,245
Repayment of senior notes BEBLER (6,030,530) (2,130,404)
Proceeds from capital injection from REFFERIM AT EPTGRIE
non-controlling interests 905,641 448,435
Payments for acquisition of ownership interests — 7EIFHIEESFH ISR U
in subsidiaries without change in control RSB A BB EER TR (25,168) (37,000)
(Repayment to)/advances from non-controlling  (AIEEHIMERER) /
interests B IR TN (538,396) 1,484,858
Advances from joint ventures REEE XIS 8 27,020
(Repayment to)/advances from associates (AEBEARED) / REHEAT
# (326,006) 419,280
Interest paid ERFE (1,687,729) (1,289,256)
Dividend paid EfRE (141,969) (184,035)
Net cash generated from financing activities MERBATRIR 3 1,731,855 5,897,769
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBEEEMGRL) /18
cash equivalents B (1,305,140) 5,385,507
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ EMNRERFEEEY 11,094,295 5,678,863
Currency translation differences EERELE (139,732) 29,925
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year EXNRERBELEEY 20 9,649,423 11,094,295

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

LS OFIR 7 8 AR PR BR R MY B 5 — B
%ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H IR R

GENERAL INFORMATION

Redco Properties Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14 July 2008 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Cayman
Companies Law. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together with the Company, referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in property development,
property management services, property investment services,
project management services and healthcare services in the
People s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Company is listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA’) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except for investment properties
measured at fair value.

—RER

NetEERBRAR (TEXABND M
TEEN\FLtE+HBEHREEER
BEHESABAEMRIIAERREER
BERE o A BIAEE M R ik
# Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

ERBD—RREZERRBDREM B
NE) (EEFTABDRBEAAER)) T
SEPEARKNE (THE) KEEY
FRE MEEERY MERER
%~ BEEERGMEERT - &2
BINEBMERGAARAR (TEE
32 F 1) EARLETT o

MR BEERN  REEHEBRE
MARE(TARE) 25 -

FEGHEREE

AU EHR RS A G R A
AN ERHIETIE  RIFRE
HREE 0 BT 2REE—EEH
IR TE o

2.1 RUEE

KRB EHPHRRILDBES
BEAMAT(EBGHMA
g REMHNEBYHREEL
(TEBPBREED ) REE
NEMEBI(E622%) 2 BER
EfmH o R ATEFENR
BYEN P HRERUE
SERATERRR ©

126

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEFSHBEREE (8
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RUEE ()
2.1.1 Accounting policies 2.1.1 BFHHE
(a) New standard and amendments to standards (a) AEERMZFE
adopted by the Group Al R ZER VBT 4
The following new standard and amendments DU B 37 2 BI) e &
to standards are mandatory for the first time for AT ABRZ
the financial year beginning 1 January 2020 and ZTEF—HF—H
currently relevant to the Group: FENHBEER
RER I BN 0 IREF
BAREEBR

Definition of a Business
HEE T ERE
Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BAUBHRELER]SE 358 (BT AK)
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
BEEEFEANE IR K
EEGETEERISE 85 (B5T40)
Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
EEGTERIE 395K
BB BREENSE TR
EBHMBHREERNE IR (B5T4)
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
TE - \FHBRERSESR

BRZER
Hedge accounting

sn Rt

RES T BREBSIER

The Group has adopted these new standards
and amendments of standards and the adoption
of these new standards and amendments of
standards do not have significant impacts on the
Group' s consolidated financial statements.

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

FEECRMNZE
AR R ZERIBE
5] MEMEE
R R ERIBYE
S RHAERGH
MBRRLEEEKR

B 483
FEo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHIAFERRM T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RHEEE)

2.1.1 Accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

2.1.1 B51EE (1)

New standards, amendments to standards and
annual improvements not yet adopted

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and annual improvement have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2020 and have not been

early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BEMBIREEERISE 1658 EFT )
HKFRS 17
BRVBIREERE 1757
Annual Improvements Project

FENEER

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKAS
16 and HKAS 37
SERMBREENEIF
SRS ENFE IR
ER G ERFH 37 IR (1BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 1

EEGHEERE 158 (IBFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

BEMBREERIE 105K
BHBGFTERIE 2858 (B5TR)

Covid-19-related Rent
Concessions

2019 BAA R HEHREREEE

Insurance Contracts

REER

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

R \EE_E-EE
BERUBREEN 2 FEE

Narrow-scope Amendments

"R

INEEEMERT

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
REESEA RS IERE
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture
R EEERE bR
EEPEEEHERHE

(b)

o R B W 2 AT
A~ ERIREFT &
R EEE

DUR R 2RI ~ 2281
MEST AR FEEN
EBEME RN
—EBTE—H—
ARBNMERFEE
NEXM BARER
TR P ER LS
AR R FEBIMEET
PN
Effective
for accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUTHEESZ %
FIARYE FHEAR £ 3K

1 June 2020
“ETEFA—H
1 January 2021
2 —F—F—H
1 January 2022
—E"F—A—H
1 January 2022

B "F#—A—H

1 January 2023

2= —H—H
To be determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHIAFERRM T
2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RHEEE)

2.1.1 Accounting policies (Continued) 2.1.2 E5tiEE ()

(b) New standards, amendments to standards
and annual improvements not yet adopted
(Continued)

The directors of the Group are in the process of
assessing the financial impact of the adoption
of the above new standards, amendments to
standards and annual improvement. The Group
will adopt the new standards, amendments to
standards and annual improvement when they
become effective.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

(b) A R B Z A
A~ ERIREFT &
R EUE ()

FEBEFIEFGE
PR £ AR
ERREST A R E
EENY R
o AEBRBKZ
FHTER ~ ZRIH
BT AR FEE
T LABRAR ©

2.2 AHRAIKREDGFTEE
22.1 @A

L PNCIEE RN SE R
B ER (BREEREE
R AEENBEREHER
B BiIsAEEER
SRZBRENEBMHEHER
ZBERER P £ Ol R E R
BRERISAIZ O © TAE
SERBEZERTTN
BOFEZELOR - 1B
NEEERIREETAE
EREEEFEE AR
M ERIREAR LE B HAREAR
LHERB AR ©

FEBVEFSHERR
BEstEARR -

AEBRE S EEAR
B R 57 EEBE R
RETWm G H I o FRIE
R EPAPTE RS EER
B’ SRIREHGETE
HiY - B ARG
RENFERES) ° DU
REKXEEFTRABR—
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.2.1

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

2.2.2 Associates

223

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group only has joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost
in the consolidated balance sheet.

2

TEEHEREE ()

2.2 GHEFERIREREERE(E)

2.2.1 WEBAE] (1)

FENBIEIERI M &
L= YNSILESEESapayl)iny=y
HiEm* » aHEEN:
® aHEEEHERKREG
HEEERRABIZE
5l o

222 BEAE

223

E = YNSIPSR S SEl ok
BEREENELEEH
RS ERIENPTE R
R —MRMEAEZXBER
T AEEFANRER
A F20%E50% - ¥ &
BRAAHESE  RBER
BINRER G EmEA
iR e

GELH

RIEERYBREERS
INEEEaRH Rag
ZHHNREDER/TER
BAEERE - DEET
EREENSVEN RS
EME * MIFEGE L
R c AEBERR

GEhRE-

MR AREHEESR
BRAERE X 58X
BmEREmAEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 2.2 EHEREAKREDGEE(E)

(Continued)

2.2.4 Equity method 224 %

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’ s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’ s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’ s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.10.

RIBEHEEHE REY)
DI AHESY * HRRHEE
B m iR A EE R,
WIR R RE AT ED
R Bt 2 E U R
EENRKREATEME
BRI ES - B
HERBE AT REEDR
ERERIBB/KERAE
HIR ©

ErEERGEEZARR
ERERAERNBEER
ERENED (BEEHE
R R B WGRR) B
FRIFREREESERN
HMBERSAMRIE B8
BAE—DHETER o

AEBEABEARREG
ShEXZBIREFE W
UAEBRZEERIVE
mAREITHEE - BRIFR
MR 7R EREE D
REE X SRIRERER
TREHEY o Bm ARRBIR
BERBEBEREFH
WEEE > DFEREARE
E PRI R —3R ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.

2

TEEHEREE ()

2.2 GHEFERIREREERE(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHIAFERRM T
2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)
2.3 Business combinations 2.3 EEaH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

equity interests issued by the Group;

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest' s proportionate share of the
acquired entity s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3

Business combinations (Continued)
The excess of the:
consideration transferred;

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’ s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investe€ s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM’). The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors that make strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’ s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency’). The Company s functional
currency is Hong Kong dollars (“HKS”), and the
consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Company s and the Group’s
presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, within “finance income”
and “finance costs”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within “other
gains, net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

. income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvement

HEMEEE THEHAS I A HR (UBUEE /)
Furniture and office equipment 3to 5years

ENGYS &N 3ESEF

Motor vehicles 3to 10 years

AE 3E104F

Buildings 50 years

1gF 504

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’ s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields
and are not occupied by the Group. Investment property
is initially measured at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently,

they

are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are

presented in profit or loss as part of other income.

Intangible assets

2.9.1

292

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units (“CGUS”) that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the operating
segments.

Trademark and customer relationship

Trademark and customer relationship acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

2.9.3 Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a finite
useful life using the straight-line method over the
following periods:

Trademark 10 years
R 106
Customer relationship 7.5-10 years
ZRRR T5F 104
Customer Contracts 3 -4 years
EREH 3E4E

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)

(CONTINUED)

2.11 Properties under development for sale and completed Q11 HEHENBREPMERSE

properties for sale

Properties under development for sale and completed
properties held for sale are included in current assets at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Development cost
of property comprises construction costs, depreciation of
machinery and equipment, amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs on qualifying assets and professional fees
incurred during the development period. Upon completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by management
estimates based on prevailing marketing conditions.

Properties under development for sale are classified
as current assets unless the construction period of the
relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.

2.12 Financial assets

(a)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
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SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model
in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in “other gains,
net’ together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are recognised in
“General and administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
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BHIRERRIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)  Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income:
(Continued)

When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other
gains, net”. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in “other gains,
net” and impairment losses are recognised in
“general and administrative expenses” in the
statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit of loss: Assets that do
not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value through profit of
loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit of loss is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within “other gains, net” in the
period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(@)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group' s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in “other
gains, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
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SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts
to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
properties sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
and other receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The description of the Group’ s impairment
policies is set out in Note 3.1.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.16 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.17 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised in
profit or loss as finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.20 Senior notes

Senior notes issued by the Company that contain both
liability and early redemption option (which is not closely
related to the host contract) are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. At the date of issue,
both the liability and early redemption option components
are recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the senior
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The early redemption option is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

2

TEEHEREE ()

2.18 {EF (1)

BRIEA SR B A BRI A&
BENEEAMELERSH
BELIER  SRMERDE
VeNEII= IR

2.19 {EFAR A

EUE s BEREERLERE
RS RS AEFRERRIE
ENGERBEEEREEN—
BEFEBRREGSHAZRE
BEMRAEA BEEZFEEK
HAFEREARHHERLE

MREERTXNEGEREE
B S A F th %5 B % B P B EY
REWASUHEGEBRESERN
B AN TR ARR ©

HnfERR AR HEL AR
i o

2.20 BhEE

AABRETERERERRER
BBl (B SR &R )R
1B) B ARBREN T RS
ERE4ER) - REETHE &
BRIEFEORE DT AT
ERESS

HREHE BEREAEE
53165 P B IR SR 42 MR 9 L A
518 - 12 R IEE R A T 5
8 HATERBIIEERER o

148

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)

(CONTINUED)

2.20 Senior notes (Continued) 2.20 BEERE &)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior
notes are allocated to the liability and early redemption
option components in proportion to their relative fair
values. Transaction costs relating to the early redemption
option are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the senior notes using the
effective interest method.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’ s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of properties and
services performed in the ordinary course of the Group’ s
activities. Revenue is shown, net of discounts and after
eliminating sales with the Group companies. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’ s activities.

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.

(a)  Sales of properties

The Group develops and sells residential properties.
Revenue is recognised when control over the property
has been transferred to the customer, being at a
point in time when the legal title has passed to the
customer.

The revenue is measured at the transaction price
agreed under the contract. In determining the
transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant. In most cases, the
consideration is due when legal title has been
transferred.

The Group receives payments from customers based
on billing schedule as established in contracts.
Certain payments are usually received in advance
in pre-sales arrangement. Such proceeds from
customers are recorded as contract liabilities before
the relevant sales are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

Provision of construction services and project
management services

The Company provides construction services
and project management services in property
development projects contracted by government
authorities and other third parties.

Revenue from providing these services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered as the Group' s performance creates or
enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls. This is determined based on the
Group’ s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation by reference to the contract
costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress
toward completion are revised if circumstances
change. Any resulting increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or
loss in the period in which the circumstances that give
rise to the revision become known by management.

In general, customers pay fixed amount based on a
payment schedule. If the services rendered by the
Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the services
rendered, a contract liability is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(c)  Property management services

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered
as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

The Group bills a fixed amount for services provided
on a monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to invoice
and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

The Group received property management services
income on a monthly or lump sum basis, where the
Group acts as a principal and is primary responsible
for providing the property management services to
the property owners. The Group entitles to revenue
at the value of property management services fee
received or receivable and recognises all related
property management costs as its cost of service.

2.24 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

Employees in the Group s PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme administrated and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated on
certain percentage of the average employee salary as
agreed by local municipal government to the scheme
to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme
under the rules and regulations of the MPF Scheme
for all employees in Hong Kong. The contributions
to the MPF Scheme are based on minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees
relevant aggregate income, subject to a ceiling of
HKS$1,500 per month per head.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus plan is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of
subsidiaries to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of:

. the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and

. the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised
as part of the cost of the investment in the financial
statements of the Company.

2

TEEHEREE ()

2.26 MR EH

MBERREND/FTANRERE
EBEHARERBES XEN
R REBRBERERFBA
XRBEXRE AFAAEMNE
ERENGH - ZZMBERF
UM B AR AZwm AMIRIT
TR R MRS >
ERER S BXREMIRITH
B o

M HEER BN 2 BB RS
RAaTHEE  aBEYNTERA
FEEE HBERUTZES
BiE

- BREEBVBREERS
OEEM I AZTEMEE
FEEBEMEENTER ; &

. PPHERTEEA(RER)
RIEEBYBREERS
Y Y= h=y o)l
A PR R et A EEE o

MHBRERNRATEEESES
TEMBENNRARERE
MEFRANMIREREEER
RE> NEFE=HAEEREME
B = BIhETEER -

HREELAMNBATNEG
R E AR A ROB(F R
AERMAFEDREAEEA
iR WEEARBHNMBHREA
BAREMAEN—ED °

156

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHIAFERRM T
2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)
2.27 Leases 227 HE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. The right-of-use
asset and corresponding lease liabilities of the Group is
immaterial.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based
on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as
a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financialrisk factors

The Group s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), liquidity risk
and credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’ s financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by management of each individual entity within
the Group.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of
the transactions settled in RMB. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the functional currency of
the relevant Group entity. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk primarily with respect to HKS
and United States dollars (“USS).

The Group s assets and liabilities, and transactions
arising from its operations primarily do not expose it
to material foreign exchange risk. Other than certain
bank balances and borrowings, the Group s assets
and liabilities are primarily denominated in RMB. The
Group generates RMB from sales in the PRC to meet
its liabilities denominated in RMB. The Group does
not hedge its exposure to the foreign currencies.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain of the
Group’ s cash and bank balances were denominated
in HKS and USS and Australian Dollar (“AUD”), details
of which have been disclosed in Note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(1)

BB RRIEE

3 MBERERE)
3.1 MBEKEEER (&)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SrERSE (&)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group was RIZEZIEFR-ZT—N
exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with FE+ZA=+—H"’ K&
respect to the potential effects on profit or loss from EEmHNIIMERREES
translation in intercompany balances which are not REFRBRTUERERRA
denominated in functional currency of the relevant BNV IIAE B SHER AT
group companies. %S R R ¥ B BB
FE o
RMB appreciation against HKS and US$ during the FRARBREBTRET
year is the major reason for the exchange differences FHERAEERIE R =
recognised by the Group. Further appreciation of HKS BEHNFERRA - BEET
and USS$ against RMB will affect the Group’s financial RETRAREAEBERER
position and results of operations. B EREENMBRR
TS o
The following table shows that, if RMB had TRZY MARERHE
strengthened/weakened by 5% against HKS, with all TLHE B2 {E 5%’ MFT
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the BEHMESER T 8
year change, mainly as a result of foreign exchange REFERRIR B a0
gains/losses on translation of RMB denominated £’ FERHNBEUA
amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries in group EEESHENER, ()
entities whose functional currency is HKS. SEERPLUBITAIIEE
(SR EN - YNSIE e
INE 7 BSHEPTER ©
o 2020 2019
—EBEF —ZT-NEF
RMPB 000 RMB 000
AREBTT AREFIT
Post-tax profit increase/(decrease) FRfR A i, Cel b
RMB strengthened by 5% ARIEFE5S% 34,301 42,495
RMB weakened by 5% AEEEZE5% (34,301) (42,495)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The USS denominated borrowings (Note 23) are
issued by the Company whose functional currency
is HKS. Since HKS is pegged to USS, there is no
significant foreign exchange risk with respect to these
borrowings to the Company.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Except for bank deposits at variable interest rate, the
Group has no other significant interest-bearing assets.

The Group s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its borrowings. Bank
borrowings of variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The senior notes at a
fixed rate expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk. The interest rate and terms of
repayments of borrowings are disclosed in Note 23.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
to the senior notes resulted from the changes in
market interest rates. Moreover, given the stability of
the interest rate in the recent financial market, in the
opinion of the directors, the exposure of the senior
notes to fair value interest rate risk is considered to
be low. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
to interest-bearing assets resulted from the changes
in interest rate because the interest rates of bank
deposits are not expected to change significantly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(ifi)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, if interest rates on
borrowings at floating rates had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit and capitalised interest for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 would have
changed as follows:

3 MBEE

BB RRIEE

B (R

3.1 MBEKEEER (&)

(i)

R RER L FEFIER
/Z(A (1 E)

R-TTERTE-N
E+ZRA=+—H8"1
FRMERFELA T
#H1001EEE: ° MPAAEH
hEEFREIE > AEE
“ECRER-T-NEF
TZA=+—HLFEY

bRz ENREAREFE
EEWT
2020 2019
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ANRHEFIT
Post-tax profit (decrease)/increase BRI ER CRiL) /10
- 100 basis points higher — LB 100@%%&1‘ (3,482) (2,472)
- 100 basis points lower — 5B 100 EE 25 3,482 2,472
Capitalised interest EAREF B8, CRl)
increase/(decrease)
- 100 basis points higher — 5B 100 @& RS 81,181 48,628
- 100 basis points lower — T8 100 1B E B (81,181) (48,628)

Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and
closely monitors its current and expected liquidity
requirements to maintain its rolling cash flow at a
level which is considered adequate by the Group
to finance the Group s operations and to maintain
sufficient cash to meet its business development
requirements. The management will closely monitor
the compliance stated of the covenants for all
borrowings.

(ifi)

TBEL R

REBERHESRPRE
RNERTEHBERER
KRIEFTRBEETR > U
R ERENIBEMAEREAR
EERABULTERE
BIRHESPKFERFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Management has periodically prepared cash flow
projections and the Group has a number of alternative
plans to mitigate the potential impact on the Group’ s
business development and current operation, should
there be circumstances that the anticipated cash flow
may be affected by any unexpected changes in the
PRC economic conditions. The Company s directors
consider that the Group will be able to maintain
sufficient financial resources to meet its needs.
Unused facilities of the Group as of 31 December 2020
and 2019 have been disclosed in Note 23.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet dates to the
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can
be required to pay.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the
bank s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash
outflow based on the earliest period in which the
entity can be required to pay, that is if the lenders
were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis
for other bank borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMFBIRRMEE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MBRAKREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBEKRER (&)
(iii)  Liguidity risk (Continued) (iii) FEE A (4E)
o Between Between
Less than land 2and
On demand 1year 2 years 5years Total
REX DR1E 1E28 1E5E fazt
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEETR ARETR ARETR AREFT AREFR
At 31 December 2020 RIZ-2E
+-B=1+-H
Term loans subject to repayment  HEHRBREEER
on demand clause NEHER 123,721 = = = 123,721
Bank borrowings and interest RITRRBRA S
payments - 5,105,376 4,477,316 5,618,038 15,200,730
Senior notes and interest BAZERNENT
payments — 3263205 1776957 2840476 7,880,638
Trade and other payables A REMENTE
(excluding non-financial (TEEFERaR)
liabilities) — 15,352,054 - — 15,352,054
Amounts due to non-controlling  FEFIEERIEER TR
interests 6,075,226 - - - 6,075,226
Amounts due to associates EAKEABTE 159,274 - - - 159,274
Amounts due to jointventures  EfEECENE 50,784 - - - 50,784
Guarantees on mortgage facilities  FBHERER 9,694,814 - - — 9,694,814
16,103,819 23720,635 6254273 8458514 54537241

NEtEEEERA

8] © 2020 FERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIHBERRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HBRAKREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBRKEZR (&)
(iii)  Liguidity risk (Continued) (iii)  RENE = E R ()
: Between Between
Less than land 2and
On demand 1year 2 years 5years Total
BER DRIE 1225 1E5% st

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB 000 ~ RMB00O  RMB 000
AERTR  AREBTR ARBTR ARBTR  ARETR

At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE
+ZR=+-H

Term loans subject to repayment  HEHRBREEER

on demand clause NTEHER 131,683 — — - 131,683
Bank borrowings and RITRRBRA S

interest payments — 6,940,658 1,505,629 2,180,303 10,626,590
Senior notes and BEEERMEMT

interest payments - 6,063,628 1,294 894 — 7,358,522
Trade and other payables BAREMENTE

(excluding non-financial (TREFERaR)

liabilities) - 10,532,426 - - 10,532,426
Amounts due to non-controlling  FEFIEERIEER TR

interests 5,146,101 — — — 5,146,101
Amounts due to associates EABEATH 485,280 - - - 485,280

o

TEX 50,776 - — — 50,776
Guarantees on mortgage facilities  #BR1z Eﬁ}ﬁ 9,001,924 — — - 9,001,924

Amounts due to jointventures  [EfJEE
BE
Guarantee made to a joint venture RIAEE(EHIER 14332 - - - 14332

14,830,096 23,536,712 2,800,523 2,180,303 43,347,634
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MBRAKREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBEKRER (&)
(iii)  Liguidity risk (Continued) (iii) FEE A (4E)
The table below analyses the term loans with a TREVIMBREREE
repayment on demand clause based on agreed BRNEHERIRIEER
repayment schedules set out in the loan agreements. R E I E ERETBIME
The amounts include interest payments computed HEVEIER D7 - BRAEEE
using contractual rates. BIEREHONRTERR]
B
: Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
LR1E 1E2F 2ES5F #ast
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMPB 000
ARBTRT ARETT AR®BTR ARETR
31 December 2020 —EBTEF
+-BA=+—AH 125,049 — — 125,049
31 December 2019 “Z=2-NF
+-B=1+—H 136,802 — — 136,802
Credit risk (iv) EEREE
Risk management and security RfREEREZ D

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade and other receivables and
deposits, contract assets, amounts due from joint
ventures, associates and non-controlling interests
and loans due from joint ventures (included in
investments accounted for using the equity method).

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade receivables, other receivables,
contract assets, other financial assets at amortised
costs and amounts due from joint ventures,
associates and non-controlling interests represent the
Group’ s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.

FERBBRERRES
B RIRFIRE 8BS
REAMMEWTRIRRIZE -
BHEE - BKAED
X BERERIFERIMT
BmmaREREERE
ER(BEERAREIEA
RIVRE) EXE ©

RERFEFEY R
HIIRE - BSBUEIE
HMEKRRE &
E ~ REEmAYRIVE
fhERMEEURBEREE
%~ BME AR RIFES
MR REERE A
EENEMEEFMENR

BEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iv) ~ Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and security (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate
financial strength and appropriate percentage
of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables and contract assets to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties and customers.

For other receivables and deposits, management
makes periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables and deposits based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The directors
of the Company believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’ s outstanding
balance of other receivables and deposits.

All the bank deposits are placed with banks with
sound credit ratings to mitigate the risk.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MBRAKREREE)
3.1 HBEKRER (&)

(iv) 155 & (4)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iv) ~ Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and security (Continued)

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks
in connection with the customers’ borrowing
of mortgage loans to finance their purchase of
properties for an amount up to 70% of the total
purchase price of the property. Detailed disclosure of
these guarantees is made in Note 30(a). If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage loan during
the guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
amount under the loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the customers deposit and resell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to
the bank. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is largely
mitigated.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iv) ~ Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

internal credit rating
external credit rating

actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower s ability to meet its obligations

actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of individual property owner or
the borrower

significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the individual property
owner or the same borrower

significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including
changes in the payment status of borrowers in
the Group and changes in the operating results
of the borrower.

Credit risk of cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash

To manage this risk arising from cash and
bank deposits, the Group only transacts with
reputable commercial banks which are all high-
credit-quality financial institutions. There has
been no recent history of default in relation to
these financial institutions. The expected credit
loss of cash and bank balances is close to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iv) ~ Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk of trade receivables and contract
assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for trade receivables and
contract assets.

In prior years, the Group has provided sea
reclamation service to the PRC government and
recorded contract assets of RMB700,000,000
(Note 5). Given the service has already been
provided for a substantial period, management
considers these contract assets do not share
the same credit risk characteristics with others.
Accordingly, a specific provision of RMB4,761,000
was made taking into consideration of the
customer' s specific probability of default, loss
given default and forward-looking information.

For the remaining trade receivables, the Group
considers the shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due to measure the expected
credit losses. The expected losses rate is
minimal, given there is no history of significant
defaults from customers and insignificant impact
from forward-looking estimates. Accordingly, the
Group' s loss arising from risk of default and time
value of money is negligible.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iv) ~ Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk of other receivables and deposits

The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its other receivables and deposits carried
at amortised cost and adopted three-stages
approach to assess the impairment.

As at 31 December 2020, the gross carrying
amount subject to the assessment was
RMB2,744,168,000 (2019: 2,301,423,000) and the
loss allowance provision was RMB87,813,000
(2019: RMB65,260,000).

Credit risk of amounts due from joint ventures,
associates and non-controlling interests and
loans due from joint ventures

The Group assesses on a forward looking basic
the expected credit losses associated with its
amounts due from joint ventures, associates
and non-controlling interests and loans due
from joint ventures. Carried at amortised cost
and adopted three-stages approach to assess
the impairment. Those parties have a low risk
of default and a capacity to meet contractual
cash flows. The expected losses rate is minimal,
given there is no history of significant defaults
and insignificant impact from forward-looking
estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group' s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustment to it in light of changes in economic condition.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt or to obtain bank and
other borrowing.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. Gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and
bank balance (including cash and cash equivalent and
restricted cash). The gearing ratios at 31 December 2020
and 2019 were as follows:

BB RRIEE

3 MBEBREEE
3.2 BXEKRERE

FEREEEANERD AR
EAEEEEEZEE UAR
BR[Ol 3 K 23 H th A s AE R
ATREN mREFRENE
AERBLRBE AR o

FEREEEAGEHBILRHRL
BRI EAFHEREE o

REFUBABRELERE &
E R AR FRRNR
BEE -ARRREEAX - &
THRMBIEEBEELRDE
BREISIRITIERR EMERR o

FERUBEEERILRFEAE
EREHER - BEEARLX
BRREHFEGRUREHEE
BERMAIEDBETE &
BFRBERRERAEIRE R
IRTTHEER (BREREEAREEE
MEZRGEIRE) - _2-TF
RZE-—NAF+ZA=+—H

NEESGELEZEWT .
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT
Total borrowings (Note 23) B ABEE (M5 23) 20,111,354 16,782,693

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERIREEEY

and restricted cash (Note 20) K= BRHIIRE (M5t 20) (13,806,282) (15,059,505)
Net debt B35 6,305,072 1,723,188
Total equity T ARER 12,947,675 9,634,548
Gearing ratio BEES[BLEX 49% 18%
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SHMBRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group is required to comply with a number of
covenants under the terms of the major borrowing
facilities. They have been complied throughout the
reporting period based on directors assessment.

Fair value estimation

The Group analyses financial instruments and non-financial
instruments carried at fair value, by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period. There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

The different levels are defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.3 Fairvalue estimation (Continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
amounts due from non-controlling interests, amounts
due from joint ventures, amounts due from associates,
trade and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
interests, amounts due to joint ventures and amounts due
to associates approximate their carrying amounts due to
their short term maturities.

See Note 12 for disclosures of the investment properties
that are measured at fair value.

4  CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

BB RRIEE

3 MBERERE)
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SHMBRRME

4

CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1

4.2

4.3

Valuation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair
value with changes in the fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The fair value of
investment properties were determined by using valuation
technique and management updates their assessment
of the fair value of the investment properties, taking into
account the key valuation assumptions. Details of the
judgments and assumptions have been disclosed in Note
12.

Classification of investments

The Group made investments that involved complex terms
and arrangements during the year. Judgement is required
in determining the appropriate classification for these
investments including assessing the relevant activities of
the investee companies and its decisions making process
on those activities that involving the Group, if any and its
other investors, the rights and power of the Group and
other investors on the investee companies and the Group's
returns from the investments. Different conclusions around
these judgements may materially impact how these
investments presented and measured in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Net realisable value of properties held for sale and
properties under development

Properties held for sale and properties under development
are recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Given the volatility of the property market in the PRC, the
actual recoverable amount may be higher or lower than
the estimate made as at the end of the reporting period.
Any increase or decrease in the net realisable value would
affect the Group’ s operating performance in future years.
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4  CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.4

4.5

Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in the PRC. Judgement
is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. There are transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain (for example,
certain expenses such as entertainment and advertising
expenses may not be finally deductible) during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation in the
periods in which such estimate is changed.

Land appreciation tax

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including land cost, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditures.

BB RRIEE
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SHMBRRME

4

CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.5

4.6

4.7

Land appreciation tax (Continued)

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property
development business in the PRC are subject to land
appreciation taxes, which have been included in the
income tax expenses. However, the implementation of
these taxes varies amongst various PRC cities and the
Group has not finalised its land appreciation tax returns
with various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises
these liabilities based on management s best estimates.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax expenses and
provisions of land appreciation taxes in the period in which
such determination is made.

Step acquisition

In a business combination achieved in stages, the Group
requires to re-measure its previously held equity interest
in acquired entity at its acquisition-date fair value and
recognise the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or loss.
The excess of consideration transferred, amount of any
non-controlling interest and fair value of previously held
equity interest over the fair values of net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. The fair value of the
equity interest was determined by using the DCF approach
and various key assumptions and estimates including
revenue growth rate, discount rate and terminal growth
rate. These estimates and judgement are based on the
market condition and historical performance.

Impairment of intangible assets including goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors have been identified as the CODM.
Management determines the operating segments based on the
Group’ s internal reports, which are submitted to the Executive
Directors for performance assessment and resources allocation.

The Executive Directors consider the business from a
geographical perspective and assess the performance of
property development in five reportable operating segments,
namely Greater Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone, Central
and Western Regions, Bohai Economic Rim, Greater Bay Area
and Others. The Group's construction and sea reclamation
services are considered together with the property development
segments and included in the relevant geographic operating
segment. “Others” segment represents provision of design
services to group companies, corporate support functions,
property management services (services provided to both
internal or external customers), project management services,
healthcare services, rental income and investment holdings
business.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment results. This
measurement basis excludes the effects of depreciation, share
of profit/loss of investments accounted for using the equity
method, net, finance income, finance costs and income tax
expense. Other information provided, except as noted below, to
the Executive Directors is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated financial statements.
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BT ERRMEE
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 B KD ERE R (48)
: Greater
Western
Taiwan Central
Straits and Bohai
Economic Western ~ Economic Greater
Zone Regions Rim Bay Area Others Total
e BHER i
LEE  HEIME Ee AEE  HftlEE s
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-EZE
TZR=t-HLEE
Revenue from contracts RERHZ WG
- recognised at a point in time ~PEERERED 2,500,321 5,049,126 4,391,082 261,456 - 12,202,591
- recognised over time ~ B - - 2,977 - 345,969 373,946
- others —Eftr - - - - 15,825 15,825
Less: Inter-segment revenue b v gl - - - - (140,363)  (140,363)
Revenue (from external customers) Wi (GMP%E) 2500327 5,049,726 4,419,059 261,456 21431 12,451,999
Segment results pIriES 19930 642,037 1,048,043 79942 (19,15 1,998,701
Depreciation nE (4,071) (4,185) (1,575) (1,192) (13,866) (24,889)
Operating profits/{losses) meEr/ (68) 415,859 638,752 1,046,468 78,750  (206,017) 1,973,812
Share of (loss)/profit of ElERESAARNEE
investments accounted for (BR) /5158
using the equity method, net (9,944) (9,367) - (1,847) 47,531 26,379
Finance income BERA 36,164 37,153 31,802 1,484 43,43 149,846
Finance costs HERA (3,347) (7,933) - (4,966) (7,480) (23,726)
Income tax expense FrEiEs (33,959)  (246,476)  (386,740) (9,759) (6,566) (683,500
Profit/{oss) for the year ERER/ (B8 14773 412109 691,530 63660 (129283 142811
At 31 December 2020 RZZZFF+ZRA=+-H
Total segment assefs BouEE 6673206 24470843 19557018 6039450 9,072,500 85,813,017
Other unallocated corporate assets EfADRATEE 161,161
Total assets gE 85,974,178
Investments accounting for HEDEARRRE
using the equity method 223,765 440,235 - 69,044 183,212 916,256
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BT ERRMIEE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) SRS EE R (1)
o Greater
Western
Taiwan Central
Straits and Bohai
Economic Western ~ Economic Greater
Zone Regions Rim Bay Area Others Total
e BHER i
LEE  HEIME Ee AEE  HftlEE s
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Additions to: HE.
Property, plant and equipment ERE NG 4,940 4,629 1,28 3,542 34,806 49,145
Investments accounted for EnE \RORE
using the equity method 1025 211,359 - 66,000 3500 342,084
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBEAR
- Property, plant and equipment -W% BERRE 3,985 - 2 139 - 4,144
- Intangible assets -BYEE - - - - 39,260 39,260
Total segment liabilities antiak (24,597,505) (17,432,521) (15,417,286)  (3,327,269) (12,251,922) (73,026,503)
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S HMBIRRMIEE
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 B KD ERE R (48)
Greater
Western
Taiwan Central
Straits and Bohai
Economic Western  Economic Greater
Zone  Regions Rim  BayArea Others Total
=l Vil BEE
KEE  TREME TEE AEE HMEER fazt
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AREFT AEB®TR ARETT AREFTR ARETT AREFR
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE_F-hE
+ZB=+-HLEE
Revenue from contracts REAHZYE
- recognised at a point in time ~RE TR ERED 1,798,900 2,983,860  2,403.466 1,032,602 — 82182828
- recognised over time — R — RS REER 33,949 - 256,348 - 121,675 412,472
- others —Eff - - - - 10,573 10,573
Less: Inter-segment revenue R il (32,315) - - - (7,237) (39,552)
Revenue (from external customers) & (NEE) 1,800,534 2983860 2,660,314 1,032,602 125011 8,602,321
Segment results NEEE 713,987 573,773 867,748 474,853 (471) 2,579,890
Depreciation & (2,928) (3,261) (1,809) (731) (11,136) (19,865)
Operating profits/(losses) R/ (58) 711,059 570,512 865,939 424122 (11,607) 2,560,025
Share of (loss)/profit of investments  FE{EIRIERTE AR
accounted for using RE(BR) /5738
the equity method, net (31,699) (21,286) - (335) 31,775 (21,545)
Finance income EETON 44 567 29,443 11,767 1,214 35,495 122,486
Finance costs HEHK (2,362) - - - (17,619) (19,981)
Income tax expense FiEmES (247148) (278,998) (301,753) (223,702) (37,724)  (1,089,325)
Profit for the year FERER 474 417 299,671 575,953 201,299 320 1,551,660
At 31 December 2019 RZEB-hE+ZA=1+-H
Total segment assets anteE 15,838,618 20,855,984 15,949,653 1,705,719 8,080,099 62,430,073
Other unallocated corporate assets ~ HMANEATEE 179,267
Total assets hEE 62,609,340
Investments accounting for BRERENENRE
using the equity method 299,811 208,901 - 14,565 131,595 654,872
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BHMFBIRRMEE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 IRERSHER ()
o Greater
Western
Taiwan Central
Straits and Bohai
Economic Western ~ Economic Greater
Zone  Regions Rim  BayArea Others Total
ZRRER iy
LER  SAEHHE KER AEE  HTER st
RMB' 000  RMB' 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
ARBFL AREFR ARETR AREBTR ARETT ARETR
Additions to: HE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BEREE 11,334 3,801 9,425 589 19,583 44732
Investments accounted for EmE R E
using the equity method - 184,200 - 14,900 - 199,100
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEKEAS
- Property, plant and equipment  —#1%  BEREE - 21,131 6 - 3,462 24,599
- Intangible assets -8B EE - - - - 335,992 335,992
- Investments accounting for —RERDENENRE
using the equity method - - - - 474 474
Total segment liabilities Brtak (12,791,738) (14,558,290) (12,083,355)  (930,501) (12,610,908) (52,974,792)
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B HIHBERRMEE
5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 RERAWEER (@)
(@) The Group revenue consists of the following: (a) HEEWABEUTEIE:
2020 2019
—EITHF —E-NE
RMPB 000 RMB 000

ARETFT ARETT

Sales of properties HEME
Construction services BIERTS
Property management services M= EIEARTS
Project management services THEEERT
Rental income HEUWA
Healthcare service FRE&ER

12,202,591 8,218,828
27,977 256,491
144,714 80,885
59,436 33,552
15,825 10,573
1,456 1,992
12,451,999 8,602,321

(b) Revenue by geographical location is determined on the
basis of the location of the sales of properties or services
rendered. All of the Group's revenue were generated from
the PRC.

No revenue from transactions with a single external
customer accounted for over 10% of the Group s revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

(c) Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets by geographical area are as
follows:

Qo

(c)

‘& iR 0 2 WA T IR
i E ) 2 SR AR S RO BE T
BE - rEBZFARANRE
EEHHE °

BE_S_SER_S—NE
TZB=+—BLEE BE
BE—HN BB ETRZIIK
AMEAEE BB 109k ©

BHMEBEEBDNIERHE
EEEIARELERSHRE
ERRINIT :

2020 2019

k- k222 _E-NEF

RMPB 000 RMB 000

AR®EFT ARET T

PRC FRE 2,453,566 2,140,409
Hong Kong E 16,675 30,141
2,470,241 2,170,550
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(d)

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Details of contract assets are as follows:

Qo

BB RRIEE

5 WERIBERE
(d) BHNEEFBUT :

2020 2019

—TTEF “E-NEF

RMB' 000 RMB' 000

ARETT AREEFIT

Accrued contract revenue Ret&5WEGE 700,000 700,000
Less: provision for impairment R ERE (4,761) —
695,239 700,000

As of 31 December 2020, the contract assets of
RMB695,239,000 (2019: RMB700,000,000) are related to
sea reclamation service provided to the PRC government.
The sea reclamation service provided to the customer was
completed and the corresponding receivable balance is

not yet billed.

The movement on the provision for impairment for

contract assets is as follows:

Qo

BE_Z_ZF+_"_HBA=1+—H" A
R #£695,239,0007c (Z & —HL 5 :
A R#700,000,00070) WENE E
ThEEm R EBFRENIESRER
A o MR IRHEMNIEEIRE BT
BRIBWEIBESRR B R I HERES o

GREERERBEESUT

2020

—ETEF

RMB' 000

AR¥TFT

At 1 January n—A—H =
Impairment loss on contract assets (Note 6) BHNEERERE (HE6) 4,761
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 4,761
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SHMBRRME

6  EXPENSES BY NATURE 6 BMEISHNMEX

STAHEMZE ~ SHEREHRAS UK
—MREATHRAX BN

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing
expenses and general and administrative expenses are analysed

as follows:

o

2020 2019
ZETHF —E-NE
RMPB 000 RMB 000
AR®EFT ARETTT
Auditor s remuneration ZE NN &

- Audit services — IZE RS 7,003 7,249

- Non-audit services — IERZENARTE 2,226 2,822
Cost of properties sold BEEMERA 9,417,097 5,449,505
Cost of services ARFE AL A 163,359 142,315
Depreciation of property, Y% ~ BRI R s T EE (95 11)

plant and equipment (Note 11) 24,889 18,998
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 13) A EEE (st 13) 7,481 3,740
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) BEEEMRX (MizE8) 536,549 375,562
Entertainment IREERASE 55,405 33,197
Marketing and advertising costs B R B S RS 454,770 242,402
Operating lease payments KEMREM® 2,203 2,514
Office and travelling expenses WMAZE R ERRX 160,027 146,363
Business taxes and surcharges BEMRKMINE 58,130 55,967
Land use and real estate taxes THIERREER 27,825 14,609
Legal and professional fees FEREXER 182,927 66,609
Donation EiEL] 14,454 4,520
Impairment loss on other receivables HAMFEWRIERIE 518

(Note 19(d)) (P2 19(d)) 22,553 15,000
Impairment loss on contract assets EBREERMEERE (MizE5(d)

(Note 5 (d)) 4,761 —
Others Hith 58,493 32,273
Total cost of sales, selling and HEMA « $HE REHES

marketing expenses and PUR— e R AT B S 48 %R

general and administrative expenses 11,200,152 6,613,645
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BHMFBIRRMEE
OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hthkssem
: 2020 2019
—ETHF “E-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Exchange gains/(losses) ERUWE (Ei8) 48,102 (31,527)
Gain on disposal of investment in HER—KBEREKRE

an associate (Note 15(b)(ii)) B Es (BF5E 15(b)(ii) 46,355 8,407
Gains on bargain purchase arising B G- YNSIEE S =

from acquisition of subsidiaries Weas (MF5£27.2 52 27.3)

(Note 27.2 and 27.3) 124,455 72,912
Commission En — 39,836
Gains/(losses) on disposal of HEYZE - BEKZEN

property, plant and equipment Wi (B518) 300 (5,400)
(Losses)/gains on disposal of HERBARN (BB WE

subsidiaries (Note 28) (fI5E28) (51,621) 113,821
Realised gain/(loss) on foreign SNEIRER AN BE&EIR

exchange forward contracts Wa (B518) 5,545 (45,284)
Remeasurement gains on interests R EARNEE#E S

in investments accounted for BstE2WEs (5 27.3)

using the equity method (Note 27.3) 538,423 286,634
Others Hith 7,800 5,795

719,359 445,194

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EEFEMMAZ
2020 2019
—E2CTH “E2—NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT
Salaries and allowances FraeRoEa 500,038 331,972
Sale commission and bonuses THEMERIEAL 99,816 49,717
Pension costs (Note a) BRREMA (M5 a) 28,702 32,621
Other staff welfare Hth & T@F 35,524 32,112
664,080 446,422

Less: Capitalised in properties B BERCEt A ERYE

under development (127,531) (70,860)
536,549 375,562
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SHMBRRME

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(a) Pension obligations

Details of the retirement scheme contributions, which have
been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss are as follows:

Qo

8

BEEFR% (&)

(a)

BAEHEE

EEHIRm AP IFREIERNIRA
STEIERBIEFIRNT ¢

2020 2019

ZTIEF —E-NEF

RMB 000 RMB' 000

ARETT ANRHEEFIT

Gross scheme contributions HEE R AERE 28,702 32,621
Less: capitalised in properties B BERM B AZ R

under development (5,000) (6,797)

23,702 25,824

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EBEmEHMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
include three (2019: four) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 36. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2019: one)
individuals during the year are as follows:

Qo

HE_Z-ZF+ZA=+—
HIEEE > AEBRAEZRSH
MALTEE=2 (CE—NEF:
m37)EE  Hils RERHTEE
36 FREMNEGM A (Z
T—NE | —F) ATHBEU
T

2020 2019

—E2THF —E-NEF

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARETT AREF T

Salaries and other short-term benefits  #r& R EMMIBERER] 3,567 2,196
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETBIHR 135 60
3,702 2,256
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 8 (EEENMEXZ @)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) HEBEmEHFHEAL R
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BRMNENN THIEE :
o 2020 2019
HKS$1,000,001 to HKS2,000,000 1,000,001 B E
(equivalent to RMB888,701 2,000,000 &7t (FBER
to RMB1,777,400) AR 888,701 7t E
ANERHE 1,777,400 7T) — 1
HKS$2,000,001 to HKS$3,000,000 2,000,001 BcE
(equivalent to RMB1,777,401 3,000,000 87t (HHER
to RMB2,666,100) ANEEE 1,777,401 &
ANE#2,666,100 7T) 2 —
FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 FBEWARKE
2020 2019
ZTIEF “ZE-NEF
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AREEFIT
Finance income from bank deposits RITIEARBRE WA 117,172 52,213
Finance income from loans to mAEZE AR ERNRERA
associates (Note 33(b)) (Fg5E33(b)) — 20,674
Finance income from loans to EIEEES R T B R YRR E U A
non-controlling interests 32,674 30,119
Finance income from loans to MABIIE = ERBMERA
independent third parties — 19,480
149,846 122,486
Finance costs on bank and IRTT R EMERNRER A
other borrowings 1,739,801 1,366,012
Finance costs on loans from K EIEEEHIE R B R
non-controlling interests =127 54,385 44,429
Less: finance costs capitalised in B ABEBREENERL
qualifying assets FAE AN (1,770,460) (1,390,460)
23,726 19,981
Weighted average interest rate on BB ERAY NI F R ZH
capitalised borrowings (per annum) 9.78% 9.33%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC are subject to
PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: 25%).

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including costs of land and development and construction
expenditures.

Qo

10 FRISMEAX

BE_Z_TF+_B=+—HILHE
B’ RPERIIEEENNEARE
5% MM E NP E B EFTSR
(ZB—REFE :25%) °

BE_Z-NF+A=+—HLEF
B BBMNERLBREEBZEEE
BRI AIRIREK 16.5% 515 ©

PRI ERE T IR ERR
(Bt &5 4 22 PR 1S RR IR B 25 R 30 Rt
Sz (B4R LM A DU B 3 Fe i SR )
52)) 8930% ZE 60% HY R HEFR UL o

2020 2019
—EBEHF “E-NEF
RMB 000 RMB 000

ARETFT ARETT

Current income tax BHAPR1S R
Hong Kong profits tax HENER
PRC corporate income tax FRE PSR
PRC land appreciation tax FRET + I (ETR
Deferred income tax (Note 16) EIEFTEHR (MI5E 16)
Overstatement in prior years FREIBEFEFHE

— 6,428
1,203,728 901,458
378,400 577,218
(898,628) (377,387)
— (18,392)
683,500 1,089,325
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10 FRIGMRAX (8)

QTR * ANEEERFTSIRADE R
FERIRIEA BN B E B QBT HEAE
B HRBLEER R MG ELEERH
LI

The tax on the Group’ s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise by applying the statutory
tax rate in the PRC to profits of the group companies as follows:

Qo

2020 2019
ZETEF —E-NE
RMPB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT
Profit before income tax FRPFISIRATERT 2,126,311 2,640,985
Calculated at PRC corporate income BRI EMSRIRE 25% 5t E
tax rate of 25% 531,578 660,246
Effect of different tax rate in HMBERTEREZE
other countries — (3,312)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose AR 41,413 83,409
Income not subject to taxation BIERRRUA (203,113) (74,264)
Unrecognised tax losses RIS IEEE 2,161 4,157
Previously unrecognised tax losses now SRRSO I 1B IR A A
recouped to reduce current tax expense LDUR/ D BN HRRR IE R =2 (9,756) (38,865)
Provision for land appreciation tax TR ER A 378,400 549,167
Tax effect on land appreciation tax THIEERNR R E (94,600) (137,292)
Tax effect of withholding tax on REE AR E AT 2K
the distributable profits of FHENBENRNRELE
the Group’ s PRC subsidiaries 37,417 64,471
Overstatement in prior years HEBEFFESR — (18,392)
Income tax expense FTiERFX 683,500 1,089,325
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Qo

11 9% - BERk=HE

Furniture
Leasehold and office Motor
improvement  equipment vehicles Buildings Total
eI
TEMELEE HWARE HE 8F fzt
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AREFRT  ARETR AEETT  AREFR ARETT
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—FB—H
Cost A 43216 31,862 22,707 167,751 265,536
Accumulated depreciation RRNE (11,139) (16,204) (14,992) (1,901) (44,236)
32,077 15,658 1,715 165,850 221,300
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE_F-hE
+ZB=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 32,077 15,658 7,715 165,850 221,300
Additions hE 10,403 13,271 7,240 13,818 44732
Acquisitions of subsidiaries G- YN 17,105 2,099 1,773 - 20977
Step acquisitions of subsidiaries ARBENREAE 1,805 1,451 366 - 3,622
Disposals HE (8,629) (1,147) (465) - (10,241)
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAT (5) (295) (1,032) - (1,332)
Depreciation & (2,393) (5,48) (3,152) (8,838) (19,365)
Exchange differences BRES (3) (17) (21) - (41)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 50,360 25,538 12,424 170,830 259,152
As at 31 December 2019 ZZ-AE+ZB=+-H
Cost IS 63,931 43,445 30,172 181,569 319,117
Accumulated depreciation RRNE (13,571) (17,907) (17,748) (10,739) (59,965)
Net book amount REFE 50,360 25,538 12,424 170,830 259,152
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Qo

BB RRIEE

11 %% - BER®E (&)

Furniture
Leasehold and office Motor
improvement  equipment vehicles Buildings Total
it
HEMEEE HWARE HE 8F fzt
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARET:
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z-ZTE
+ZB=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 50,360 25,538 12,424 170,830 259,152
Additions hE 1,509 24,669 22,967 - 49,145
Acquisitions of subsidiaries BB AT
(Note 27.1 and 27.2) (Kz27.1R27.0) - 1,060 496 - 1,556
Step acquisitions of subsidiaries PREERERE
(Note 27.3) (KE273) - 250 2,338 - 2,588
Disposals HE - (166) (675) - (841)
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 28) HEMRBAT (M35 28) (16,112) (12) (10) = (16,134)
Depreciation iES (4,129) (11,340) (4,117) (9,632) (29,818)
Exchange differences BRES 9) (3) (921) - (933)
Closing net book amount FRERSE 31,619 39,996 31,902 161,198 264,715
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-EE+”F=+-A
Cost s 48,246 69,214 53,801 181,569 352,830
Accumulated depreciation ZRNE (16,627) (29,218) (21,899) (20,371) (88,115)
Net book amount REE 31,619 39,996 31,902 161,198 264,715
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIHBERRMEE

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 11 Y% - BERRE (8)
Depreciation charges were capitalised or expensed in the FEZEREHEEERTRKEHIE
following categories in the consolidated balance sheet and the mARPER T D EERESE AR
consolidated statement of profit or loss: %

o

2020 2019
ZETHF —=2—NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AREFTT ARETT
Properties under development for sale R BB 4,929 867
Cost of sales (Note 6) THEM A (Fi5E6) 756 421

General and administrative — R AT RS2 (FiYsE 6)
expenses (Note 6) 24,133 18,577
29,818 19,865

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12 REYME
2020 2019
—E_F “E-NE
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AR¥EFTT ARETT
At 1 January W—HB—H 1,025,004 803,899
Transfer from properties under BEEREHEN

development for sale (Note a) FREE Y2 (FYEEa) — 156,285
Capitalised subsequent expenditure HERSZERER - 1,097
Fair value gain A ETE 2,606 63,723
At 31 December R+ZHA=+—H 1,027,610 1,025,004
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Note:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into rental agreements with several independent third parties for
property under development for sale, indicating a change in the
intended use of the property under development for sale. As a
result, the property under development for sale was reclassified
as investment property carried at fair value. At the date of
transfer, the cost of properties under development for sale was
approximately RMB93,853,000 and there was a fair value gain of
approximately RMB62,432,000.

(b) As at 31 December 2020, an investment property with fair value
of RMB505,322,000 (2019: RMB504,837,000) was pledged as
collaterals for the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
RMB150,000,000 (2019: RMB137,400,000) (Note 23).

Fair value measurement

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair values of the
investment properties were measured at level 3 of fair value
hierarchy using significant unobservable inputs.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

BB RRIEE

12 BREMEGE)

fIsE -
(a)

BE_Z—NE+-RA=+—HL
FErEEBRZZBUE=S
MERPHEMETIEE R
RPABRTEEVENRERRE
FREME - At » FEERYESH
DERRATEIERNEEYE -
R ERPFEYENR
A A N R ¥693,853,0007T * M
NFEW @A 2 A KE562,432,000

IT ©

KoBoBEL-AS+—8 A
FEA A R505322,000 (2=
—NEF : AR¥E504,837,000 78) AY
BAMEETRIF (FAKEHER
7349 A R 150,000,000 75 (=
Z—HF ¢ AR 137,400,000 7T)
BIEIR @ (HfE23) -

AF{E 2

ATECESER-E-NE+ A
=+ REMEOATERE
AEARTBREA GG ENATE
BRESREHE o

FARE— T R=H BN EE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Valuation process of investment properties

The Group engages an external, independent and qualified
valuer, Jiangxi Hengfang Real Estate and Land Valuation
Consultancy Co., Ltd. ("IFEIES B ZE TG EBHBRAR) to
determine the fair values of the investment properties.

Discussions of valuation processes and results had been held
between management and the valuer in respect of the valuation
as at reporting date.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable input (Level 3) is as follows:

As at 31 December 2020

Qo

12 REYE @)
REVMENGERR

AEEREIING  BURAHIEE
BRSBTS EBHE
RAT » LB REMER RS B
BIATE -

EEERGHEMEMRE BPNMGE
SmLERFRER -

BRERERTHRBABNQT
B8 (FE=RNERT :

RZE_EF+_"_H=+—H

Fair value Valuation Range of Relationship of unobservable
Description (RMB" 000) technique  Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
AT
it (AE®FR) fEERE  FUREEAE FIREHAGNER BATERTRSEAENER
Investment property under development 505,322 Residual (1]  Market selling prices (1) RMB21,000-28,000 persa.m. The higher the market selling prices and
method (1)  Developer s margin ) 30% lower the developer s margin, the higher the
fair value
BETRENE HEE () TEEE () SFARARBUMNCE THREEURREEBABUE ATELR
ARE28,0007
() HEENAE (2) 30%
Completed investment properties 522,288 Direct (1)  Market selling prices (I RMBB,260 - 56,723 The higher the market selling prices, the
comparison persg.m. higher the fair value
and income
approach
BRARENE BRUEE () THEE () BTAKARBSNOTEN THEEUS HATEHS

RES,137

As at 31 December 2019

Qo

RZE—-hE+-HA=+—H

Fair value Valuation Range of Relationship of unobservable
Description (RMB 000) technique  Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
AT

i (AEBTT) ffEds FUBEHAE FREEARNER BATERTREEAENGE
Investment property under 504,837 Residual (1)  Market selling prices (I RMBT,281 persq.m. The higher the market selling prices and
development method  (2)  Developer s margin ) 35% lower the developer s margin, the higher the

fair value
BEDRENE wEE () THER () BYRKARETBIL HRERUERREAHN R
() HEFNAE {2) 3% AIRTERS

Completed investment 520,167 Direct (1)  Market selling prices (I RMB8190- The higher the market selling prices, the

properties Comparison 56,700 per sq.m. higher the fair value
BERRENE BEEEE () WREE () BYRKARES 0% mEEENS IATELES

EARES6,7007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties

o

BB RRIEE

12 BEYMEGEE)

PR AN B R

2020 2019

—EBEH “E-NEF

RMPB’ 000 RMB 000

ARBFT AREFIT

Rental income from operating leases KEREETIWA 15,825 10,573
Direct operating expenses from property — E£EEESUWA Y

that generated rental income BiIEKEY 1,564 1,462

Fair value gain recognised in other income FEMUA ARESRHIAFER G 2,606 63,723

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. There are no other variable
lease payments. To reduce credit risk, the Group normally
retains rental deposits from the lessees.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual value
at the end of the current leases, the Group typically enters into
new operating leases and therefore will not immediately realise
any reduction in residual value at the end of these leases.
Expectations about the future residual values are reflected in
the fair value of the properties.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment
properties are as follows:

Qo

HE %5
REVMEREEEERAF WA H

AN - HEMEERR A&
E—REREREANEERS -

BEANERETE A ERARE R ER
BEEHEAR  BEAERBEES]L
A EEE ° FIbEARAEERR
g MRV EREERRLD o TR
KRR ERBEEAE R REERAF
BR-

HEREYENRBEBEE TR
T

2020 2019

k-l 2223 _E-NEF

RMPB 000 RMB 000

ARBFT ARET T

Within 1 year 15w 19,278 15,825
Between 1 and 2 years 1228 20,417 18,958
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 21,775 20,183
Between 3 and 4 years 3EAF 15,865 21,423
Between 4 and 5 years AZESE 17,101 15,836
Later than 5 years i 55 - 17,100
94,436 109,325
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMBHRRMEE
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 \|EEE

Qo

Property

Customer Management
relationship  Contracts Trademark Goodwill Total
ERRfR MREESH L e st

RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
ARBTn ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2019  HE—E—NE

+ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount EREFE - - — - -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries EhIEYN= 30,138 - 34,626 271,228 335,992
Amortisation B (2,009) — (1,731) — (3,740)
Closing net book amount FRE@MEE 28,129 - 32,895 271,228 332,252
As at 31 December 2019 RIE—NE

+ZB=+-H
Cost A 30,138 - 34,626 271,228 335,992
Accumulated amortisation Rty (2,009) - (1,731) - (3,740)
Net book amount REZE 28,129 — 32,895 271,228 332,252
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_EZZE

+ZA=1+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 28,129 - 32,895 271,228 332,252
Acquisition of subsidiaries e ZYNG

(Note 27.2 and 27.3) (227,25 27.3) 17,080 7,689 - 14,491 39,260

Amortisation (Note 6) 5 (st o) (4,018) - (3,463) = (7,481)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 41,191 7,689 29,432 285,719 364,031
As at 31 December 2020 AZETEE

+ZR=+-H
Cost A 47,218 7,689 34626 285719 375252
Accumulated amortisation ESgie (6,027) - (5,194) - (11,221)
Net book amount EESE 41,191 7,689 29432 285719 364,031
The intangible assets were acquired as part of a business BEBEENBEFEFEAEBSHN
combination in prior year. — &R T AU ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill of RMB271,228,000 arose from the acquisition of
Top Glory International Holdings Limited in 2019. Top Glory
International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries as a
whole is considered a CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Management of the Group has conducted an impairment
assessment review of the CGU and determined that there is no
impairment of goodwill.

Recoverable amount of the CGU is determined as higher of fair
value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD”) and value in use (“VIU")
of the underlying assets. The VIU was determined by applying
discounted cash flow model on pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a 5-year period, and a discount rate of 18.7%. The discount rate
used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks related to the relevant
operation. The revenue growth CAGR (i.e. compound annual
growth rate over the 5-year projection period) used is 13.3%.
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using
a weighted average growth rate of 3%. The volume of service
revenue in each period is the main driver for revenue and costs.

The growth in revenue and the relevant costs are estimated
based on past performance and management s expectations for
the market development.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is estimated to exceed the
carrying amount by RMB90,031,000 as at 31 December 2020. The
recoverable amount of the CGU would equal its carrying amount
if the key assumptions were to change as follows:

13

BB RRIEE

B EE (B
R (E A

mEARM271,228,000 /s BZF
—NEFWEHSERERBRABRN
EXE - MsBEFERARAT REM
BREEERG,—BREELE
il MEEEWRDEEZREN - K&
EEEEEHZREELEBAETHA
BEThiEs * WHEE MBI ERE -

REEEEMNNAINEEREESR
TR & R A (TR F B R T & AL
x)BREBEECRBE(ERE
B PREE - EREBEREEERE
HENMBRBEEARRARTRE
BAMRBREREREMEE * SAH
BESF TIRER18.7% ° FRAHT
REBHRINAT > IR EIER S ER R
BUFSE B o PR e il R AR & 18
RXESERAPRRNESFER
K)#133% BiBSFHHNRER
SEAMEFIIBRIRINER - &
HERB RS E A W R AN ER

W ig R AR AR ARFIBERR R
BEEBHT R RATRSHEHES o

BN T -TF+"A=1+—H®&
A BRI Rl £ 2R B B AR E
B A E%90,031,0007T ° i F Z1&
REFT > AR EE BRI
ElEREEFNHEREE !

Qo

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
RIZZZEF+ZA=+—H P2 NF+ZA=+—H

From To From To

=] ) B E

CAGR BEFERE 13.3% 10.6% 17.0% 16.6%
Budgeted gross margin BEENE 26.4% 23.8% 15.0% 13.6%
Long-term growth rate REBRE 3.0% (3.2)% 3.0% 1.9%
Pre-tax discount rate PRIRAIITIRE 18.7% 23.3% 18.0% 18.4%

The directors and management have considered and assessed
reasonably possible changes for other key assumptions and
have not identified any instances that could cause the carrying
amount of the CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

EEKEEEEET B KRMEHMEE
BN GEEES) ° BEMIE
AR EERIREELEBAREERBSE
HAJ W EIEEERIIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIHBERRMEE
14 SUBSIDIARIES 14 MBAE
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 () RZEZEF+ZHA=1+—
are set out below: H> TENBATNFES
HanF :
: Principal Ownership Ownership
activities interest held interest held
and place by the Company by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share and the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies IEEHR capital and debt securities HEAFARSER BRI Note
SEL EiEhE BRTRAREHESME  SENEERELD (%) EZRENEEEEE(%) W
2020 2019 2020 2019

ZECEE T ZBEITE “T-HE

Redco Properties Holdings Limited  Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 1L
holding 1 US dollar and
Lordinary share of
nil consideration, USS1
NEHEEEERAT RERR IR I ETNEBR

RIBREAENEERIZT

Principal Ownership

activities Ownership interest held

and place interest held by non-controlling

of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies FEEHK capital and debt securities HAEE BRI Note
GE:L HEHE BRETRAREHESME  FANEARESD (%) RESENEEREED(%) WE

2020 2019 2020 2019
“22%F “T-NF TBIEBE “TNE

Power Creation International Investment 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 1L
Development Limited holding 1 US dollar each, US$100
NEIERERERAT BB 1008k 1 ZTHNEBR100ET
Max Income Holdings Limited Investment Lordinary shares of 100% 100% - - LL
holding 1 US dollar each, USS1
ERERERAT RERR IRER1ETNEBRIET
Maxprofit Globe Holdings Limited  Investment 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - LL
holding 1US dollar each, US$100
MEEBERAT RELR 100K 1 ETHEER100ET
Power Spring International Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - LL
Investments Limited holding 1 US dollar each, USS1
NREBEEBRAT BB 1RERIZETNERRLZR
Top Thrive Real Estates Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 1L
Investments Limited holding 1 US dollar each, USS1
REREEREERAT RERR IRER1ETNEBRIET
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(a)

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 MBATEE)

BB RRIEE

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a) RZEZ_EF+"_H=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE
IETF ¢ (48)
: Principal Ownership
activities Ownership interest held
and place interest held by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies IEEHR capital and debt securities BAEm BRI Note
SEL EiEhE ERTRARGHESME SENEEEESD (%) BRSENREEEED (%) W
2020 2019 2020 2019
IR T2-N\F ZEBIBRE TRN\E
Li Jia International Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% — - 1L
Investments Limited holding 1 US dollar each, USS1
NEEBREEERRAT RERR IRERIZETNEERIZR
Top Creation Worldwide Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - LL
Investments Limited holding 1 US dollar each, USS1
AIBRREERRAT RELR 1RERIZTNEER]IZR
Wei Li International Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 1L
Developments Limited holding 1 US dollar each, USS1
BNERERERAT BB 1RERIZINERRIZR
Redco Education International Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 1L
Company Limited holding 1US dollar each, USS1
NEHBERERAT RERR IRERIZTNEBR]IZR
Shengye International Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - LL
Investments Company Limited holding 1 US dollar each, USS1
REEREERRAT RELR 1RERIZETNEER]IZT
Weisheng International Investment Lordinary shares of 100% 100% - - LL
Investments Company Limited holding 1 US dollar each, USS1
REFREEERAT BB 1RERIZINERRIZR
Weiye International Investments  Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - LL
Company Limited holding 1US dollar each, USS1
REFRLERRAT RERR IRERIZTNEERIZR
Redco Education Holdings Limited  Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - LL
holding 1 US dollar each, USS1
NeERERARAE RELR 1RERIZETNEER]IZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)

R_E_EF+”"A=+—
B’ TEMBEARNFER
T (%)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a)
are set out below: (Continued)

Q@

Principal Ownership
activities Ownership interest held
and place interest held by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies IEEHR capital and debt securities BAEm BRI Note
REEE 2iEE BRTRAREHESAE FENESRESD (%) RESENEEEED(%) W
2020 2019 2020 2019
“EIBF C2N\E BB “BN\E
Top Glory International Investment 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - LL
Holdings Limited holding 1 US dollar each, US$100
HEERERERAT RETR 100 8% 1 E=TH
EER100ET
Philip International Investment Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% - - - 1L
Company Limited development 1US dollar each, USS1
in PRC
FNEREERRAT B ERE 1RER1ETH
EER1ET
Philip Investment Holdings Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% - - - 1L
Company Limited development 1 US dollar each, USS1
in PRC
FNRERRARAE B ERE 1RER1ETH
EER1ET
Redco Oversea Investment Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% - - - 1L
Company Limited development 1 US dollar each, USS1
in PRC and
overseas
NEBMEERRAE TEFRERES 1RER1ETH
KEmRE EER1ET
Power Force International Investment 100 ordinary shares of 60% - 40% - 1L
HOLDINGS Limited development 1US dollar each, US$100
in PRC
FAEBERARAE TEHREREREE 1008k 1 =8
EBR10ET
Redco Holdings (Hong Kong) Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 2L
Co. Limited holding 1 US dollar each, USS1
NEEE (B8 BRAT RERR 1RER1ETH
LER1ER
Power Thrive International Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 2L
Investment Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
HEEREERRAT RELR 1RER1IETNERRL AR
Redco Investment (International)  Investment 10,000 ordinary shares of 50% 50% 50% 50% 2L
Company Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HK$10,000  (Note (i)
NERE ER) BRAS BB 10,000 &% 1B (M=E (i)
ZiBRZ 10,000 87T
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020
are set out below: (Continued)

14 MBATEE)

BB RRIEE

(a) RZB-EHF+-_A=+—
B’ TEMBEARNFER

IETF ¢ (48)
: Principal Ownership
activities Ownership interest held
and place interest held by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies IEEHR capital and debt securities BAEm BRI Note
REETE BiE e BETRFRAHESEE SENEGEED (%) BENENREEERE (%) MW
2020 2019 2020 2019
IR T2-N\F ZEBIBRE TRN\E
Bloom Trend International Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 2L
Industrial Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EEAREEERAT RERR IRER1ETNEER]LER
Redco Industrial Investment Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% — - 2L
Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
NBEERERRAT RELR 1RER1ETNERRL AR
Hong Kong Royal Lofty Investment L ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 2L
Investments Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EAMNSHRERRAT BB 1REkR1ETNERRLER
Redco Properties (Hong Kong) Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% — - 2L
Company Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
NBEE (B8 BRAT RERR 1SR ETNEER]LER
Hong Kong Bingjiang Investment 150,000,000 ordinary 100% 100% — - 2L
Industrial Limited holding shares of 1 HK dollar each,
HK$150,000,000
EABIBXARAE RELR 150,000,000 B 1 #7cH9
&% 150,000,000 %7
Hong Kong Wing Power Investment Lordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 2L
Developments Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EAENERARAE BB 1REkR1IETNERRLER
Hong Kong Power Profit Investment Lordinary shares of 100% 100% - - L
Investments Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EENERERRAT RERR IRER1ETNEER]LER
Hong Kong Shengye Investments  Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 2L
Company Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EARERERRAT RELR 1RER1ETNERRL AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 () RZEZEF+ZHA=1+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE
IETF ¢ (48)
: Principal Ownership
activities Ownership interest held
and place interest held by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies IEEHR capital and debt securities BAEm BRI Note
ASEL HiEhE BRTRAREHESAE FENESRESD (%) RESENEEEED(%) W
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZZIRE T2N\F ZZITE “TNF
Hong Kong Weisheng Properties  Investment 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - 2L
Company Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EAREEEERAT RERR 1SR ETNEER]LER
Hong Kong Weiye Holdings Investment Lordinary shares of 100% 100% - - L
Company Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
BRRERRERAT REER 1RER 1 ETNEBR LET
Hong Kong Power Win Investment Lordinary shares of 100% 100% - - L
Properties Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EANBELERAE BB 1REkR1ETNERRLER
Hong Kong Redco Oversea Investment Lordinary shares of 100% - - - 2L
Company Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EANEEINERAE BB 1RER1IETNERRLER
Hong Kong Goldera Enterprise Investment 46,800,000 ordinary shares of 39% - 61% - L
Limited holding 1 HK dollar each, (Note (xiii))
HK$46,800,000
EAERLEARAT RETR 46,800,000 SRR 1 BTHY  (HiFk (xiii))
1AM 46,800,000 7T
REDCO TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT ~ Treasury Centre Lordinary shares of 100% - - - 4L
PTE. Ltd. 15G dollar each, SG$1
REDCO TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT BEFD LIRS LR
PTE. Ltd. EIER IR
Tianjin Redco Jiye Co., Ltd. Operation and Registered RMB1,217,064,630 100% 100% — - 3, W
management Paid up RMB1,217,064,630
of cultural
tourism
project
in the PRC
RENBEEBRAT TEREEER BELARKL217,064,630 T
BEMIRIEE BHEARE1,217,064,630 7T
Heferi Lihong Property Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB10,000,000 60% 60% 40% 40% 3L
development Paid up nil
in the PRC
BRNEEXARAE EREREYE BE AR 10,000,0007
BRRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

14 MBATEE)
R-E_EE+-A=+—
B’ TEMEBATINFEHR
T ¢ (48)

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a)
are set out below: (Continued)

o

Principal Ownership
activities Ownership interest held
and place interest held by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies TEEBR capital and debt securities HAEE HIFERIE Note
NG EiEME EETRAREHESME SENEEERR (%) HERENESRES (%) M
2020 2019 2020 2019
2RI 2NF ZBIFE Z2NHF
Redco (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd. Property Registered HK$490,000,000 100% 100% - - 3,W
development Paid up HK$490,000,000
in the PRC
B (RE)HEERAR TEHEREE BE32490,000,000 87t
B2 490,000,000
Tianjin Redco Xingye Cultural Cultural Registered RMB600,000,000 100% 100% - - 3,W
Dissemination Co., Ltd. product design Paid up RMB593,793,509
consulting
in the PRC
XENBREXCEEERAT EREREE BEZARE600,000,0007T
EmR A BHEAR593,793,5097¢
Changfeng Lianhua Real Estate Property Registered RMB50,750,000 80% 80% 20% 20% 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,750,000
in the PRC
REMEELERNAT e BEFARES50,750,000 7
B#E AR 50,750,000 7%
Hefei Redco Hongye Property Property Registered RMB50,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
Development Co, Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
BRIBEEMEREERAT TEHEREE BEZARES50,000,0007T
BHRAE50,000,0007
Heifei Liquan Property Co.,Ltd. Property Registered RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
BRNREEERAR TEHEREE BEZ AR 100,000,0007¢
B&E AR 100,000,0007¢
Heifei Redco Weisheng Property Property Registered RMB20,000,000 30% 30% 70% 70% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB20,000,000 (Note (xiii))
in the PRC
ARENBERMEREERAR e BEZAR20,000,0007T Mz (xiii)
B#E AR20,000,0007¢
Heifei Licheng Property Co.,Ltd. Property Registered RMB10,000,000 70% 70% 30% 0% 3L
development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
BRIMELERAR TEHEREE BEZARE10,000,0007¢
BHRAE10,000,0007
Hefei Weili Property Property Registered RMB10,000,00 100% 100% - - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
BREMRIMEREERAR TEHEREE BEZ AR 10,000,0007¢
BAEST
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMEE
14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a) RZEZ_EF+"_H=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

o Principal Ownership

activities Ownership interest held

and place interest held by non-controlling

of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies TEEBR capital and debt securities HAEE HIFERIE Note
GE:L SEHE BRTRAREHESME FENEARESD (%) REEENEEREED(%) W

2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECEE TZF “ETEF CZNF

Hefei Lijia Property Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
BRNEEEERAR TEFEREE BEZ AR 10,000,0007¢
B&E AR 10,000,0007T
Hefei Panrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 70% 70% 30% 30% 3L
development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
BREHELERAT e BB AE50,000,0007
B#E AR 50,000,0007¢
Hefei Zhiyue Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 70% 70% 30% 30% 3,L
development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
AREHELXERAR TEHEREE BEZARES50,000,0007T
BHRAE50,000,0007
Hefei Tongzhu Properties Property Registered RMB100,000,000 60% 60% 40% 40% 3L
Company Limited development Paid up nil
in the PRC
ARREEEXERAR TEFEREE BEZ AR 100,000,0007¢
BHEST
Ganzhou Baoherun Industrial Property Registered RMB42,857,200 30% 30% 70% 70% 3L
Co., Limited development Paid up RMB12,857,200 (Note 27.3)
in the PRC
BNEANBELERAT e BECARK4285720070 (HMist27.3)
B&E AR 12,857,2007¢
Hefei Maomin Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 85% 85% 15% 15% 3,L
development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
BREBEEERAR TEHEREE BEZARES50,000,0007T
BHRAE50,000,0007
Hefei Lianggao Real Estate Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB50,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49% 3L
development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
GRS EXERAR TEFEREE BEZARS50,000,0007¢
B#E AR 50,000,0007¢
Anhui Xinde Business Investment Registered RMB5,000,000 100% 100% - — 3L
Management Co., Ltd. holding Paid up RMB5,000,000
CHEEHLEERRAR REEK BB ARS5,000,0007
B AR5,000,0007¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)

(a) RZB-EHF+-_A=+—
B’ TEMBEARNFER
T (%)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020
are set out below: (Continued)

o

Principal Ownership
activities Ownership interest held
and place interest held by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies TEEBR capital and debt securities HAEE HIFERIE Note
NG EiEME EETRAREHESME SENEEERR (%) HERENESRES (%) M
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIFE “ZNF ZBIRE “Z-NF
Huaiyuan Yidecheng City Property Registered RMB420,000,000 20% 20 80% 80% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB420,000,000  (Note (ii))
in the PRC
RERENERERAT TEFEREYE BEZARE420,000,0007c  (FIsE(ii)
B#E AR 420,000,0007¢
Shenzhen Xingju Trading Co., Ltd.  Trading Registered RMB1,000,000 100% 100% — - 3L
in the PRC Paid up RMB1,000,000
FNEREZERAR HEHEETES BEFARE1,000,0007
BEHEARE1,000,0007
Shenzhen Jindian Design Construction Registered RMB10,000,000 61% 61% 39% 39% 3L
Consulting Co., Ltd. design Paid up RMB500,000
consulting
in the PRC
FImSHREREERAT EHERG BEFARE10,000,0007
BEREA BEEARE500,0007T
Shenzhen Chuangxin Construction ~ Construction Registered RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
Cost Consulting Co., Ltd. cost consulting Paid up RMB1,000,000
in the PRC
FEETREEEAERAR TEREEH BEZAR1,000,0007¢
BEMAEHA B&E AR 1,000,0007t
Shenzhen Redco Dadao Real Property Registered RMB50,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49% 3L
Estate Co. Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
M HEAEEFERAT e BB AR 50,000,0007
B#E AR 50,000,0007¢
Shenzhen Redco Jiye Property Property Registered RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
FNEEEHEREERAT TEHEREE BEZ AR 100,000,0007¢
BHEST
Shenzhen Redco Weili Shiye Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
FNBENBELERERAR TEFEREYE BEZ AR 10,000,0007¢
B&E AR 10,000,0007¢
Shenzhen Redco Hongye Xinxing ~ Operation and Registered RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
Real Estate Service Co., Ltd. management Paid up RMB100,000,000
of cultural
tourism project
in the PRC
FTHEEENEEE TEHEEER BEZ AR 100,000,0007¢
RBEERAE EENIRIER BHE AR 100,000,00075
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 () RZEZEF+ZHA=1+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE
ST - (8&)
o Principal Ownership
activities Ownership interest held
and place interest held by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies IZEHR capital and debt securities £m BRI Note
ARG EIEME EERTRAREHESME SENEEERED (%) HERANEERED (%) M
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIEE “Z-N\E ZBIEE “T-NE
Zhongshanshi Haoyu Real Estate  Property Registered RMB100,000,000 70% 70% 30% 30% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
RUmESEHAEREERAR TEHEREE BER AR 100,000,0007¢
BHE AR 100,000,00075
Zhongshan Jintian Real Estate Property Registered RMB3,333,400 70% 70% 30% 0% 3L
Industry Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB3,333,400
in the PRC
PUmEHENESEEREERAS ATERENE BECAR3,333,4007¢
BEEARE3,333,4007T
Shenzhen Redco Cultural Tourism  Operation and Registered US$1,000,000 100% 100% - - 3,W
Industry Holding Co., Ltd. management Paid up Nil
of cultural
tourism
project
in the PRC
RN RELERERAR ETEEER B&321,000,000 %7
EEVRER BHEST
Shenzhen Redco Healthcare & Investment Registered US$1,000,000 100% 100% — - 3, W
Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd. holding Paid up Nil
AINBRREEERERAR REEK B&321,000,000 %7
BHEST
Shenzhen Redco Kangan Provision of Registered RMB5,000,000 100% 100% - — 3L
Health Management Co., Ltd. healthcare Paid up Nil
service
in the PRC
FINERZREEEERAR EREER BB ARS5,000,0007
FRER% BHEST
Shenzhen Redco Zhangzhewu Provision of Registered RMB29,400,000 100% 75% — 25% 3L
Health Investment healthcare Paid up RMB18,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. service
in the PRC
FINBRERRERE EREER BB AR 29,400,000 7
BEERAR AR B#E AR 18,000,0007¢
Shenzhen Huimeijia Decoration Construction Registered RMB5,000,000 100% 100% — - 3L
Engineering Co., Ltd. and design Paid up Nil
consulting
in the PRC
FEERERTEERAR ERERMEE BERARS5,000,0007
FEGE ] BHEST
Foshan Gaoming Ligao Real Estate  Property Registered HK$10,000,000 100% 100% - - 3w
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up HK$10,000,000
in the PRC
BUmERENERME TEHEREE B&3210,000,000 87T
BEBRAR B4 10,000,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a) RZEZ_EF+"_H=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

o Principal Ownership

activities Ownership interest held

and place interest held by non-controlling

of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies TEEBR capital and debt securities HAEE HIFERIE Note
GE:L SEHE BRTRAREHESME FENEARESD (%) REEENEEREED(%) W

2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECEE T F ZBCEE “T-NE

Jiangxi Man Wo Property Property Registered HK$620,000,000 100% 100% — - 3w
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up HK$300,000,000
in the PRC
IRBHEMEREERAT EHEmEEYE B552620,000,000 7T
B2 300,000,000 7T
Jiangxi Redco Property Property Registered RMB100,000,000 100% 100% — - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
IBENERMEREERAR TEHEREYE BE: AR 100,000,000
B&EARE100,000,0007
Jiangxi Chong De Real Estate Property Registered HK$200,000,000 100% 100% - - 3w
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up HK$200,000,000
in the PRC
IRFERMEREBRAT EHEEEYE BE52200,000,000 7T
B2 200,000,000 7T
Jiangxi Zhengli Property Property Registered RMB200,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB200,000,000
in the PRC
IRENEHEREERAT EHEEEYE BE: AR 200,000,000
B#E AR 200,000,000
Jiangxi Lida Property Property Registered RMB20,000,000 78% 78% 22% 22% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
IBNERMERERRAD TEHEREYE BE AR 20,000,0007
B&EAREK20,000,000 7T
Jiangxi Yiju Property Property Registered RMB80,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB80,000,000
in the PRC
IREERMEREERAG EHEEEYE BELAREKS0,000,000 7T
BAEAREKS0,000,000 7T
Jiangxi Haixiang Property Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100% — - 3L
Development Co. Ltd. development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
IREEEHEREBRAT EHEEEYE BERARE10,000,0007
BAEAREK10,000,000 7T
Jiangxi Lisheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 70% - 0% 3L
development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
IBENEREERRAE TEHEREYE BE AR 10,000,0007
BAEAREK 10,000,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMEE
14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a) RZEZ_EF+"_H=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

o Principal Ownership

activities Ownership interest held

and place interest held by non-controlling

of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies TEEBR capital and debt securities HAEE HIFERIE Note
GE:L SEHE BRTRAREHESME FENEARESD (%) REEENEEREED(%) W

2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECEE TZF “ETEF CZNF

Jiangxi Redco Shengye Property  Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 70% - 0% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
IANBREMEREERAR TEFEREE BEFAES10,000,0007
BHEAR10,000,0007
Jiangxi Redco Travel Cultural Real  Investment Registered RMB100,000,000 100% 100% — - 3L
Estate Co., Ltd. holding Paid up RMB100,000,000
LENBREXCEXZBRAT RERK B& AR 100,000,000 7
B4R AR 100,000,000
Jiangxi Lirun Property Development Property Registered RMB10,000,000 80% 80% 20% 20% 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
IBNERYEREERAR TEFEREYE BEFAES10,000,0007
BHEAR10,000,0007
Jiangxi Redco Weisheng Business  Property Registered RMB50,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
Managing Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
IBENERECEERERAR TERERENE BE: AR 50,000,000 7
BHREARES50,000,0007
Jiangxi Redco Guocheng Real Estate Property Registered RMB100,000,000 20% 20% 80% 80% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB100,000,000  (Note (iii))
in the PRC
LENBESMEREERAT TEHEmEEYE BECARE100,000,0007c  (FsE(iii)
B4R AR 100,000,000
Nanchang Redco Zhangzhewu Provision of Registered RMB1,000,000 75% 75% 25% 25% 3L
Health Industry Co., Ltd. healthcare Paid up RMB1,000,000
service
in the PRC
HENBRERRRES TEHEmEEYE BEFARE1,000,0007
BRERAE B4R AR 1,000,0007T
Jiangxi Chenggao Real Estate Property Registered RMB100,000,000 16% 16% 84% 84% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB100,000,000  (Note (iv))
in the PRC
IERERYEREERAR TEFEREYE BERAREK 1000000007t (HfsE(iv)
B&E AR 100,000,0007¢
Jiangxi Zili Real Estate Property Registered RMB100,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
IRENEHEREERAR TERERENE BE: AR 100,000,000
B4R AR 100,000,0007%
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a) RZEZ_EF+"_H=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

J Principal Ownership

activities Ownership interest held

and place interest held by non-controlling

of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies TEEHR capital and debt securities HFEE BRI Note
ASEL HiEhE ERTRAREBESMS  SENEEERE (%) BERENEEEERZ (%) M

2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIZFE “T-NE ZBIZE “T-NE

Nanchang Gaoyuan Real Estate Property Registered RMB20,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49% 3L
Development Company Limited development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
BERERMEREERAT EHEEEYE BB AR 20,000,0007
BHRAES20,000,0007¢
Jiangxi Li Rui Real Estate Property Registered RMB100,000,000 41% 41% 59% 59% 3L
Development Company Limited development Paid up RMB100,000,000 (Note (xiii))
in the PRC
IBENREERERRAD TEHEREYE BEZARE100,000,0007c  (MiEE (xiii)
B&EARE100,000,0007
Jiangxi Life Sunshine City Property Registered RMB20,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
Investment Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
IRERBAREERNERAT  APEBRENE BEARE20,000,0007
BHEARS 20,000,000
Jiangxi Li Run Property Property Registered RMB10,000,000 80% 80% 20% 20% 3L
Development Company Limited development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
IRNBEREREERAR TERERENE BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHREARES10,000,0007
Nanchang Litou Real Estate Property Registered RMB20,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
BENRRHEREERAS TEHEREYE BE AR 20,000,0007
B&EAREK20,000,000 7T
Ganzhou Litou Real Estate Property Registered RMB50,000,000 49% 49% 51% 51% 3,L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,000,000 (Note (xiii))
in the PRC
BENHEEHEREERAR THRERENE BEFARESS50,000,0007T (B (xiii)
BHEAR50,000,0007
Nanchang Guogao Real Estate Property Registered RMB230,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49% 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB230,000,000
in the PRC
HEEERMEEXERAR EHEEEYE BB AR 230,000,000
BHE AR 230,000,0007%
Redco (China) Real Estate Co., Ltd.  Property Registered HK$100,000,000 100% 100% — - 3,5
development Paid up HK$100,000,000
in the PRC
HE (FE) MEBRAR TEHEREYE BEAE 100,000,000 7
B4R 100,000,000 7T
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(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a) RZEZ_EF+"_H=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

o Principal Ownership

activities Ownership interest held

and place interest held by non-controlling

of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies TEEBR capital and debt securities HAEE HIFERIE Note
GE:L SEHE BRTRAREHESME FENEARESD (%) REEENEEREED(%) W

2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECEE TZF “ETEF CZNF

Longyan Redco Real Estate Property Registered RMB1,000,000 - 60% - 40% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
RETNREMEREERAR EHEEEYE BERARE1,000,0007T
BRRER
Quanzhou Lixing Real Estate Property Registered RMB30,000,000 33% 33% 67% 67% 3,5
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB30,000,000  (Note (v))
in the PRC
SNBEEHEREERAD EHEEEYE BELARE30,000,000c  (HfzE(v))
BHE AR 30,000,0007
Quanzhou Litou Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 59% 59% 41% 41% 3,L
Development Company Limited development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
SMNEEHEREERAR TEHREREYE BE AR 10,000,0007
BAEAREK 10,000,000 7T
Quanzhou Kelongshan Tourism Property Registered RMB50,000,000 55% 55% 45% 45% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
FMHRLREERERAR EHEEEYE BE AR S50,000,0007
B#E AR 50,000,0007
Quanzhou Lisheng Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100% — - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
SHHBEMEREERAT EREEEYE BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHE AR 10,000,0007
Xianyang Redco Property Property Registered RMB20,000,000 100% 70% - 30% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
BENEREREERAR TEHREREYE BE AR 20,000,0007
B&EAREK20,000,000 7T
Xi' an Redco Real Estate Co., Ltd.  Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
development Paid up nil
in the PRC
BZNEEXARAH EHEEEYE BERARE10,000,0007
BRRER
Xianyang Baorong Industrial Property Registered RMB98,000,000 75% 75% 25% 25% 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB98,000,000
in the PRC
RERREEARAT THEREYE BE AR 98,000,0007
BHE AR 98,000,0007
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2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECEE T F ZBCEE “T-NE

Shangdong Redco Real Estate Property Registered HK$100,000,000 - 100% - - 35S
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up HK$100,000,000
in the PRC
LRNBEEHEREERAR EHEmEEYE B2 100,000,000 7T
B2 100,000,000 %7
Yantai Redco Development Co., Ltd. Property Registered US$151,000,000 100% 100% - - 3w
development Paid up US$151,000,000
in the PRC
EANBEEERAT EHEEEYE B85 151,000,000 %7T
B#E 151,000,000 %7t
Shandong Redco Jianghao Real Property Registered RMB100,000,000 80% 80% 20% 20% 3L
Estate Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
LRHE DERMERRAT TEHEREYE BE: AR 100,000,0007%
B&EARE100,000,0007
Shandong Xin Guangyou Properties Property Registered RMB36,734,600 51% 51% 49% 49% 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB36,734,600
in the PRC
LRHEREZRERAT EHEEEYE BERARE36,734,6007
BHEAR36,734,6007
Jinan Redco Weisheng Property Registered RMB100,000,000 80% 80% 20% 20% 3,5
Property Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
EENBREMEREERAD EHEEEYE BEEAREK100,000,0007
B#E AR 100,000,000
Jinan Redco Hongsheng Property Registered RMB18,734,600 100% 100% - - 3L
Property Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
EENeREEREERAR TEHEREYE BERARRE18,734,6007
BERRER
Shandong Jiali Real Estate Co,. Ltd. Property Registered RMB50,000,000 80% 80% 20% 20% 3,L
development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
LRENELBRAR EHEEEYE BE AR S50,000,0007
B#E AR 50,000,0007
Shandong Redco Yingli Real Property Registered RMB50,000,000 80% 80% 20% 20% 3L
Estate Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
LRHEBNEHERRAT EHEEEYE BEEAREK50,000,000 7T
BHEST
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2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECEE TZF “ETEF CZNF

Shangdong Redco Jinsheng Property Registered RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
Jiye Property Development development Paid up nil
Co., Ltd. in the PRC
LRNEREEER TEFEREE BEZ AR 100,000,0007¢
HEREERAT BHEST
Shandong Redco Kaili Real Property Registered US$35,294,100 85% 85% 15% 15% 3,5
Estate Co., Ltd. development Paid up US$35,294,100
in the PRC
LENBINRMEBRAT e B&5 35,294,100 %7
B2 35,294,100 %7
Shandong Weisheng Real Property Registered RMB185,989,377 55% 100% 45% - 3L
Estate Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB185,989,377
in the PRC
LEEBRHEREERAT TEHEREE BEZARE185,989,3777C
EARARK185989,3777
Shandong Xinghong Real Investment Registered USD36,172,100 85% 85% 15% 5% 3L
Estate Development Co., Ltd. holding Paid up USD36,172,100
LEEBRHEREERAT REEK B&5636,172,100%7T
B#E36,172,100%TT
Jinan Dongfeng Real Estate Property Registered RMB20,000,000 90% 90% 10% 10%  3,L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
EARREEERAR TEHEREE BEZARE20,000,0007t
BHRAE20,000,0007
Yantai Redco CP Homes Provision of Registered RMB1,000,000 75% 75% 25% 25% 3L
Health Industry Investment healthcare Paid up RMB1,000,000
Co., Ltd. service in the
PRC
EENEREEREEE TEHEREEE BELARE1,000,0007t
REBRAT iR EHEARE1,000,0007
Shandong Redco Tianrun Real Property Registered RMB10,000,000 60% 60% 40% 40% 3L
Estate Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
LENBXERMEERAT TEFEREE BEZ AR 10,000,0007¢
B&E AR 10,000,0007¢
Yantai Redco Kangan Health Provision of Registered RMB2,000,000 100% 100% - - 3L
Management Company Limited healthcare Paid up RMB2,000,000
service in the
PRC
ERNBEZEEEEERAR TEFERGES BEZAR2,000,0007¢
R B&EARE2,000,0007t
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a)
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o

Principal Ownership
activities Ownership interest held
and place interest held by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies TEEBR capital and debt securities HAEE HIFERIE Note
CEL 2iEE BRTRAREHESME FENEARESD (%) REEENEEREED(%) W
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E_%F TN ZBEE _BNE
Jinan Guorong Property Property Registered RMB10,000,000 53% 53% 47% 41% 3L
Company Limited development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
EREREXARAR THRERENE BERARE10,000,0007
BHEAR10,000,0007
Hebei Aohong Real Estate Property Registered RMB205,000,000 18% 40% 82% 60% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB205,000,000 (Note (xiii))
in the PRC
AR ERHEREERAR EREEEYE BB ARE205,000,0007T  (FiFEE (xiii)
BHE AR 205,000,000 7
Taizhou Jiakai Real Estate Property Registered RMB100,000,000 30% 30% 70% 70% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB100,000,000  (Note (vi))
in the PRC
MBI EHEREBRAT EHEEEYE BERARE100,000,0007T  (HFEE(vi)
BHE AR 100,000,0007%
Chongging Wulong Operation and Registered RMB100,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49% 3L
Zhongming Cultural Tourism management Paid up RMB100,000,000
Co., Ltd. of cultural
tourism
project in the
PRC
EETREPEERERRAT  APEEENE BE AR 100,000,000
BHE AR 100,000,000
Wuhan Redco Property Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100% — - 3,L
development Paid up nil
in the PRC
RENSEXARAT TEHEREYE BE AR 10,000,0007
BAEZT
Hubei Rongxin Renbang Real Property Registered RMB50,000,000 25% 25% 75% 5% 3L
Estate Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,000,000  (Note (vii))
in the PRC
WA CHELERAE THERENE BERARE50,000,0007  (FisE (vii)
BHEARS50,000,0007
Wuhan Fengxiangdao Real Property Registered RMB200,000,000 70% 70% 30% 0% 3L
Estate Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB200,000,000
in the PRC
RETRASEHEREERAT  ATEBEENE BE: AR 200,000,000 7%
BHE AR 200,000,000 7
Yantai Huisheng Commercial Commercial Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Management Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
EETmERHEERERAR ERER RS BEZAREK10,000,000 7T
BHE AR 10,000,0007
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Name of companies TEEBR capital and debt securities HAEE HIFERIE Note
NG EiEME ERTRAREBESMS SENREEERE (%) RENENEEEERZ (%) M
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIFE “ZNF ZBIRE “Z-NF
Jinan Huisheng Commercial Commercial Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Management Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
ERETERDEERERAR TEPENEERE BEFAES10,000,0007
BAEST
Tianjin Huisheng Commercial Commercial Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Management Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
FETERHEERERAD ERENEERE BE AR 10,000,0007
BAEST
Hefei Hongmao Real Estate Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3,L
development Paid up nil
in the PRC
BREREZERAT THEEEYE BEFARE10,000,0007
BHEST
Ningbo Lishi Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 56% - 44% - 3L
development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
ERNEELERAT TEFEREE BEFAES50,000,0007
B#E AR 50,000,0007¢
Xianyang Yegao Real Estate Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB10,000,000 30% - 70% - 3L
development Paid up nil  (Note (viii))
in the PRC
BEEEEXARAT TERERENE BEAREK10,000,0007T  (B5E (viii)
BAEST
Huizhou Litou Real Estate Property Registered RMB50,000,000 25% - 75% - 3,L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,000,000 (Note (xiii))
in the PRC
EMNREHEREERAR THEEEYE BERCARES50,000,0007c (B (xiii)
B4R AR 50,000,000 7
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Name of companies IEEHR capital and debt securities BAEm eElZatled oo Note
GE:L SEHE BRTRAREHESME FENEARESD (%) HANERREDZ (%)  WE
2020 2019 2020 2019
“E_%F "T-NF ZBIEE “BNE
Yantai Letian Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ Property Registered RMB204,081,600 51% - 49% - 3,L
development Paid up RMB204,082,000
in the PRC
BRRREXARAT THRERENE BERARE204,081,6007T
BHEARE 204,082,000 7
Shenzhen Lixing Zhiyuan Cultural ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Tourism Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
FINTREXRERBRAR TERERENE BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHRESR
Shaanxi Huahui Xinke Real Estate  Property Registered RMB10,000,000 24% - 76% - 3,L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil  (Note (xiii))
in the PRC
REEBHNEZERAT TEHEREYE BEARE10,000,0007  (BsE (xiii)
BAEZT
Tianjin Redco Shengye Investment  Operation and Registered RMB100,000,000 70% 70% 30% 30% 3,8
Co., Ltd. management Paid up RMB100,000,000
of cultural
tourism project
in the PRC
RENBREBRAT TRESERER BEEAREK100,000,0007
XAbiRiEEE B#E AR 100,000,0007%
Tianjin Redco Dadao Real Estate ~ Property Registered RMB30,000,000 18% 18% 82% 82% 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB30,000,000  (Note (ix))
in the PRC
KENESREBXERERAR TEHEREYE BERARE30,000,0007  (PEE(ix)
B&EAREK30,000,000 7T
Zhanjiang Jiafu Investment Property Registered RMB10,000,000 48% - 52% - 3L
Co., Ltd. investment in Paid up RMB 464,771,160  (Note (xiii))
PRC
WIEREERRAT THRERENE BERAREK10,000,0007  (BsE (xiii)
BHEARE464,771,160 7T
Nanchang Xinzi Real Estate Property Registered RMB204,081,600 51% - 49% - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB 204,081,600
in the PRC
HEEERMEREBRAD EHEEEYE BERARE204,081,6007T
BHEAR 204,081,600 7
Ningbo Lihan Real Estate Co., Ltd.  Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3,L
development Paid up nil
in the PRC
ERNBEXARAT TEHEREYE BE AR 10,000,0007
BAEZT
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2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECEE T F ZBCEE “T-NE

Shenzhen Lilan Design Consultant ~ Construction Registered RMB1,000,000 100% - - - 3,L
Co., Ltd. activities Paid up nil
in PRC
FmHERFERERAR TEHERRES BEZAR1,000,0007¢
BHEST
Nanchang Gaojin Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 51% - 49% - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
HETRREHEREERAR e BB AR 10,000,0007
BHEST
Hefei Ruirong Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 100% - — - 3,L
development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
AREREEERAR TEHEREE BEZARES50,000,0007T
BHRAE50,000,0007
Fujian Ligao Cultural Tourism Culture, Registered RMB10,000,000 55% - 45% - 3,L
Co., Ltd. education and Paid up RMB nil
sports in PRC
BRENSXEREERAR EREHXE N # BEZ AR 10,000,0007¢
BRER BREAREST
Shenzhen Limao Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
FINEEHEREERAR e BB AR 10,000,0007
BHEST
Yuyao Libo Real Estate Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB50,000,000 30% - 70% - 3,L
development Paid up nil  (Note (xiii))
in the PRC
RKHHABEERAR TEHEREE BEZARES50,000,0007T  (FFzE (xiii)
BREST
Ningbo Lanbo Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3,L
development Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
ERRBEEERAR EHEREE BEZ AR 10,000,0007¢
BREAREST
Ningbo Lizhou Real Estate Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3L
development Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
BRNRBELERAT e BEFAE10,000,0007
BRRAREST
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2020 2019 2020 2019
“E_%F "T-NF ZBIEE “BNE
Ningbo Lifang Real Estate Co., Ltd.  Property Registered RMB20,000,000 51% - 49% - 3L
development Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
ERNHEXARAT THRERENE BEARE20,000,0007
BARAREER
Ningbo Lizhou Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
EFONEEBRAT EHEEEYE BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHEAREZ
Nanchang Lixiang Shenggao Real  Property Registered RMB10,000,000 50% - 50% - 3L
Estate Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB nil  (Note (xiv))
in the PRC
BEMIREEEXERAR THRERENE BEARESK 10,000,000t (FfzE (xiv)
BARAREER
Dongguan Lizhang Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
BRNERMEREERAG EREEEYE BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHEAREZ
Huizhou Lichi Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 51% - 49% - 3,L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
BB R EREERA TEHREREYE BE AR 10,000,0007
BREARBER
Shenzhen Lihong Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
TR EREBRAR THRERENE BERARE10,000,0007
BARAREER
Shenzhen Redco Diversified Residential Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3L
Industrial Co., Ltd. services Paid up RMB nil
in PRC
MINEZitBEERAR ERENEERS BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHEAREZ
Putian Hongling Wansui Real Property Registered RMB50,000,000 60% - 40% - 3L
Estate Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
BRREBREXARAT THEREYE BE AR 50,000,0007
B&EAREKS50,000,000 7T
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2020 2019 2020 2019
“E_%F "T-NF ZBIEE “BNE
Changzhou Songlin Construction  Building Registered RMB5,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Service Co., Ltd. Decoration Paid up RMB nil
in PRC
BT ERSHEERAT TEREISE B BERARES5,000,0007T
BARAREER
Jiangmen Liquanjia Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 34% - 66% - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB nil  (Note (xiii))
in the PRC
IMHRERMEREERAR EHEEEYE BERARE10,000,0007  (BEE (xiii)
BHEAREZ
Hefei Honggao Real Estate Property Registered RMB50,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
BREEEXARAE TEHREREYE BEARS50,000,0007
BREARBER
Nanchang Gaojia Real Estate Property Registered RMB100,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
HERREXARAH THRERENE BE: AR 100,000,000 7%
BRREER
Nanchang Maoli Real Estate Property Registered RMB1,000,000 100% - — - 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
BERNEEBRAT EREEEYE BEZARE1,000,0007
BHRESR
Quanzhou Lihe Real Estate Property Registered RMB1,000,000 100% - — - 3,L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
SMOMEHEREERAR TEHREREYE BE AR 1,000,0007T
B8R
Quanzhou Liheng Real Estate Property Registered RMB1,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
FMHERMEREERAR THRERENE BERARE1,000,0007T
BRRER
Nantong Gaotai Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
EEEREEARAT EHREEEYE BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHREST
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Zhangjiagang Lixin Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 51% - 49% - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
RRBNHMBHEREERARE EHEEEYE BERARE10,000,0007
BHE AR 10,000,0007
Huizhou Lifeng Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
ENHERMEREERAT EHEEEYE BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHEAREZ
Huizhou Lisheng Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB nil
in the PRC
EMNBRUEREERA TEHREREYE BELAREK10,000,000 7T
BREARBER
Qingyuan Ligao Hongye Real Estate Property Registered RMB122,450,000 100% - — - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB70,000,000
in the PRC
BENBBEMEREERAR EHEEEYE BERARE122,450,0007¢
BHE AR 70,000,0007
Nantong Lichong Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
EENZEEERAT EREEEYE BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHRESR
Nantong Lizhao Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
ARENIKEEARAT EHEEEYE BE AR 10,000,0007
B8R
Taizhou Lihong Real Estate Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up nil
in the PRC
SMNREHEREBRAT EHEEEYE BERARE10,000,0007
BRRER
Yixing Litai Real Estate Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3L
development Paid up nil
in the PRC
HENRBEERAT EHREEEYE BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHREST
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 () RZEZEF+ZHA=1+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE
T : (48)
o Principal Ownership
activities Ownership interest held
and place interest held by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies IEEHR capital and debt securities BAEm eElZatled oo Note
NG EiEME ERTRAKREBESES SENREEERE (%) HENESEEZ (%) MizE
2020 2019 2020 2019
IR T2-N\F ZEBIBRE TRN\E
Yixing Lixi Real Estate Co., Ltd. Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - - - 3,L
development Paid up nil
in the PRC
FENEELARAT THRERENE BEFAES10,000,0007
BAEST
Yixing Liying Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3L
development Paid up nil
in the PRC
BRNBREXARAT TERERENE BE AR 10,000,0007
BAEST
Yixing Lizhu Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% - — - 3,L
development Paid up nil
in the PRC
BENEELERAT TEHREREYE BEFARE10,000,0007
BAEZT
Zhanjiang Haihu Real Estate Property Registered RMB12,000,000 49% - 51% - 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB56,443,043  (Note (xiii))
in the PRC
HIEHRHERRAT THRERENE BERAREK 120000007  (BsE (xiii)
BHEARMS56,443,043 75
Foshan Shunde District Taoling Properties Registered RMB10,000,000 60% - 40% - 3L
Investment Co., Ltd. investment Paid up RMB10,000,000
in PRC
BLTIBEERERERRAR TERERENE BE: AR 10,000,0007
BHREARES10,000,0007
Zhanjiang Yigao Property Service  Property Registered RMB2,000,000 60% - 40% - 3L
Co., Ltd. services Paid up RMB nil
in PRC
I ENERBERAD TEFENERS BE AR 2,000,0007T
BHEARES
Changsha Ningbang Ligao Real Property Registered RMB50,000,000 70% - 30% - 3L
Estate Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
ROTERNBSEXERAR THRERENE BEFAES50,000,0007
BHEAR50,000,0007
Xiangtan Ningbang Ligao Real Property Registered RMB10,000,000 70% - 30% - 3L
Estate Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
BENEANBSEXERAT TERERENE BE AR 10,000,0007
BHREAES10,000,0007
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a) RZEZ_EF+"_H=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

o Principal Ownership

activities Ownership interest held

and place interest held by non-controlling

of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies IEEHR capital and debt securities BAEm eElZatled oo Note
GE:L SEHE ERTRAKREBESES SENREEERE (%) HENESEEZ (%) Witk

2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECEE TZF “ETEF CZNF

Nantong Lizhou Real Estate Property Registered USD39,215,700 51% - 49% - 3L
Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB256,982.835
in the PRC
EEONBEEBRAT EHEEEYE BE539,215,700 %
BHEARE 25698283570
Tiangong Hehe (Chuzhou) Real Property Registered RMB50,000,000 51% - 49% - 3L
Estate Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
REGH (BN EXBRAR HRERENE EELARES0,000,0007T
BAEAR50,000,0007
Fengcheng Xinfei Real Estate Property Registered RMB40,000,000 50% - 50% - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB40,000,000 (Note
in the PRC 15(b)(iii))
SHmMAREHEREERAT EHERENE BEEAR40,000,0007 Pz
EARAR40,0000007%  15(b)(iii)
Fengcheng Hengding Real Estate Property Registered RMB20,000,000 50% - 50% - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB20,000,000 (Note
in the PRC 15(b)(iii))
SnmEREHEHERRAT EHhERENE BEZARE20,000,0007T (k3
BHEARI00000007  15(b)iii))
Fengcheng Liding Real Estate Property Registered RMB24,000,000 50% - 50% - 3L
Development Co., Ltd. development Paid up RMB24,000,000 (Note
in the PRC 15(b)(iii))
ST AREHEBERRAT HRERENE BRTAR24,000,0007 Pz
SHEARR40000007  15(b)(ii))
Shenzhen Ligao Hongye Telecommunication Registered RMB10,000,000 30% - 70% - 3L
Information Consulting Co., Ltd. in PRC Paidup il (Notes (x))
AINEEEERLAERAT AHRERER BEZARE10,000,0007T (FitzE (x))
BAIEER
Nanchang Leehom Enterprise Consultancy in Registered RMB100,000 100% - - - 3L
Management Consulting PRC Paid up nil
Co., Ltd.
BENREEEETHERAR TEREIRY S BELAREK100,0007T
BHREST
Nanchang Honggao Enterprise Enterprise Registered RMB100,000 100% — - — 3L
Management Consulting management Paid up nil
Co., Ltd. in PRC
BERBLEEEEABRAR THREEELE BEZAREK100,0007T
BREER

NEMEERERAR - 2020 FERS

221



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)

R_E_EF+”"A=+—
B’ TEMBEARNFER

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 (a)
are set out below: (Continued)

o

SmTF - (&)

Principal Ownership
activities Ownership interest held
and place interest held by non-controlling
of operation Particulars of issued share by the Group (%) interests (%)
Name of companies IEEHR capital and debt securities BAEm eElZatled oo Note
CEL 2iEE BETRFRAHESEE HENEGRER (%) SENEGEER(%) W
2020 2019 2020 2019
“E_%F "T-NF ZBIEE “BNE
Shenzhen Redco Zhangzhewu Medical and Registered RMB29,400,000 100% - - - 3,L
Health Investment Health services Paid up RMB18,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. in PRC
HINBREERRRELRERAT HHENBER BERARE29,400,0007
RERT BHE AR 18,000,0007
Shenzhen Zhongtian Yunlian Software Registered RMB10,000,000 100% — - — 3L
Technology Development invention Paid up RMB nil
Co., Ltd. in PRC
AP REHR R ERERAR BB ERY BEZAREK 10,000,000 7T
BHEAREZ
Shenzhen Yujian Youju Real Property sales Registered RMB5,000,000 100% - - - 3L
Estate Consulting Co., Ltd. planning Paid up RMB nil
in PRC
HIERBEELLABRAR THEEHRER BEFLAREKS5,000,0007
2 BREARBER
Wuhu Forest Property Management  Property Registered RMB5,000,000 51% - 49% - 3L
Co., Ltd. management Paid up RMB5,000,000
in PRC
RATAMNEEEERAR EHEERYE BERARES5,000,0007T
B#EARS5,000,0007T
Jiangmen Yujia Property Service  Property Registered RMB500,000 70% - 30% - 3L
Co., Ltd. service in PRC Paid up RMB350
IFTHENEREERAT TEREIRE R BEZAREK500,0007T
EREARE350T
Yantai Ruilong Dongsheng Property Registered RMB 875,000,000 30% 100% 70% - 3L
Real Estate Co., Limited development Paid up RMB 866,250,000  (Note (xi))
in the PRC
EaERREEERAH EHEEYE BERARES75,000,0007T  (HIZE(xi)
BHE AR 866,250,000 70
Note: P
1:  Incorporated in British Virgin Islands 1! REBRRLESEMMAT
2:  Incorporated in Hong Kong 21 REABEMMIL
3:  Incorporated in the PRC 31 RAEEMRIL
4:  Incorporated in Singapore 41 FORTINEEE AR AL
L:  Register as limited liability company L: ZEABRETAF
W:  Register as wholly owned foreign enterprise W BERANEEERE
S:  Register as sino-foreign equity joint venture S BRAPIEEaERE
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020

are set out below: (Continued)

Note:

(ii)

(iii)

Although the Group owns not more than half of the equity
interest in Redco Investment (International) Co., Ltd.
(“Redco Investment’), it is able to control the financing
and operating decisions since the Group and the other
shareholder agreed that the directors of the Group have the
casting vote in the Board of Directors’ meeting for resolution
of operating and major decisions. The decisions are made by
simple majority. It follows that the Group should consolidate
Redco Investment as a subsidiary in the Group’ s financial
statements.

As the 31% shareholder of Huaiyuan Yide City Development
Co., Ltd. (“Huaiyuna Yide’) has granted its voting rights to
the Group, the Group owns more than half of the voting
rights in Huaiyuna Yide. The decisions are made by simple
majority. It follows that the Group should consolidate
Huaiyuna Yide as a subsidiary in the Group's financial
statements.

Although the Group owns not more than half of the equity
interest in Jiangxi Redco Guocheng Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Redco Guocheng’), it is able to control
more than half of the voting rights by virtue of the fact that
2 out of 3 directors of Jiangxi Redco Guocheng are elected
by the Group and the board of Jiangxi Redco Guocheng is
able to direct the activities of Jiangxi Redco Guocheng which
significantly affect the returns. The decisions are made by
simple majority. It follows that the Group should consolidate
Jiangxi Redco Guocheng as a subsidiary in the Group's
financial statements.

BB RRIEE

14 MBATEE)
R-E_EE+-A=+—
B’ TEMEBATINFEHR
T ¢ (48)

(a)

PIEE
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BEAEREAIGRE
EER)BER280(NHER
B RERBE—F K
MR EEEREMRERE
FEBMEENEFTEEEL
RIS R AR B e AR
REBRRAER HEEH
FIEHIZ A BN B AL E
RE - BRRERBESH
FIFEH o EIE > REEK
BREFAMBABNAE
EBRREEAR

HRNEEREHERBRA
B (MEERTE ) B931%IRER
ERREERHERERE
WAEBEERIRERIENE
B—FRERE BRRER
B ZHBIFH - FIt > &
EERRERBESNEL
BN AEBMBREES
iR o

BETEEERIANSE
I ERZARAT (NIA
HEEH) RETBE—
o EROIRASER=
BREMBESHAERE
H BB SEHNES
BRI BEEIE =S
CREEERTENEE
A E BTGB 1
R - BRRERBES
HHIEE - FHIt > REEF
IS EH R B AR
RAEBYBRRES
iR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020
are set out below: (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

As the 80% shareholder of Jiangxi Chenggao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd is Jiangxi Redco Guocheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, the Group
indirectly controls more than half of the voting rights of
the Jiangxi Guocheng Shareholders Association, and has
appointed more than half of the directors on the board
of directors. The decisions are made by simple majority.
It follows that the Group should consolidate Jiangxi
Redco Guocheng as a subsidiary in the Group s financial
statements.

As the 18% shareholder of Quanzhou Lixing Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Quanzhou Lixing’) has granted its
voting rights to the Group, the Group owns more than half
of the voting rights in Quanzhou Lixing. The decisions are
made by simple majority. It follows that the Group should
consolidate Quanzhou Lixing as a subsidiary in the Group’s
financial statements.

As the 21% shareholder of Taizhou Jiakai Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Taizhou Jiakai’) has granted its
voting rights to the Group, the Group owns more than half
of the voting rights in Taizhou Jiakai. The decisions are
made by simple majority. It follows that the Group should
consolidate Taizhou Jiakai as a subsidiary in the Group's
financial statements.

14 MBATEE)

R_E_EF+”"A=+—
B’ TEMBEARNFER
T (%)

MisE @ (48)

(a)

(iv)

(vi)

HICIENSEMERES
IRABIRI80% IR A E M
BB 88 /2~ 5151 78 0 = B eh 3
EREARAE HEEH
I )T PO B s AR R AR 8
B —$KRE LEEHE
EXFeHBYHNESF -5
RUREIZ B E L HHIEL o
Eit > AEBK IS E
MIERI B RAB A EEHY
BREREAAR

MR RMEEE M ERER
PRaE (TRINEEER 1) B918%
KRRERAFAERRLERE
% WAEEEERMNER
BB —F T’ - ARIR
ERBEELZHEIFL -
It > AR R MEERIES
WEBRARNAEBMBRE
REAER ©

MR MBI B ERER
FRAT (TZRMNE=El) BY21%
KRRERNAERRLERE
% WAERBEERMNE
BB —F R RE - BRIR
ERBE L UG FH -
I > AEER R MNEZIER
WEABNRAEBRMBRE
FEN=PN:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020
are set out below: (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

As the 26% shareholder of Hubei Rongxin Renbang Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Rongxin”) has granted its voting
rights to the Group, the Group owns more than half of the
voting rights in Hubei Rongxin. The decisions are made by
simple majority. It follows that the Group should consolidate
Hubei Rongxin as a subsidiary in the Group’s financial
statements.

As the 21% shareholder of Xianyang Yegao Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (“Xianyang Yegao’) has granted its voting rights to the
Group, the Group owns more than half of the voting rights in
Xianyang Yegao. The decisions are made by simple majority.
It follows that the Group should consolidate Xianyang Yegao
as a subsidiary in the Group’ s financial statements.

The Group holds 48% equity interest in Tianjin Redco Dadao
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Dadao’) through a partially
owned subsidiary. As a result, the effective interest is less
than 50%. As the 3% shareholder of Tianjin Dadao has
granted its voting rights to the Group, the Group owns more
than half of the voting rights in Tianjin Dadao. The decisions
are made by simple majority. It follows that the Group

should consolidate Tianjin Dadao as a subsidiary in the
Group' s financial statements.

As the 21% shareholder of Shenzhen Ligao Hongye
Information Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Hongy€”) has
granted its voting rights to the Group, the Group owns more
than half of the voting rights in Shenzhen Hongye. The
decisions are made by simple majority. It follows that the
Group should consolidate Shenzhen Hongye as a subsidiary
in the Group’ s financial statements.

BB RRIEE

14 MBATEE)

(a)

R_E_EF+”"A=+—
B’ TEMBEARNFER
T (%)

MisE @ (48)

(vii) BRHMIERECHEMER
FRATE (HHIEE(E 1) B926%
REEAFREERHAEKR
% WAERERMILRE
BB —FREE - ARIR
TR EZHEEL -
It > AREER I EREES
WEABRAERPBRE
REAER o

(viii) ARG ESERARAR
(TRUFS % E 1) B21% M &/
ERAERFEHERERE
WAEBEER G ESHE
B—FRERE BRRER
B ZHBIFH - FIt > &
EERBRGESFERHREA
BN AEBMBREES
iR o

(ix)  ZHEEBEEEIDZESBIM
BRABENRENGREEHX
BERARAR (TREXRE
FHABwEm - AL’ &
PRREER (R 50% o IS RIE
RENINKREEMREH
ROHKRERE > WAEEE
BRERENBBA—FKRRE
- ARRERBE LU
R o EIE > REEFRE
RBERBHBABNAER
MHRRIGEAR °

(x)  BERFRINDEBREENAS
BRAB(CRIIBED B
Q% BREMEERFEHE
QR BAERES R
BENBBE—FRER-F
RUREIZ B E S HHIEL -
FIt  AEBBRYIIBEE
AHIWB AN AE BT HBR
KIFBAIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020
are set out below: (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

As the 21% shareholder of Yantai Ruilong Dongsheng Real
Estate Co., Limited. (“Yantai Ruilong’) has granted its voting
rights to the Group, the Group owns more than half of the
voting rights in Yantai Ruilong. The decisions are made by
simple majority. It follows that the Group should consolidate
Yantai Ruilong as a subsidiary in the Group's financial
statements.

The English names of PRC companies referred to above in
this note represent management s best efforts in translating
the Chinese names of those companies as no English names
have been registered or available.

These subsidiaries are indirectly held by partially owned
subsidiaries of the Group and thus the effective interests are
less than 50%.

Although the Group owns not more than half of the equity
interest in Nanchang Lixiang Shenggao Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Nanchang Lixiang’), it is able to control more than half of
the voting rights by virtue of the fact that 2 out of 3 directors
of Nanchang Lixiang are elected by the Group and the
board of Nanchang Lixiang is able to direct the activities of
Nanchang Lixiang which significantly affect the returns. The
decisions are made by simple majority. It follows that the
Group should consolidate Nanchang Lixiang as a subsidiary
in the Group' s financial statements.

14 MBATEE)

R_E_EF+”"A=+—
B’ TEMBEARNFER
T (%)

MisE @ (48)

(a)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

HRESRERREFXAR
~BE(NEBIHEE Y BI21%
REEAFREERHAEKR
o WAEEBERESIREE
BB —FREE - ARIR
TR EZHEEL -
It NEERIESIRBEIES
WEABRAERPBRE
AN

M ER AN PE A
BIAX B BHEEEE A
ERPX EREEARZER
Bl EAMENITERERE

ZEWBABHRAERER
BB ABBERE > At
BT KRR 50% °

BELERBEEEET M
BREBXARAR(HEED
RN HRETBe—F
EEREEmAR=8%A
MBEEHAERESH > B
FMEm N EREE R UE
BREEamIANRRELE
FENEY S WAEEA
EHBR—FHNRER A
RAREREELHHIEL -
Fit > AEEKEE T /I
R BABN AEEMME
BEREGAARR -
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Set out below are the summarised financial information

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

14
(b)

of Nantong Xugao Real Estate Co., (“Nantong Xugao’),
Ganzhou Baoherun Co., Limited (“Ganzhou Baoherun”),
Yantai Ruilong Dongsheng Real Estate Co., Limited (“Yantai
Ruilong’) that have non-controlling interests that are

material to the Group:

Summarised balance sheet

o

B2 E (48)

TR AERIFEREDR
(BWAEEMEBEKR) HFEIE
TEEEXERAT (MFHER
51 EINRMBEEXARA
B (MEE MR RIE &I
RRERREFARAD(NELHR
B B E RIS

BEERRARME

Nantong Xugao Ganzhou Baoherun Yantai Ruilong
eI BT Eaki
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Z2I%F “ZnF ZZI%F “ThEFE ZZIZE “ThE
RMB 000 RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000 RMB 000  RMB 000
AREFT AE®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Current bk

Assets BE 1,325,445 2908939 2,808,994 3943924 1,666,109 700,000
Liabilities B (98,509) (1,927,567)  (956,446) (2,121.417)  (801,723) -
Total net current assets THEEFELE 1,226,846 981,372 1,852,548 1,822,507 864,386 700,000

Non-current k)
Assets BE 4 14,603 - 29,496 600 -
Liabilities & = —  (865,889)  (891,539) - -
Total non-current net assets ERBEEFELE 4 14603 (865,889)  (862,039) 600 -
Net assets BEFE 1,226,850 995,975 986,659 960,468 864,986 700,000
Accumulated NCI BitiEREs 627,445 509698 608,246 — 606,122 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information of
Nantong Xugao, Ganzhou Baoherun, Yantai Ruilong that
have non-controlling interests that are material to the

Group: (Continued)

14 MBATEE)

(b) TERFIEAERIFERED (B
FEEMSBEKR) NEETE
& BNERAEREGIREN

MHERE | (8)

Summarised statement of profit or loss BEREE
: Nantong Xugao Ganzhou Baoherun Yantai Ruilong
HiEEs #NRaE EAtHH
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“E7%f "T-N\F ZBCBFE “T-NF ZBTRE “TNF
RMB 000  RMB 000 RMB' 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
AEETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Revenue W& 1,440,324 — 1,731,082 - - -
Total comprehensive 2EBA/ (F515) 4%
income/(loss) 230,875 (39649) 2509 (84703  (1,264) -
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI PET IR EEN
HH/ (58) 07,746 (0220) 17,567 - (253) -

The information above is before inter-company

eliminations.

EHER DR B E R HEA B2

A o
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

Set out below are the summarised financial information of
Nantong Xugao, Ganzhou Baoherun, Yantai Ruilong that
have non-controlling interests that are material to the

Group: (Continued)

Summarised statement of cash flows

Qo

14 MBATEE)

(b)

TRFEAEAIFERED (Y
FEEMSBEKR) NEETE
& BNERAEREGIREN

MHERE | (8)

RERERHE

Nantong Xugao Ganzhou Baoherun Yantai Ruilong
aEes BT E&TH

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

“E7%f "T-N\F ZBCBFE “T-NF ZBTRE “TNF

RMB 000  RMB 000 RMB' 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000

AREFT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Cash flows from operating REEBREN

activities 194986 75425 145576 19842  (327,664) -
Cash flows from investing REEBHREN

activities - - - - (178) -
Cash flows from REZHRER

financing acitivities (350,000) 50,000 (180,479) 148,250 166,250 700,000

Net (decrease)/increase in RERREEEY
cash and cash equivalents () /Mm% (155,014) 125425  (34,903) 168,092  (161,592) 700,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 15 MU ZEARMNKRE

The carrying amounts recognised in the consolidated balance ReEHEEABRANERN TN
sheet are as follows: T

Qo

2020 2019
k-l 223 “E-NEF
RMPB 000 RMB 000
AR®EFT ARET T
Associates B A ] 513,584 292,796
Joint ventures e 402,672 362,076
At 31 December BR+=ZB=+—H 916,256 654,872
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit REafiEaRraHeEiaRAmE
or loss and consolidate statement of comprehensive income are HHEERIT ¢
as follows:
2020 2019
k-l 222 “E-NEF
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARBTT ARETFT
Share of loss and total comprehensive REBE QBN EGBER
loss from associates 2 HEIBAEEE (21,989) (54,054)
Share of profit and total comprehensive KRB &E b EMEGEF K
income from joint ventures 2HEWEAEEE 48,368 32,509
For the year ended 31 December HE+_RA=1+—HILEE 26,379 (21,545)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 15 DUREZEARRIIEE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Interests in associates (a) MEEATIRELZ

o

2020 2019

ka3 3 “E-NEF

RMB’ 000 RMB 000

AREBTT AREFT

At beginning of the year FH1]) 292,796 383,463

Additions wE 341,883 189,100
Addition upon step acquisition DRIEEERAE (W5E27.3)

(Note 27.3) _ 303
Transfer to subsidiaries (Note 27.3) BENB AR (MEE27.3) (68,447) (210,043)
Disposal (Note b(ii)) HE (BIEEDb(ii) (30,659) (15,973)
Share of loss, net PE(hESIE) 348 (21,989) (54,054)
At end of the year TR 513,584 292,796
The directors of the Company consider that none of the KABEERARERE QT
associates were significant to the Group and thus the HAEEMSEEA > FHILL
individual financial information of the associates was not IR B & E WS QB RVE B Bt
disclosed. BEk o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 15 DUREZEARRIIEE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Nature of interests in associates (b) MEEATNEDYE

2

Principal
place of % of ownership
Name of entity business indirectly held interest Nature of entity
BRRaE TEREEHE MEREAEEDESL BENE
2020 2019
—EEF "Z-hE
Ganzhou Baoherun Co., Limited PRC — 30% Property development
(“Ganzhou Baoherun”) (Note i in the PRC
and 27.3)
ENRIMBEEXEBRAR (M#EMNRE)  HE (Ff=Ei TEREIREE Y
% 21.3)
Lianyungang Hengrun Real Estate Co., Ltd ~ PRC — 40%  Property development
(“Lianyungang Hengrun”) (Note ii) in the PRC
EEBEHEXARAR (MEZHIE®) HEH (Pd=Eii) TEREIREE Y
Fencheng Xinfei Property Development PRC — 40%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (“Fencheng Xinfel”) (Note iii in the PRC
and 27.3)
ST MARE M ERZEERAE alE (P i TEREIREE Y
(MR ) 52 27.3)
Fengcheng Liding Property Development PRC — 40%  Property development
Co., Ltd (“Fencheng Liding") (Note iii in the PRC
and 27.3)
SRmAHREMERESRAT FEY (M= iii TEREIREYE
(M8 % 27.3)
Fengcheng Hending Property Development ~ PRC — 40%  Property development
Co., Ltd (“Fencheng Hending") (Note iii in the PRC
and 27.3)
ST EHEEREERAT aalE (P i TEREIREYE
(MEin ) 5% 27.3)
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15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature of interests in associates (Continued) (b)

2

Name of entity

Principal
place of % of ownership
business indirectly held interest

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

REFE AT EE ()

Nature of entity

BREAE TEQS Y BREGEEZASL BREE
2020 2019
T “Z—hF
Tibet Yunxi Enterprise Management PRC 48% 48%  Property development
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (Note iv) in the PRC
(“Tibet Yunx?”)
AEEETXEEERPE (BRER) FRE (PtzEiv) ERERREYE
(TPEREIEED)
Funan Anhua Times Real Estate PRC 20% 20%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. in the PRC
ERZERRBEMEMESRAT R TEREIREE Y
Love Care Redco (Shanghai) Senior Care PRC 20% 20%  Provision of healthcare
Service Co., Ltd. service in the PRC
BRENS (LB BEZRBERAR R EHERHEERT
Huizhou Gaozhao Real Estate Development ~ PRC 49% 49%  Property development
Co., Ltd in the PRC
EMNTEIKEHERERRAR FE ERERREYE
Huizhou Lijia Real Estate Co., Ltd PRC 33% 33% Property development
in the PRC
BINHEMEBRAT FE EREIREYE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature of interests in associates (Continued) (b)

2

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

REFE AT EE ()

Principal
place of % of ownership
Name of entity business indirectly held interest Nature of entity
BRERE TEQEMY MEEAREZESL BEME
2020 2019
—BIBF _ZNE
Wuhan Huacheng Quanyou Real Estate PRC 20% 20% Property development
Co., Ltd. in the PRC
HREEMNEREEBRAA alEd TEREIRE &Y
Nanchang Junyu Meijia Property Service PRC — 35%  Provision of property
Co., Ltd. (“Nanchang Junyu Meijia”) (Note v management services
and 27.3) in the PRC
MEEEERMERBERAE alEd (P¥sEv TERERR MY E EIERTS
(MaEEEEXR) %% 27.3)
Guigang Huazhang Real Estate Development PRC 33% —  Property development
Co., Ltd. in the PRC
ERETEMERZFRAE alEd TEREIRE &Y
Linquan Anhua Real Estate Development PRC 20% —  Property development
Co., Ltd. in the PRC
BRRZERMERERRAT FE TEREREYIE
Huaihua Jinlu Hotel Management Co., Ltd. ~ PRC 40% — Hotel management
in the PRC
BB BSEIERRAT FE EHRERESEE
Nanchong Hongling Yongjing Real Estate PRC 30% —  Property development
Co., Ltd. in the PRC
MARRERREERRAT FEY TEREIREYE
Shanghai Gangxuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC 30% —  Property development
in the PRC
LBBHEEARRE FEY TEREIREYE
Yixing Yangheng Real Estate Development ~ PRC 40% —  Property development
Co., Ltd. in the PRC
HEBRGEEMERZEERAR alE TEREIRE &Y
Jiangxi Hengying Technology Industry PRC 20% — Technology development
Development Co., Ltd. in the PRC
AR RREEEERBRAR alEd ERER T REEE

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



15

(CONTINUED)

(b)

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

2

Name of entity

Principal
place of

business indirectly

BB RRIEE

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(b)

% of ownership

held interest

REFE AT EE ()

Nature of entity

BRRaE TEREEHE MEREAEEDESL BENE
2020 2019
—EEF "Z-hE
Changsha Hangao Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC 49% —  Property development
in the PRC
RIVESEMERRAF alEd TEREIRE &Y
Gongging City High-tech Zone Chuangxin PRC 49% —  Provision of property
Ligao Property Service Co., Ltd. management services
in the PRC
HERTSMERIFN NSRS alEd TERERR MY E EIERTS
BIRRF
Gongging City Gold Medal Property Service  PRC 49% —  Provision of property
Co., Ltd. management services
in the PRC
HEWHEEYERBERAT AR EHBHR Y X E AR
Liyang Gangzheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC 30% —  Property development
in the PRC
RSB EEXARAT alEd TEREIRE &Y

The associates held by the Group have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares. All of the associates
are private companies with no quoted market price

available for their shares.

FEBEFRFHEQATDHEANR
FEREEER - FTABMELR
BII9RAAART * BRI E
TIHE|E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

Note:

(i)

Ganzhou Baoherun is a limited liability company
incorporated on 19 June 2014. The principal activities
are property development and management in the PRC.
Ganzhou Baoherun was accounted for as an 30% associate
of the Group up to 23 January 2020.

The property project of Ganzhou Baoherun consists of three
phases. The Group is entitled to 30% interest in phase 2 and
3 and an additional 21% voting rights of phase 2 and 3 of
Ganzhou Baoherun was granted to the Group by the 70%
shareholder of Ganzhou Baoherun. The decisions of phase
2 and 3 are made by simple majority. Meanwhile, the Group
has no interests in phase 1. As of 31 December 2019 and up
to 23 January 2020, even though the Company holds 51%
of voting right in phase 2 and 3 of Ganzhou Baoherun, the
directors of the Company is of the view, having considered
the terms stated in the operating agreement entered into
with the other shareholder and the way in which the board
of the Company governs the affairs of Ganzhou Baoherun
legally, that the Company does not have power over certain
operating business of Ganzhou Baoherun and is not exposed
to or able to obtain variable returns from that operating
segment for the purposes of HKFRS 10. It follows that
the requirements in HKFRS 10 for consolidation have not
been met, the Company should not consolidate Ganzhou
Baoherun as a subsidiary in the Company s financial
statements and should account for its interest in Ganzhou
Baoherun as an associated company as at 31 December 2019
and up to 23 January 2020.

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(b)

REFE AT EE ()

PYEE
(i)

BEMNEMEAR S —NE
AB+TNBEMEINER
NE) EBEHBATPEYE
BRNE - EINRAEE
AR EBE3%NEE QT
AR BEE-_E-_TF—8
“+=H-

BENRMENYEEBEE DS
M AEEBREREZ
BB % = HAAY30% # &
M & N 1R 0B Y 70% iR =R
BAEEZETEMNRENEE
“HRE=NEINI21%
KE# - FTHNREZHDN
REUBELHERE [
B AEBERE AN EL
fA#HE - R _E—hF+Z
B=+—HKREEZIZZZ
F—BZ+=H’#FE42
SFAEMNENEE K
FEZHRSINKE Z# 8
KABBERERAELME
BT L A E s P R AR
RAEABESEREERE
MNEMBEH 2 HRE > T
AMERBMBREEAE 10
SRS QB EEIMNRA
HENETREXEB L RER
e Bl mER AT
A E D EPES B 2 [B] 5 ©
At RZZE—hEFE+A
=+—HRBEE_Z_ZTF
—BZ+=8 HREXBH
BEBYBEREENE105E
Hiza ARPIENRE > K
/NI N /NS R R
R EE PN TR AL E A — KM
BABGEAR MEFE
REMRAER RIS —
KEHERTIALR ©
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b) Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(if)

Since 23 January 2020, majority of properties for phase 1
project, in which the Group has no interest, were completed
and sold. The remaining assets of Phase 1 project were sold
to the other shareholder of Ganzhou Baoherun according
to the supplemental agreement entered into between the
Group and this other shareholder. The remaining operating
business was dominated by phase 2 and 3 projects, in
which the Group is entitled to 51% of voting right and 30%
interest. Accordingly, as of 23 January 2020, the Company
has the power over the remaining operating business of
Ganzhou Baoherun and is exposed to variable returns from
the operating segment. As a result, the Company should
consolidate Ganzhou Baoherun as a subsidiary in the
Company s financial statements from 23 January 2020, the
date of step acquisition.

On 2 December 2019, the Group agreed to sell 40%
interest of Lianyungang Hengrun, at a cash consideration
of RMB77,014,000, to an independent third party and the
transaction was completed on 16 June 2020. Upon the
completion, Lianyungang Hengrun was derecognised as
an associate of the Group and the gain on disposal of
RMB46,355,000 is included in “other gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BB RRIEE

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(b) MEHEATNERMEE (&)

PYEE

(i)

(1)

BE-Z-ZTE-—A-+=
B> xEEMEEEREN
ABOE—HEEYEDE
IhEH - F—HBEENG
TEEEREAEREZH
MR LB RIBEE T
BINRIBOHEMRER © 8%
TREXFRE _RE=H
HEXE X HhxEEF
e B51% I IR #E K 30% %
e Al RZB T F—
AZH+=8"> xREREM
RN HG T EEEFIES
# WEKEDBERA
gRiK-Ht B2 ==
F-—AZ+=HEEB D
BRWEEE) > ARBER
BINRIBERWBERFT N
KRB BREGE AR

RZZ2—NE+ZBAZH"
AERARBURENEAR
177,014,000 cEBILE =
FHEERBEEI40% #
m RBERITEIEEN
B+/NHEMK - 5THlE > &
EEEBERILENARE
EHEA AT MEEWEA
F 1§46,355,0007T B 5 A
aftBEm R EMK R P
A o
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On 25 December 2020, Fengcheng Hengding, Fengcheng
Liding, Fengcheng Xinfei increased and allotted to
the Group additional share capital at a consideration
of approximately RMB3,333,000, RMB4,000,000 and
RMB6,667,000, respectively, after which the Group holds in
total 50% equity interest of each company. Pursuant to the
memorandum of association of each company, 1% of the
voting right from another shareholder has been yielded to
the Group. Effectively, the Group has controlled more than
half of the voting rights in shareholders meetings of each
company. As key decisions of each company are determined
at the level of shareholders and the major resolutions of
shareholders’ meetings only require a simple majority
approval, the Group considers it has obtained control
over each company. Accordingly, they are derecognised as
associates and classified as subsidiaries and the results have
been consolidated since 25 December 2020.

Tibet Yunxi is a partnership incorporated on 24 April 2019.
The principal activity is investment holding. Tibet Yunxi is
accounted for as an associate following the capital injection
of RMB170,000,000 by the Group and appointment of 2
members out of 5 in the investment decision board of Tibet
Yunxi and the Group obtained the significant influence on
24 April 2019. The Group is able to obtain 14.29% (2019:
14.29%) variable returns from the interest in Tibet Yunxi.

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(b)

RECE AT MRS E (R)
MEE : ()

(iii)

(iv)

RIZ2ZE2HF+"_A°+H
B’ 8RES- - SHHEK
LI R AR ) A £ B N R
Bt S 2B MR A KB 9 Bl
A A R 13,333,000~ A
R 14,000,000 7T & A R #&
6,667,0007C ° BILAERR
BL AT EFH50%HIRRHE o
BRESADNERZTEKR
Mo kKBS —KREN1%E
ZHREHETAER - A5
EEBBIERISABKREKX
g LBEYHMIRER - h
RERBNEBRETER
REEETE MREAEE
BREREERBEANZEY
e AEERAEDE
BEABBIEGIRE o AL >
HEERIERIBHENT
WHEAMBAR > MEE
BEEBZZZZFE+ZA
“t+RHBEREAR -

AEHEEAN _E—NEN
BZ+NHFMBNERE
tE FEFHAREE
o BEAERTIEARE
170,000,000 7¢ % ° 78 & &
BEEEABEABAKR > I
SARREERERRES
GL5REER2Z MAE
BERZE—hEMAZ+M
BERSEATEN - AEH
AEAREENED PR
B1429% (= & — N, & :
14.29%) A] &£ [013R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b) Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v)

Nanchang Junyu Meijia is a limited liability company
incorporated on 27 June 2006. The principal activity is the
provision of property management service in the PRC. On
14 December 2020, Nanchang Junyu Meijia entered into an
acting-in-concert agreement with another shareholder which
holds 33% interest, whereby the said shareholder and its
appointed director will follow decisions made by the Group
and directors appointed by the Group in shareholders
meetings and directors meetings respectively. Effectively,
the Group has obtained 68% voting rights in aggregate in
shareholders meetings and is able to appoint three out
of five directors. As resolutions of directors meetings only
require a simple majority approval, the Group considers it
has derecognised an associate and obtained control over
Nanchang Junyu Meijia. Accordingly, Nanchang Junyu Meijia
is derecognised as an associate and classified as a subsidiary
and the result has been consolidated since 14 December

2020.

BB RRIEE

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(b) MEHEATNERMEE (&)

MisE o (49)

(v)

MEEEERANRTEX
EXNBZ+EBEMARIN
ARECTAR TEEHA
EFEREY EEERT
RZZ2EZZ2F+ZA+H™
H mEEEEREF—F
FE3BNEZNRETIL
—RiTEHE BIEZER
BREZTEERDHIRME
AEBRAEBRPRERS
REEGETRTESE
HERE « ZEBEB B ME
BREARETEHBWHIE
T NAETIRREEE
=% c HREEGHR
ERETRBGERLHMM
o AREBERAECK LR
RAMENTLEREHEEE
BERMWESIE - AL &=
EEBEBEXCKRIEHD AT
ENBM N EAKB AT
MEXEEE T4
+ZB+HREEEAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 15 DUREZEARRIIEE (8)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Interestsin joint ventures

o

BETEER

2020 2019
—EEH 2%
RMB 000 RMB 000

AREFT ARETT

At beginning of the year FH1]) 283,726 241,046
Addition wE 201 10,000
Addition upon step-acquisition DRIEEERAE (W5E27.3)

(Note 27.3) _ 171
Transfer to subsidiaries (Note 27.3) BWEBENBE AR (iEE27.3) (9,674) —
Share of profit FEAL & A 48,368 32,509
Net asset attributable to AEEEGNEGEESE

the Group’ s interest 322,621 283,726
Unrealised gain from the transaction H—REEPEIZH

with a joint venture RER N (22,320) (22,380)
At end of the year FR 300,301 261,346
Loans due from joint ventures (Note i)  FEURE &t 2RIE (i) 102,371 100,730

402,672 362,076
Note: PdEE -

(i) The loans due from joint ventures, Hui Gao Investments
Development Limited and Power Out International Holding
Limited, are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed
repayment terms. The carrying amount approximates their
fair values and are denominated in HKS.

The directors of the Company consider that none of the
joint ventures were significant to the Group and thus the
individual financial information of the joint ventures was
not disclosed.

(i)

BREECEESREER
ARABRITAERERE
RABZERARE ~ B
WREBEENFH - IkE
BEARQTEES > LB
ToEHE ©

FAREEDAMESELE
HAEEMSBEA Akl
EREREAREENENY
BE o

240 | REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 15 DUREZEARRIIEE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature of interests in joint ventures (d) REETENERNEE

2

Principal
place of % of ownership
Name of entity business indirectly held interest Nature of entity
BRRaE TEREEHE MEREAEEDESL BENE
2020 2019
—BIBF _ZNE
Redco Industry (Jiangxi) Co., Limited PRC 50% 50% Hotel management
in the PRC
NEBE(LIA)BRARE HE TEREEEAE
Power Out International Holding Limited PRC 68% 68%  Property development
in Australia
TTREEERBRAT a3 mRMNRE Y=
Hui Gao Investments Development Limited ~ PRC 49% 49%  Property development
in the PRC
EsRELRARAT FE EPEIREY =
Shenzhen Redco Hongye Property PRC 50% 50% Property development
Development Co., Limited in the PRC
RNNEREMERERRAT HE EHPEIREY S
Qingyuan Ligao Hongye Real Estate PRC — 14%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Note i) in the PRC
(“Qingyuan Ligao Hongye”) (PaEi)
ARNEREMEREARAT FE TEREIREYE
(DEENEBE])
Jiangxi Province Guogao Property Services  PRC 51% 51%  Provision of property
Limited management services
IREESYERBBRAE FE REMEEERS
Nanchang Yingmei Property Co., Ltd. PRC 51% 51%  Provision of property
management services
AEREMERRAT FE RENFEERT
Shijiazhuang Lanting Property Management  PRC 51% 51%  Provision of property
Co., Ltd. management services
AREBENEEEBRAE HE RUMEEERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature of interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The Group has joint control over the above entities under
contractual agreements, and unanimous consent is
required from all parties for all relevant activities of the
entities.

The joint ventures held by the Group have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares. All of the joint
ventures are private companies with no quoted market
price available for their shares.

Note:

(i)  Qingyuan Ligao Hongye is a limited liability company
incorporated on 24 July 2019. The principal activities are
property development and management in the PRC. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group acquired
remaining equity interest of Qingyuan Ligao Hongye.
Accordingly, Qingyuan Ligao Hongye is derecognised as a
joint venture and classified as a subsidiary and the result has
been consolidated since 14 August 2020. Please refer to Note
27.3(c) for further details.

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(d)

REEEFENEREEE (B

-
FERRBEOHEE LHE
RRAEMGEN®E  MATAS]
WHRA—BRABHAETZE
FERVPR A TRREE) o

AEBRFEEEEEANR
FEVEEBER -FIEGEDR
FHBIARTE > Higfn I
HIHEHE

PyEE

() BEIOABBEANRIZ—N
FHAZ+MAFEMARILN
BREERE FEEEFA
EHEREREEYE - &
ECEEFE+"HA=+—
BEFEE AEEKRES
BENOSBRENGTRE - A
It BENERERL L
RAGECELSEANE
NE] MEERKEEZZZ
ZENAB+MNBEGSE
IRe BLHEBH2RAMEE
27.3(c)
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 16

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same tax authority. The analysis of deferred tax assets,
net, is as follows:

Qo

BB RRIEE

IEIEFRISHE

BEEFTEMEEREBRERGATTE
BURER S BTN IR E EE SRV AT IR &
REMREN ° BIELEPISRAR—K
IR RREUR BT 77 P BARIR SN o MESERR

BEEEFENWT
2020 2019
—ECEHE —E-NF
RMB' 000 RMB' 000

ARBFTE  ARETT

Deferred income tax assets FEIEFTSMEE
- to be recovered within 12 months — 5 1218 B (ol
- to be recovered after more — BB 1218 B BT

than 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities FILFRSIRAas
- to be settled within 12 months —BR 12MEBREEE
- to be settled after more —BRiBiE 12E B %S

than 12 months

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets, net EIERTE (BE) EEFHE

724,168 327,709
703,833 506,905
1,428,001 834,614
(1,252,759) (237,650)
(701,718) (397,256)
(1,954,477) (634,906)
(526,476) 199,708
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S HMBIRRMIEE
16 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 16 IRIEFRSH (48)
The movements on the net deferred income tax (liabilities)/ IEIEFRSIR (BR) EEFENES
assets are as follows: W
2020 2019
ZTIERF —E-NF
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AERETIT
At 1 January w—A—H 199,708 173,782
Credited to the consolidated statement of R&EfHBEHmERPIES (s 10)
profit or loss (Note 10) 898,628 377,387
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 27) BB A B (HI5E27) (1,642,413) (339,941)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) HEMRB LR (MI5E28) 17,601 (11,520)
At 31 December R+-B=+—H (526,476) 199,708
Deferred tax assets: FIERIEEE -

Qo

Unrealised
profit ~ Taxlosses  Provisions Total
REFEH REEsHE & st

RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AERBTR AREFTR AR®TR ARETR

At 1 January 2019 RZZ2—hF—HF—H 5,685 116,012 338,136 459,833
Credited to consolidated REfBERRTEA
statement of profit of loss 70,190 21,809 290,509 382,508
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 27)  WEEHMIE AR (HzE27) — 3,793 — 3,793
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) HEMNB AR 5k 28) — (11,520) — (11,520)
At 31 December 2019 iy ==
+-A=+—H 75,875 130,094 628,645 834,614
At 1 January 2020 R_E_TE—F—H 75,875 130,094 628,645 834,614
Credited to consolidated REfBERRTEIA
statement of profit of loss (15) 115,610 477,792 593,387
At 31 December 2020 AT TE
+ZHA=+—H 75,860 245,704 1,106,437 1,428,001
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMFBIRRMEE
16 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 16 IEEFRISIA (48)
Deferred tax liabilities: EEIRIFEE
: Fair value Fair value
adjustment on gainonan
acquisition of investment  Withholding
subsidiaries property tax Total
ks
W@ AR REME
ATEEE AT EkE bEIE fazt
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2019 RZ2-NE—F-H 52,868 110,802 122,381 286,051
(Credited)/charged to consolidated RafEEERT GIA) /N
statement of profit of loss (90,890) 31,539 64,472 5121
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 27) IEB MR (MFE2T) 343,734 - - 343,734
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H 305,712 142,341 186,853 634,906
At 1 January 2020 RIZEZZ5—F—H 305,712 142,341 186,853 634,906
(Credited)/charged to consolidated REfHERFR (GTA) /N
statement of profit of loss (343,310) 652 37,417 (305,241)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 27) WEEIEAE) (MFE2T) 1,642,413 - - 1,642,413
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) HEMBAT (38 28) (17,601) - - (17,601)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZEE+TF=+—H 1,587,214 142,993 224,210 1,954,477
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

16 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2020 and 2019, the unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

Qo

16

IEIEFRTSTR (48)

BEPRSIREET N A IR AR IR
SRS SR A A mAVER TS
BIREBRERER - R TF R
T-NE+"A=+—H’ KREIN
EEEIT

2020 2019
—BCE=HF —E—NE
RMB' 000 RMB' 000

ARBFTE  ARETT

Expiry date in: fErm 2 ER
2020 —E—Er
2021 —ET
2022 B F
2023 “ZT=F
2024 :;ﬁ:mﬁ
2025 “ETRF

No expiry date b 4% v H 2R

— 1,949
— 2,954

925 11,550
3,685 16,087
2,172 16,630
8,646 -
15,345 15,345
30,773 64,515

During the year, tax losses amounting to RMB1,523,000 (2019:
RMB340,000) expired.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, deferred tax on withholding tax is imposed on
declared dividends in respect of profits earned by the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008.

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately RMB45,087,000
(2019: RMB45,087,000) as at 31 December 2020 have not been
provided for in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the Group’ s certain PRC subsidiaries as the Group controls the
dividend policy of these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable
that these temporary differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

FA MIEEGEARE1,523,0007T
(Z2—h%F 1 AR¥340,00070) B
[&i o

RIFAB R P Bl 1 X PRSI AR A Bo&
R mAEENTERBATRE -
ﬁj\ﬁ ﬁ Eﬁﬁﬁ?um%u _/}EBIJ
g SRR TEINIRIEIETR

R _TFE+ A= +— BRI
TS EEAas ARE45087,000
T(ZZE—NF . ARM45,087,000
) BERGHEEERRTH
AEBETHEMNEBARRHEFE
LR ERR R iR ° RESTEE
EHZERENBABENRKREERE
EREF =R A SET &I P] RS 2R o

246

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



17

18

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 17 HEHEMBIEETIYE
2020 2019
—EEF “E-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AREBTT ANRETFT
Amount comprised: IEEHE ¢
Land use rights B 2,224,674 1,159,641
Construction costs and BEMAREREHEE
capitalised expenditures 3,633,726 1,691,556
Interest capitalised BEAREFE 307,242 185,855
6,165,642 3,037,052

Completed properties held for sale are all located in the PRC.

FERENEER YRR FE -

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 18 FFEHENREhYE
: 2020 2019
—E=E —E-hE
RMB 000 RMB' 000
AR¥ETT AEEFIT
Within normal operating cycle TERZSERAN
included under current assets FWERENEE
Amount comprised: FIEEHE
Land use rights T HIE R R 34,950,110 22,896,833
Construction costs and BEMARER RS
capitalised expenditures 12,067,088 6,353,672
Interest capitalised ERN(sil)S) 3,068,119 1,719,254
50,085,317 30,969,759

The normal operating cycle of the Group’s property
development generally ranges from one to two years.

FAEEREPYENESZSEFR—

RAF—EMF o
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

18 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE (CONTINUED) 18 HEHEMRZEDME (B)

The properties under development for sale are all located in the SRR ERVREE P RE o
PRC.

Qo

2020 2019
ka3 —T-NEF
RMB' 000 RMB 000

ARETT ARETT

Properties under development for sale: FEHENRRERYE :

Expected to be completed and AR R EBIE 12EA%BIET

available for sale after more than R &

12 months 22,194,113 10,521,984
Expected to be completed and FERRR R 12 @B g T

available for sale within 12 months K et HHE 27,891,204 20,447,775

50,085,317 30,969,759

Pledged as collateral for the Group’ s B ARERGR

borrowings (Note 23) BIIE R @ (FsE 23) 24,513,550 19,010,759
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 19 EBSREWEHRIE - HahfEKERIE - 37

OTHER PREPAYMENTS ERHEMBTRIE
: 2020 2019
—ETF —E-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AR®BTT AREBFT
Trade receivables, other receivables B REWEIE - HithEWEIa
and deposits: Ftes -
Trade receivables (Note a and b) B S EWEIE (M5t a k& b) 182,013 359,763
Other receivables HihEWEIE 1,954,771 1,620,236
Interest receivables FEUF S 11,073 20,744
Receivables in relation to the disposal of BRAHEDBEARFEHEEE
assets and liabilities held for sales KEENENEIE 150,000 150,000
Deposits with local real estate TS B E I ERY
associations (Note c) %<& (fysko) 538,804 401,940
Deposits with labour department R ENERFIRVIE & 29,014 19,112
Deposits with treasury bureau RS %S 60,506 89,391
2,744,168 2,301,423
Less: provision for impairment on other B EMENRIE R
receivables and deposits (Note d) BERERE (M d) (87,813) (65,260)
2,656,355 2,236,163
2,838,368 2,595,926
Prepayments: FARUIE !
Prepaid other taxes HMFEHMRE 2,080,975 661,907
Prepayments for construction costs B ATRI IR 271,310 77,658
Prepayments for land use rights T RRETE(TRIE = 924,184
Prepayments for acquisitions of UM B AR TR RIA
subsidiaries 24,300 195,020
2,376,585 1,858,769
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note:

(a)

Trade receivables mainly arise from sales of properties. Proceeds
in respect of sales of properties are to be received in accordance
with the terms of the related sales and purchase agreements.
Credit terms are generally granted to certain customers and the
customers are required to settle the receivables according to the
sales and purchase agreements.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the balance sheet dates
based on revenue recognition date was as follows:

o

B 5 FEULTRIE « HfthFEURRIE - 12
&R EMFBAGRIE(E)

M5

(a)

BRRWNRETIEZEELEBHEY
¥ o HEMEMSRIAGREAHA
BB B 15 R RUREL - —RM S °
ETERERERE MARMER
RIRREE R BERGRIE

B ZEUERIAN S S B (MU i
S ALE) ERES DT ¢

2020 2019

Itk 2 —BnE

RMB' 000 RMB' 000

ARETF T ARBT 7T

0 - 30 days 0&E30K 124,118 233,732
31-60days 31E60XK 5,040 73,831
61 - 90 days 61E90XK 128 669
91 - 180 days 91&E 180K 1,933 511
Over 180 days BiE 180 X 50,794 51,020
182,013 359,763

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9. The expected losses rate
is minimal, given there is no history of significant defaults
from customers and insignificant impact from forward-looking
estimates. No provision was made against the gross amount of
trade receivables (2019: Nil).

The deposits with local real estate associations mainly
included deposits made to PRC government bodies for future
land development and site clearing for the listing-for-sale or
in connection with the retention of the quality for properties
construction as required by the relevant regulations in respect of
the Group' s property development projects.

FEHEAEBYBHREENSEO
SEFASIBARIAE T EmM R A E B
BELEE - ANERBTLES
R¥EREHk > BIZMRATEIE L ETHY
FEEM > FHILERBEERIBE -
A F 5 FEBR R ARRR (F L
(ZE-NF 8| -

REMEMEREGNIZE T EOE
1) R B U A L R 2k £ th e 3 e
BEMESEFENEE  HEE
RRGIMAERYELEREBRE
AMRMENRRERNEE -
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMFBIRRMEE
19 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 19 EZEWERIE - HtEWKERIE ~ 1%
OTHER PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) EREMBETRIE (B)
Note: (Continued) BIEE - (48
(d)  Movements on the provision for impairment for other receivables (d) EHtEWEIEREREEESNT

are as follows:

: 2020 2019

—ECTE —E-nE
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AREFT
At 1 January w—RA—H 65,260 50,260
Impairment loss on other receivables Hth e IE R EEE (MEE6)
(Note 6) 22,553 15,000
At 31 December B+=-B=+—H 87,813 65,260
(e) The carrying amounts of other receivables and deposits (e) EBEZREWIFIERZENIREERE
approximate their fair values and are unsecured, interest-free and NEEEE  TARER s 2B
repayable on demand. TEREREIR -
() The carrying amounts of the Group’ s trade and other receivables (l FTEBEZKEMERRIERZE
and deposits are denominated in the following currencies: REREEU THIEEHE ©
2020 2019
ZEIEE “E-hEF
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AREF T
RMB AR 2,838,368 2,559,180
HKS BT — 36,746
2,838,368 2,595,926
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH 20 RERBLZEYRSRERES

Qo

2020 2019
—EEF “E-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AREBTT ANRETFT
Cash at bank and on hand RITAFHERE 6,182,806 11,094,295
Short term bank deposit (Note a) ZHASRTTEAR (M5 a) 3,466,617 —
Cash and cash equivalents RWERIREEEY 9,649,423 11,094,295
Restricted cash (Note b) ZRREIIRE (M5t b) 4,156,859 3,965,210
Cash and cash equivalents and RERREEBYRZRGRE
restricted cash 13,806,282 15,059,505
The carrying amounts of the Group’ s cash and cash equivalents FERRERREZBYRZRGEIR
and restricted cash are equivalent to their fair values and are THERESREEATERF LT
denominated in the following currencies: HIGHEEHE ¢
2020 2019
ZEZE —Z2—NEF
RMPB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETTT ARETIT
RMB AR 12,943,972 13,154,846
USS ETT 839,290 1,851,334
HKS BT 22,859 53,099
AUD BT 161 226

13,806,282 15,059,505

252 | REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

Note:

(a)

The deposits had an average maturity of three months or less,
except that RMB2,505,300,000 of bank deposits as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil) had maturity dates over 3 months and contained
an unconditional cancellable term.

Restricted cash comprises (i) guaranteed deposits for the
mortgage loan facilities granted by banks to purchasers of the
Group' s properties, (ii) guaranteed deposits for constructions
of properties from certain property development companies of
the Group that are required to place certain amount of presale
proceeds of properties in designated bank accounts in accordance
with relevant regulations issued by local State-Owned Land and
Resource Bureau (and other bank deposits in 2019: RMB40,255,000
(Note 23)) that are restricted in use as collateral for banking
facilities of the Group.

The cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash denominated
in RMB and certain cash and cash equivalents denominated
in USS, amounting to RMB262,977,000 (2019: RMB47,908,000),
are deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of such
balances out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government

BB RRIEE

RERRESFEMRZRERE
(%)

M5

(a) THFHHNFEHIPAAB=EAIMU
TR _BE-—_ZHF+_A4
=+—H AR#2,505,300,000 7C
NIETERNEHERBE=EA
(ZE2—N%F . 8) > BEEERKNH
BIHEE IR FRAIBRSM o

(b) ZRFIBESSE()HBITETEA
EEYEBRNIZBERMEMIE
HEREREZS; ()VREMSEE T
B REIE R HNREARER
IEERT R OERS TEEYER
BRIBMAEBRNES TYEBEA
EEHNERYERES; (R
TN | WIRHI AR AREMIRT
BB R RRNEMRTERARE
40,255,000 7t (ft5E 23)) ©

NARBSHENRERREEEEY
ERZREREERUETHENS
THEARRTEEYEEARRE
262,977,000t (ZE—NF: AR
147,908,000 7z) BH R EIRVIRTT ©
A R B R SN Y B R A AR R T H
EFEMRBIINEEHRR A KA ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HMTBEIRRMEE
21 SHARE CAPITAL 21 RS
: Share capital
BA
Number Par value
of Share per share HKS 000 RMB' 000
BIHEE SREE TEn AEETT
Authorised: A
As at 31 December 2019 and 2020 RIE2-NERZZZEE
+-A=1+-H 100,000,000,000 HK$0.05 5,000,000 4,188,990
Issued and fully paid: BETREMRE
As at 31 December 2019 and 2020 RIB-NERZEZEE
+-A=1+-H 3,551,609,322 HK$0.05 177,580 139,632
22 RESERVES 22 &
: Share  Exchange  Statutory Merger Other  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves  earnings Total
BivEE  EREE  iTHE  AfEE  HtEE  RIRA ot
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 1,241,423 (287,511) 366,695 134,402 (416)  2,783220 4237813
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year EREF - - - - — 1034931 1,034,931
Other comprehensive loss H2EEE
Currency translations differences ERERES - (88,161) - - - - (88,161)
Total comprehensive income 2EWERE - (88,161) - - - 1034931 B 946770
Transactions with owners HEEANRE
Transfer to statutory reserve BREATRE - - 146,676 - —  (146,676) -
Change in ownership interests ERTIRREHNERT
in subsidiaries without RWBARMARRER
change of control ity=5)) - - - - (36,215) - (36,215)
Dividends relating to 2018 final EI2- \ERHAR
(Note 34) MRS (MEE34) - - - — - (106,548) (106,548)
Total transactions with owners, RERAHEREEE A
recognised in equity g ret ] - - 146,676 - (36215) ) (253224) ) (142763)
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-NE
+ZA=1+-H 1,241,423 (375,672) 513,371 134,402 (36,631) 3,564,927 5,041,820
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
RESERVES (CONTINUED) 22 (& (@)
: Share  Exchange  Statutory Merger Other  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves  earnings Total
RiVEE ERRE  iTERE  AfRE HtRE  RE9ERF fact
RMB' 000 RMB'000  RMB' 000  RMB'000  RMB' 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
AE®Tr AEBTR ARETRt ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZB2-Z&—B—H 1,241,423  (375,672) 513371 134,402 (36,631) 3,564,927 5,041,820
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Profit for the year FRREF = = = = — 1,295,966 1,295,966
Other comprehensive loss HEth2msE
Currency translations differences BREREE = 434,038 = = = = 434,038
Total comprehensive income PEREERE - 434,038 - - - 1,295966 1,730,004
Transactions with owners R 2 PNEY
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTLTERE = = 156,713 = —  (156,713) -
Change in ownership interests TEESEREHNERT
in subsidiaries without RIBARFERE
change of control i) _ _ _ _ 2,147 - 2,147
Dividends relating to 2019 final BN EXHEH
(Note 34) MRS (15 34) = = = = —  (106,548)  (106,548)
Total transactions with PIRARHEREEE A
owners, recognised in equity HA 5458 = = 156,713 - 2,147 (263,261)  (104,401)
At 31 December 2020 RZB-FF
+-B=+-H 1,241,423 58,366 670,084 134400 (34484) 4,597,632 6,667,423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

23 BORROWINGS 23 &

Qo

2020 2019
—ETHF “E-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Long-term bank borrowings (Note a) EHRITE (st a) 9,390,276 3,451,066
Senior notes (Note b) B ZER (MsEb) 4,009,532 1,243,720
Non-current borrowings JERPERMERR 13,399,808 4,694,786
Short-term bank borrowings (Note a) FERRERIT AR (Mizk a) 3,077,546 3,152,063
Senior notes (Note b) BRI (MsEDb) 2,681,103 5,630,402
5,758,649 8,782,465

Portion of term loan from bank (Note a) ERARITEME D (st a)
- due for repayment within one year —BR—EREE 829,176 3,173,759

- due for repayment within one year —ER—FERER(ES

which contain a repayment BEREEEN

on demand clause 123,721 131,683
Current borrowings BNEAfERR 6,711,546 12,087,907
Total borrowings fERABEE 20,111,354 16,782,693

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank borrowings as at 31
December 2020 of RMB10,476,017,000 (2019: RMB6,161,583,000),
were secured by certain properties under development for
sale (Note 18) with the carrying amount of RMB24,513,550,000
(2019: RMB19,010,759,000), an investment property (Note 12) of
RMB505,322,000 (2019: RMB504,837,000) (2019: and bank deposits
(Note 20) of RMB40,255,000). The Group's bank borrowings of
RMB9,598,123,000 (2019: RMB3,746,988,000) were guaranteed
by the Company and secured by the Group' s equity interests in

certain subsidiaries.

Bank borrowings bear interest from 3.09% to 14.94% (2019: 4.02%

to 13.50%) per annum.

W_E_FF+_HB=+—H"
AEBNRTERAARE
10,476,017,000 75 (ZZ— L& : A
R #6,161,583,00075) * W& TER
E{E A A\ R#24,513,550,000 75 (=
T —hFE: AR #19,010,759,000
TR ERERERYER
1) REMEMFEI) AR
505,322,000 70 (Z 22— : AR
504,837,00070) (ZZ— 45 © &iR
T rER (M 55 20) A R # 40,255,000
70) TEIRIR o REBBIRITERAA
FR#89,598,123,000 7 (- B —N 4 :
AR 3,746,988,000 75) ERZAAF
BR THAEERRETHBAR

BOBRHE(FHEHR

RITEMIZ3.09% £ 14.94% (Z=F
— L5 1 4.02% % 13.50%) B F FI

EHE o
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23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

The Group have issued the following senior notes which are listed
in Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited:

23 fEF(E)

MisE (&

)

(b) EEEEHITTIIENHMKRS
FrsE s 5 BRAT EHEBER

b=
0 Outstanding balance
FEEGELS
Interest
Senior note rate Issue date Maturity date Par value 2021 2020
BAEE FE  #7H )]s mff g5 3°%E
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETR  A\RETR
9.875% Senior Note due 2021 9.875% 2 May 2019 2 May 2021 US$180,000,000 746,814 1,243,720
ST -FHEITNELER ZZ-NE & 180,000,000 7%
HRZH TAZH
139% Senior Note due 2023 13% 27 March 2020 27 May 2023 US$150,000,000 953,969 -
2T CEHBEDBBELER —ECFE ZETCE 150,000,000 %7t
=ZAZ+tH ATRZ+tH
11% Senior Note due 2022 11% 6 August 2020 6 August 2022 US$220,000,000 1,386,015 -
ZETTRIBINERER “ET%E e 220,000,000 7t
NB7 B AV=hay=|
8.5% Senior Note due 2021 8.5% 20 August 2020 19 August 2021 US$300,000,000 1,934,289 -
TR -FIESSNEREE _ETEF Z2T-F 300,000,000 7%
NBZ+H NE+NH
9.9% Senior Note due 2024 9.9% 17 November2020 17 February 2024  US$266,000,000 1,669,548 -
ZZTMEHE I BARE “ET%E “ECmE 266,000,000 7t
+-B+tH ZA+tH
11% Senior Note due 2020 11% 28 February 2019 29 August 2020 1$5200,000,000 - 2,150,741
“ECRFIB NN ERER =y fis “ETEE 200,000,000 7%
“EZf)\H NEZ+H
13.5% Senior Note due 2020 13.5% 22 January 2019 21 January 2020 US$250,000,000 - 1,746,112
TSR BNEREE “Z-NE “Z%E 250,000,000 7t
—BZ+ZH —BZ+-H
11.5% Senior Note due 2020 11.5% 10 December2019 8 December2020  US$250,000,000 - 1,733,549
“2EERHBEISNELER =y fis “ETEE 250,000,000 7%
+ZA+H +ZANH
Total 6,690,635 6,874,122
st

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company made an
offer and repurchased certain 9.875% Senior Note due 2021. The
aggregated par value repurchased by the Company amounted to

USS$65,776,000.

REEZZ-ZEF+-HB=1+—
HIEFE> ARBEREENILRE
EIEF - —FEIH9.875% 2
HEB ARBEONEEES
65,776,000 37T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The interest of these senior notes is payable semi-annually in
arrears.

The Company, at its option, can redeem these senior notes in
whole or in part prior to their maturity at the redemption price as
defined in the agreements of these notes. The Company, at the
option of bond holders, shall repurchase the 13% Senior Notes
due 2023 prior to its maturity at the repurchase price as defined in
the agreement of the note.

The aforementioned early redemption options and the repurchase
option are regarded as embedded derivatives not closely related
to the host contract. The directors consider that their fair value
was insignificant on recognition and at 31 December 2020 (2019:
same).

The Group’s senior notes as at 31 December 2020 totaling
RMB6,690,635,000 (2019: RMB6,874,122,000) are guaranteed by the
Company and secured by the Group's equity interests in certain
subsidiaries, and subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating
to certain of the Group’s financial indicators. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants.

23

&7 (%)

izt - ()

PEEEDENT RS LR
fi—% o

AT R BTEENZER BT
HIH R 2B A0 LU= ERIEE
[CERBLEZERELRE - £EF
FEATEET » AREEERH
AR B 1755 R E RS R ERsE —
T =FHH13%EBERE -

Litie T O R R K BB O B A
AR A E T SRETIREERA
XITETR - BFRR RNFZ
TE+"A=+—H’ LR HE
OEREZATEEFER(CE
—hE D HEE) °

AEBR_ZEZZEFE+TA
S+ HNELAZEREGHARKE
6,690,635,000c (ZZE—1F . A
R#6,874,122,0007t) EHZAEAT
R WHAERRETFTWEB AR
HIREIEIRIR > MAEEMBEL
ERYEBTRAERE TS
IEERIMNEY - AEBRTHERHE
BPZELRNNIER ©
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 23

The amounts based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements and the maturities of the Group’s total
borrowings at the respective balance sheet dates (i.e. ignoring
the effect of any repayment on demand clause) are shown
below:

Qo

BB RRIEE

&7 (48)

AEENEBEE QNERBERNE
B|ERERBEIATEERB )
Fe & i HAFR (B B RS iR ZREIE
HRRBIRE) HIIT -

2020 2019
—BEF “E-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBFTE  ARETT

Amounts of borrowings that are repayable: B T7IEAREBNERNSEE :

- Within 1 year —1FR

- Between 1 and 2 years —1ZE2%

- Between 2 and 5 years —2E5F
Total borrowings (L

6,711,546 12,087,907
5,331,643 2,558,545
8,068,165 2,136,241

20,111,354 16,782,693

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is not
significant or the borrowings carry floating rate of interests.

AEBRRITERVREEREZEATE
BE  RRARTENEELAEXR
WETIZFHFRE R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 23 {2 (4E)
The Group's borrowings are denominated in the following RERBERZE T GEEE !
currencies:

: 2020 2019
k- k- 223 “E-NEF
RMPB 000 RMB 000
AR®EFT ARET T
USssS e 8,509,145 9,300,170
RMB AR 11,475,231 7,346,406
HKS BT 126,978 136,117
20,111,354 16,782,693

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had aggregate facilities of
approximately RMB21,762,794,000 (2019: RMB18,843,540,000)
for overdrafts, bank loans and senior notes. There were
unused facilities of approximately RMB1,557,016,000 (2019:
RMB2,060,847,000) as at the same date.

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Qo

RZEZEF+Z/=+—H"’ =&
EEEBEEEY RTEFRK
BLEENMERELNAARE
21,762,794,000 c(Z & — J1 £ :
A R %18,843,540,0007C ) ° 12 @
— B RFHARMENAARE
1,557,016,000 T (ZE—NE : AR
#2,060,847,000 7) ©

24 BHREMEARE

2020 2019

ZEZEF = — N4

RMPB 000 RMB 000

AREBTT ARETFTT

Trade payables (Note a) B S EAIE (st a) 4,420,000 3,421,830
Accruals and other payables FEEHE A R HMETRIE 9,961,301 7,069,553
Other taxes payables HFEIIRIE 939,816 1,254,228
Dividend payables eI R 4,970 36,392
Salary payables EftEE 15,983 13,909
Interest payables FEATFIE 2,754 219,623
Rental deposits received BWRE%EE 7,230 4,651
15,352,054 12,020,186
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Note:

(a)

BB RRIEE

24 BHREMMECRIE (&)

FEE
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date (a) BIZEMREZREZHHNRED
was as follows: Mrans -

: 2020 2019
—EIETHE —E=-nE
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT
0 - 30 days 0&30K 3,911,635 2,979,396
31-60 days 31F60K 78,210 61,965
61 -90 days 61F 90K 78,032 94,626
Over 90 days BiE 90X 352,123 285,843
4,420,000 3,421,830

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables approximate (b) HERIEBRE > AEEZZEMN

their fair values due to their short maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’ s trade and other payables are

THAVREEER A TERS °
REBE F KR EMBENRIENRE

denominated in the following currencies: EUTIIEEHE !
: 2020 2019
ZEIEE —E-nFE
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARBTT AREFT
RMB AR 15,169,247 11,801,120
uss e 182,807 219,066
15,352,054 12,020,186
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25 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at 1 January 2020 is approximately
RMB7,655,291,000 (2019: RMB3,836,116,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Unsatisfied contracts related to the sales of properties

As at 31 December 2020, approximately RMB11,944,035,000
(2019: RMB9,362,202,000) of unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from the property sales are
expected to be recognised within twelve months period,
whereas approximately RMB16,621,960,000 (2019:
RMB11,397,080,000) of unsatisfied performance obligations
resulting from the property sales are expected to be
recognised after twelve months.

25

BHRMR

(a)

MENR AR

BHE_Z_ZHE+_A=+—
HIEFE > St A S _ZTFE—
B—B&aaBERnemE:l
WEEH A AR 7,655,291,000
T(ZTE—-—NEF: AEK
3,836,116,0007T) ©

BRHEMENREITEL

A ZETEF+ A=+ —
H> kB EHEHENX
ETRENEETHNANARE
11,944,035,0007t (= & — 1
£: A B 9,362,202,000
o) BEEN T @B M
NI MEBYEBEEN
FEREBENSEETOARE
16,621,960,000 (= & — A
£ ARM11,397,080,000 7T)
S g K = K -2 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

26 NOTETO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 26 AfHRTREBRMEE

(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash generated (a) ERGEFEKESERBFIREF
from operations: BEZERHER -
o 2020 2019
ka3 3 “E-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AR T
Profit before income tax PRPTSMRATEF] 2,126,311 2,640,985
- Depreciation of property, plant —E -~ BERSRETE
and equipment 24,889 18,998
- Amortisation of intangible assets —EEEERH 7,481 3,740
- Finance income —REURA (149,846) (122,486)
- Finance costs — BB A 23,726 19,981
- Losses/(gains) on disposal of —HEWB AT
subsidiaries 518, (WE) 51,621 (113,821)
- Gain on disposal of investment in —HER—KEE
an associate NEIKEN NS (46,355) (8,407)
- Gains on bargain purchase arising — B B AT
from acquisition of subsidiaries ELrZEREENRT (124,455) (72,912)
- (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —HEYE - BEK
plant and equipment i () B8 (300) 5,400
- Fair value gain on investment —REVMEATFEWT
properties (2,606) (63,723)
- Fair value gain on investment —BEBEFFREN
properties upon transfer from =Rk E S
properties under development KREMELTEWT
for sale — (62,432)
- Share of (profit)/loss of investment —EEUEREARZ
accounted for using the equity BE (afl) EiEFE
method, net (26,379) 21,545
- Impairment loss on other — HAEWCRIERY R E RS 18
receivables 22,553 15,000
- Impairment loss on contract assets — BN EENRERSE 4,761 —
- Remeasurement gains on interests —EMstEUERE
in investments accounted ARRZ B m IS
for using the equity method (538,423) (286,634)
- Realisation of unrealised gain from —HRE—REERHE
the transaction with R ARSI
a joint venture (60) (360)
- Exchange differences —ERERE (48,102) 31,323
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BT ERRMEE
26 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 26 AHESR=RMEEGE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash generated (a) FAGFHAKEFRFRES
from operations: (Continued) HZEMHER . (8)
: 2020 2019
—ETHF “E-NE
RMB' 000 RMB 000

AREFT N

Operating profit before working capital EEZESEBFINLEEHN

change: 1,324,816 2,026,197
- Completed properties held for sale —FEHENBB TY= (3,345,960) (903,234)
- Properties under development —FELEMRRERYE
for sale (7,765,291) (7,347,772)
- Trade and other receivables and — B REMENRIE
prepayments FRFRNIE 835,571 1,797,763
- Contract liabilities —aNEaE 8,897,478 8,907,357
- Trade and other payables —BZ REMEMRIE 58,510 134,865
- Restricted cash —ZREIRE (192,067) (1,836,616)
Net cash (used in)/generated & (FrA) /Fii3IRe 388
from operations (186,943) 2,778,560
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S HMBRRME

26 NOTETO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

26 BHEERERME (B

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities (b) ZRERMEEENEEHIR
o Liabilities from financing activities
REREIBNER
Amounts
to non- Amount  Amounts
Dividend controlling  duetoan to Joint
payables Borrowings  interests  associate  ventures Total
B ET-X
FESIE BEAT  EAAE
ERKE B BuFE ME hEDE st
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000
AEEFT AEB®TR ARETT AREFR ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2018 PRI\
+-B=+-A 52,337 11,059,681 2,123,659 66,000 23,756 13,325,433
Advances from non-controlling ~ REFFESIEERTN
interests — — 1484858 — —  1,484858
Advances from joint ventures RERELERS - - - - 21,020 27,020
Advance from an associate RE-FEEREEH - - - 419,280 - 419,280
Proceeds from bank borrowings  $R{TERFIERUA — 7,663,125 - - — 7,663,125
Repayment of bank borrowings ~ BERTED —  (5,934,044) - - —  (5,934,044)
Issuance of senior notes ETRLER — 5,372,245 - - —  5372,245
Repayment of senior notes BEBLEE — (2,130,404) - - - (2,130,404)
Dividend paid BiRe (184,035) - - - —(184035)
Other non-cash movements EfIEReEE 168,090 600,000 1,537,584 - — 2,305,674
Foreign exchange adjustments ShEREE - 152,090 - - - 152,000
As at 31 December 2019 RIZ—NE
+-B=+-H 36,392 16,782,693 5,146,101 485,280 50,776 22,501,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

26 NOTETO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

26 BHEZMERME (B

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities (b) kEMEETHNEBEEHIE
(Continued) (48)
o Liabilities from financing activities
REMEEHNERE
Amounts
to non- Amount  Amounts
Dividend controlling duetoan  toJoint
payables Borrowings interests  associate  ventures Total
Eft  EfE-%
I BEAR  EMRE
EfRE B HETE RE GERE fazt
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000  RMB 000
ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2019 RIZ—NE
+-B=+-A 36,392 16,782,693 5,146,101 485,280 50,776 22,501,242
Repayment to non-controlling BRI ERER
interests - - (538,396) - — (538,396
Advances from joint ventures REAELEER - - - - 8 8
Repayment to an associate A—XEEABED - - —  (326,006) —  (326,006)
Proceeds from bank borrowings  $R{TERFTERUE — 10,032,449 - - — 10,032,449
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTRER - (6,727,239) - - - (6,727,239)
Issuance of senior notes BIRLEE — 6,230,539 - - — 6,230,539
Repayment of senior notes BEBLEE — (6,030,530) - - — (6,030,530)
Dividend paid BARE (141,969) - - - - (141,969)
Interest paid BIFE — (1,687,729 - — — (1,687,129
Other non-cash movements HiFREEH 110548 2,134334 1,467,521 - — 3,712,403
Foreign exchange adjustments SMNERE - (623,163) - - — (623,163
As at 31 December 2020 RIZEZZE
+2B=+-0 4971 20,111,354 6,075,226 159,274 50,784 26,401,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

27.1 Assets acquisitions

(a)  Acquisition of Nanchang Xinzi Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

On 8 May 2020, the Group completed the acquisition
of 51% equity interest of Nanchang Xinzi Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (M EBZE Eih E 3 &
BRAT) (“Nanchang Xinzi") at a consideration of
approximately RMB174,671,000. Nanchang Xinzi
is principally engaged in property development in
Nanchang and holds a parcel of land in Nanchang
City, Jiangxi.

(b)  Acquisition of Zhanjiang Jiafu Investment Co., Ltd.

On 8 March 2020, the Group completed the
acquisition of 60% equity interest of Zhanjiang
Jiafu Investment Co., Ltd. CE I EEBEREERAHT)
(“Zhanjiang Jiafu”) at nil consideration. Zhanjiang
Jiafu is principally engaged in property development

in Zhanjiang and holds a parcel of land in Zhanjiang
City, Guangdong.

Apart from the above, the Group acquired a number of
property development project companies. The directors
of the Company consider that these subsidiaries acquired
during the year were insignificant to the Group and thus
the individual financial information of these subsidiaries on
the acquisition date was disclosed as “Others’ in aggregate
amount.

As the above newly acquired companies did not operate
any business prior to the date of acquisition, the Group
considers the nature of the acquisitions as acquisitions
of assets in substance and the consideration should be
attributable to the individual assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

BB RRIEE

27 WEEMEBAR
27.1 BEWHE

(a) WERSZEFMERE
BIRAAE]

R_E"EFR/N\RH"
REBMRKEOARE
174,671,000 7t 5¢ A% U B8
HMEEEERMERESR
Bral(lMEZEEN) D
51% KR - FHEEETE
NETHEREYWE
EIfmEmFE — IR
8 o

(b) WIEE TEEREERA
i

ATBISEZANR
A S B S BRI
HIERREBRAD
(T8 5T 52 48 1) 59600 B
o RIRETEUEE
SEIREYE LR
IHHE SR -

PRUAEPREE » AEBKRES
EYEERIBE AR - AAF
EEXRn REAWBNZS
MBARHAERMSEE
R HIbzEWE AT R UE
HEBVERI B ERE TR
B TEHM -

R LHHT R A R R R B
HIRIARBRETMES &%
B WBEENEETWE
BEEE > MRERRIER
PR B ERPRIEEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WHEEMEBAT ()

27.1 BEWE (&)

RN UE B AR RES
HEMNAE  FIRBEENA
FEMRAZEER - JFEFIME
RmZ W B e SRR
REEFEZRVIZLEOITEE

27.1 Assets acquisitions (Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for the acquisitions, the fair value of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. The non-
controlling interests are measured at proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of net identifiable assets as at

the acquisition date. FTE ©
o Nanchang Zhanjiang
Xinzi Jiafu Others Total
HEEE HIER Hith st
RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
AEBTRT  ARETR AEBFTRT  ARETR
Consideration paid as at REEHREARE
acquisition date 174,671 — 65,908 240,579
Recognised amounts of BESGIGIVE =940
identifiable assets acquired REEENE
and liabilities assumed: MR
Property, plant and equipment M BEREE - - LALT LALT
Prepayments, deposits and BTE e
other receivable KBRS 1,006,246 54,413 71,680 1,132,339
Properties under development By e 106,194 191,349 812,328 1,109,871
Cash and cash equivalents ReERATEEY 236,246 40 85,855 322,141
Other payables HihEI B - (111,177) (851,962) (963,139)
Amounts due to non- eI TR
controlling interest (1,006,194) (134,625) — (1,140,819)
Total net identifiable EEADE 1
assets acquired FEMRE 342,492 - 119,318 461,810
Less: Non-controlling interest A U BERRIA
initially recognised as at FESR A IR PR
acquisition date i3 (167,821) - (53,410) (221,231)
Net assets acquired PR B E R E 174,671 65,908 240,579
Analysis of net inflow of cash and BRNENE AT
cash equivalents in respect of RERREE
acquisition of subsidiaries: BIRA
RBND
Cash consideration paid ENREAE 174,671 - 65,908 240,579
Less: Cash and cash equivalents RS R
acquired BLLEY (236,246) (40) (85,855) (322,141)
Net cash inflow RERAZE (61,575) (40) (19,947) (81,562)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.1 Assets acquisitions (Continued)

The fair value of acquired deposits and other receivables
arising from the above acquisitions approximate the gross
contractual amount.

27.2 Business combinations

(@)

(b)

Acquisition of Wuhu Senlin Property Management Co.,
Ltd.

On 14 December 2020, the Group completed the
acquisition of 51% equity interest of Wuhu Senlin
Property Management Co., Ltd. (B # m T M ¥ #
EEABHRASB) (“Wuhu Senlin”) at a consideration
of approximately RMB27,030,000. Wuhu Senlin is
principally engaged in property management services
in Wuhu, Anhui Province of the PRC.

Acquisition of Zhanjiang Haihu Real Estate Co., Ltd.

On 24 September 2020, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interest of Zhanjiang
Haihu Real Estate Co., Ltd GEI /B B #h E B [E
A B) (“Zhanjiang Haihu”) at a consideration of
approximately RMB1,392,712,000. Zhanjiang Haihu
is principally engaged in real estate property
development in Zhanjiang, Guangdong Province of
the PRC.

BB RRIEE

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.1 BEWE (&)

B LB EERFTRER
R B FE WOR IR Y A B B
BRIMBERARE ©

27.2 #7613

(a)

(b)

WS TR MY EETE
BIRAAE]

RITEZEF+"/+M
B mXERUABOAR
# 27,030,000 7t 58 AL U
BEITRMYEEESR
BRABE(TEPHRM B
51% f&HE - EHBRMEE
WEPHZHEENNDY
EEIERF ©

KB T & ERIR
2 &)

R TETEFAA M
B’ AEEUABOAR
#%1,392,712,000 7T 5E A%
WEEISBHEMER
IR~ (T8 E 1) /Y
100% AR 7 < & 18 £
BREPRHERDEIN
FIEY)EFE o
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SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.2 Business combinations (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Zhanjiang Haihu Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(Continued)

The acquisition comprised a series of linked
transactions, in which the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of Foshan Shunde District Taoling
Investment Co., Ltd (Bl MIEEEXEREBFRA
&) (“Foshan Shunde€”) and 100% equity interest of
Hong Kong Goldera Enterprise Limited (& #& & B
T EERAT) (“Goldera”). As Foshan Shunde and
Goldera holds 50% equity interest of Zhanjiang Haihu
respectively, the acquisitions of 100% equity interest
in these two entities resulted in the Group’ s control in

Zhanjiang Haihu. As a result, a total consideration of
RMB995,000,000 was paid during the year.

As part of the consideration settlement arrangement,
the Group will settle the remaining consideration
in two tranches. The first tranche of payment of
RMB375,000,000 is required to be settled no later
than 30 September 2022, and the second tranche of
payment of RMB150,000,000 is required to be settled
upon completion of construction of the property
project on the land owned by Zhanjiang Haihu,
resulting in a total discounted consideration payable
amounted to approximately RMB397,712,000.

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.2 #5456 (88)
(b) WEEE T ZHENERR

2 5] (#8)

iR EEER— R A
BR5 BhAERK
BHLDIRRERRERE
BRAB(HWIEEE])
B9100% R 18 ke & 78 & By
TEEBRQF (&K
BY100% Az 1 o I HBLL
IB7E K &= B 0 B A &
YL AY50% Bg 1 0 Uk
fEz M E B #2RY 100% AR
BRERAEEHELSE
MEERE AL F
NEXNRABARE
995,000,000 7z °

EAREBBEZS—
D REBRSMILEE
BRTIRE - gEIRAR
# 375,000,000 7¢ 7B T~ i
RNZEZZFNB=+H
AR M ZHAIRA
B 1 150,000,000 75 728 i
HE LB MRS i
MY EEBTIRETRS
& SREMRImERE
N A N R1397,712,000

ﬁ:o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WHEEMEBAT ()
27.2 Business combinations (Continued) 27.2 #EBEH B

The following table summarises the consideration paid TREFA U B AR S

for the acquisitions, the fair value of assets acquired HEMARE - FIKEBEENR

and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. The non- TEMFIAES®R - FFEHIM%

controlling interests are measured at proportionate share R NG A= TR A

in the recognised amounts of net identifiable assets as at RIEEPESBENZLO I

the acquisition date. HE o

o

Wuhu  Zhanjiang

Senlin Haihu Total
EHBRM HILEH 4Est

RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT

Consideration paid RusEE BERE I E

as at acquisition date 8,109 995,000 1,003,109
Consideration payable RS H BRFE (S B

as at acquisition date 18,921 397,712 416,633
Total purchase consideration HEEnE 27,030 1,392,712 1,419,742
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27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WHEEMEBAT ()

27.2 Business combinations (Continued) 27.2 #EBEH B
o Wuhu  Zhanjiang
Senlin Haihu Total
FOMARM L st
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AREBTT
Recognised amounts of BT 0! PSS B E e P
identifiable assets acquired AEEENBE
and liabilities assumed: MESREEE
Property, plant and equipment M ~ BB KR 139 — 139
Prepayments, deposits and TANRIE ~ g
other receivable T EL A FEUS TR IE 18,494 18,494
Properties under development FEPERBETYE
and completed properties — 2,173,000 2,173,000
Intangible assets mEEE 17,834 — 17,834
Income tax liabilities FriSias (2,792) — (2,792)
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 1,481 26 1,507
Other payables HAEREIE (1,197) (208,475) (209,672)
Borrowings LEEEN — (4,980) (4,980)
Contract liability HHEE (6,489) — (6,489)
Deferred income tax liabilities AR A=Y (3,885) (536,604) (540,489)
Total net identifiable assets BEGlEE
acquired BEFERE 23,585 1,422,967 1,446,552
Goodwill (Note 13) 8 (M5 13) 14,491 — 14,491
Less: Non-controlling interest B USRS B EBR %A
initially recognised SRR FE R
as at acquisition date L (11,046) — (11,046)
Less: Gains on bargain purchase & : ZEHEEKE
(Note 7) (FzxT7) — (30,255) (30,255)
Net assets acquired T EEFE 27,030 1,392,712 1,419,742
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WHEEMEBAT ()

27.2 Business combinations (Continued) 27.2 #EBEH B
: Wuhu  Zhanjiang
Senlin Haihu Total
FOMBM HEILEH st
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT AR®TrT ARETRT
Analysis of net outflow of cash ERBERBATN
and cash equivalents in respect HERIREEFEY
of acquisition of subsidiaries: R RER DA
Cash consideration paid BHIREEAE 8,109 995,000 1,003,109
Less: Cash and cash B PTEEIRE &
equivalents acquired REEBY (1,481) (26) (1,507)
Net cash outflow TRHFER 6,628 994,974 1,001,602

Wuhu Senlin did not contribute revenue or net profit after
tax to the Group for the period from 14 December 2020, the
acquisition date, to 31 December 2020.

Entities acquired in the transaction in relation to
Zhangjiang Haihu did not contribute revenue but
contributed net loss after tax of RMB67,000 to the Group
for the period from 24 September 2020, the acquisition
date, to 31 December 2020.

If the above acquisitions had occurred on 1 January
2020, consolidated revenue and net profit after tax of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 would not be
materially different.

The fair value of acquired deposits and other receivables
arising from the acquisition of Wuhu Senlin approximate
the gross contractual amount.

Management is of the opinion that acquired other
receivables arising from the acquisition of Zhanjiang Haihu
at gross contractual amount of RMB151,922,000 is not
recoverable. They have been written off on acquisition.

BWERI—Z—TF+_"F+1A
ECECTF+A=+—HILHE
B BRI R 0] A 52 B = A M e
SRR BARR o

BUERI—Z-TFAA - +1AH
ETZTTFE+T"H=+—HILH
B REE LEPEMZZZ IS
ERTERAAEESRKE ° BER
PRI R RSB A R 67,000 7T °

HEBEEER T _TF—HF—HE
L AXERBE_S_ZTF+
A=+—HIFENGHERE KRR
BAFRAEHRERER -

2k B iR E I AR MR B P B R
fth W RIBR AT ERGABERR
=

BIRE R AR B WREE LA HPTUR
BHEHMERZENGNVREARE
151,922,000 st /@ R e (el > HER
IR IE N o
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SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.3 Step acquisitions

(a)

(b)

(c)

Step acquisition of Ganzhou Baoherun Co., Limited

Ganzhou Baoherun was 30% associate of the Group
before the step acquisition. As set out in Note 15 (b)
(i), upon disposal of the remaining assets of Phase
1 project according to the supplemental agreement
entered into between the Group and the other
investor, the Group considers it has obtained control
over the remaining operating business of Ganzhou
Baoherun.

Step acquisition of Nanchang Junyu Meijia Property
Service Co., Ltd (“Nanchang Junyu Meijia”).

Nanchang Junyu Meijia was a 35% associate of the
Group before the step acquisition. As set out in Note
15 (b)(v), upon entering into the acting-in-concert
agreement with another shareholder, the Group has
obtained 68% voting right in shareholders meetings
and considers it has obtained control over Nanchang
Junyu Meijia.

Step acquisition of Qingyuan Ligao Hongye Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

Qingyuan Ligao Hongye Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (BRNSBFEMEMEABRAF) (“Qingyuan
Ligao Hongye”) was a joint venture of the Group
before the step acquisition. On 14 August 2020, the
Group completed the acquisition of the remaining
86% equity interests of Qingyuan Ligao and obtained
control over Qingyuan Ligao Hongye.

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)

27.3 BRI
(a) DRKEEINEHEHEE

(b)

(c)
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R RUFERT > BEINAR
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27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.3 Step acquisitions (Continued)

(d) Step acquisition of Fengcheng Xinfei Real Estate

(€)

()

Development Co., Ltd.

Fengcheng Xinfei was a 40% associate of the Group
before the step acquisition. As set out in Note 15 (b)
(iii), upon the additional subscription of its new share
capital issued during the year, the Group obtained
control over Fengcheng Xinfei.

Step acquisition of Fengcheng Hengding Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

Fengcheng Hengding was a 40% associate of the
Group before the step acquisition. As set out in Note
15 (b)(iii), upon the additional subscription of its
new share capital issued during the year, the Group
obtained control over Fengcheng Hengding.

Step acquisition of Fengcheng Liding Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

Fengcheng Liding was a 40% associate of the Group
before the step acquisition. As set out in Note 15 (b)
(iii), upon the additional subscription of its new share
capital issued during the year, the Group obtained
control over Fengcheng Liding.

BB RRIEE

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.3 FRULEE (48)

(d)

(e)

(7)

DRI FE LIRS
EREBRAA

RARUEERT * SRR
75 7~ 2 B ¥ 5 40% Y B
ERE e UM EE15(b)
(iii) PR Ek * P EPRERIPER
BOEITHRRAR » A&
H B ES 8RB =l
& o

DR EE T IER
EREBRAA

RO RUTERT  BIIER
72 5 B ¥ A 40% B9 B
ERE o UM EE15(b)
(iil) P&t > I ERERINED
BOEITHRAR A&
E RS B8 5 pES]
1 o

DR IE EI T IIH 4
EFZEERAA]

RORUEERT » SR
7 2= 5 B ¥ B 409 B9 Bt
ERE o UM EE 15(b)
(iii) PR > IERERISD
BEHITHRER > K&
H B S 83571 B9
1 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
27.3 Step acquisitions (Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for the step acquisition, the fair value of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. The non-
controlling interests are measured at proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of net identifiable assets as at
the acquisition date.

Qo

Ganzhou Junyu
Baoherun Meijia

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)

Nanchang  Qingyuan

Ligao
Hongye

BNEAE MEEEXR FENERE

RMB 000  RMB 000

RMB' 000

AREFR  ARRBTRT ARETR

27.3 FRUE (8B

R U B BRI R
BEEEME FIEBEEE
AT ERFTEEGR UL
FE O AR IREE R m IR BT
BB EFERD S AL B

B -

Fengcheng  Fengcheng  Fengcheng
Xinfei  Hengding Liding Total
SHRmK SR SHAR st
RMB' 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARMTR

Consideration: B
Consideration RE - - 60,000 6,067 3,333 4,000 74,000
Fair value of the associate FEEMEHEAT
shares held by the Group RAATE 288,140 2,880 15,452 67,091 114,899 127,482 616,544
288,140 2,880 75,452 74,358 118,232 131,482 690,544
Recognised amounts of identifiable  ATHBIFTREBEER
assets acquired and liabilities ipei4=1
assumed: NERIEE
Property, plant and equipment WE BEREE - - - 47 1,362 L1719 2,588
Intangible asset BREE - 6,935 - - - - 6,935
Properties under development BEhyE 3,373,088 - 159,335 634,786 983,744 1,141,054 6,292,007
Trade and other receivables B REMERTIER
and deposits #e 484270 304 4,781 206,604 132,423 729,440 1,557,822
Restricted cash TRERE 39,837 - - - - - 39,837
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN 76,226 2,976 12,041 12,59 75,442 133,205 312,484
Trade and other payables BEREMENRE (24,207) (253) (734)  (44388) (124130 (1440740  (2234,45))
Contract liabilities AtaR (1,770,509) - — (594,908) - — [2365417)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

BB RRIEE

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.3 FRULEE (48)

Nanchang  Qingyuan
Ganzhou Junyu Ligao Fengcheng Fengcheng Fengcheng
Baoherun Meijia Hongye Xinfei  Hengding Liding Total
FNENE SEEEEX BENRBE  SEMR  SHER  SHIR @t
RMB' 000  RMB 000 RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
AEETT AE%TR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Amounts due to non-controlling B IEZRERE
interests (326,702) - - - - (326,702)
Borrowings e (200,000) — (54T (591) —(80,000)  (335,169)
Deferred income tax liabilities ~ [EHEFFERMERE (691,535) (L734) (12711 (44917)  (18L594)  (169433)  (1,101,924)
960,468 8228 108,135 169,227 287,247 314,705 1,848,010
Non-controlling interest initially 54 B EBAIIARESRH0
recognised as at acquisition date  JEEEIHER (672,328) (5,348) - (84,614)  (143,623)  (157,353)  (1,063,266)
Less: Gains on bargain purchase 38 SEBEE G (H:7)
(Note 7) (3268 (102%) (25392 (25870 (94200)
Net assets acquired FlEEESE 288,140 2,880 75,453 74,357 118,232 131,482 690,544
Remeasurement gain on joint AEERE/BEATN
venture/associates EREIHENE
Fair value of interests in joint AEERE /BENTR
venture/associates ERATE 288,140 2,880 15,452 67,691 114,899 127,482 616,544
Less: Interests in joint venture/ A ReErcE /e
associates AR (54,415) (1,059) (0674 (11,09) (533) (1344 (18121)
233,725 1,821 5778 56,595 114,366 126,138 538,423
Analysis of net (inflow)/outflow BRERBATN
of cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN
in respect of acquisition of (RN /S8
the subsidiary: ey
Cash consideration paid BARERE - - 60,000 6,667 3333 4000 74,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : FTYERERES
acquired 30 (76,226) (976 (12041  (12504) (75442  (133205)  (312.484)
Net cash (inflow)/outflow B (iN) /ResE (16,226) (976) 47959 (5.927) (12109 (129205  (238484)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.3 Step acquisitions (Continued)

Ganzhou Baoherun contributed revenue of RMB1,731,042,000
and net profit after tax of RMB25,096,000 to the Group for
the period from 23 January 2020, the acquisition date, to
31 December 2020.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2020,
consolidated revenue and net profit after tax of the Group
for the period ended 31 December 2020 would have been
the same and RMB1,439,162,000 respectively.

Nanchang Junyu Meijia, Fengcheng Xinfei, Fengcheng
Hengding and Fengcheng Liding did not contribute revenue
or net profit after tax to the Group for the period from their
respective acquisition date to 31 December 2020.

Qingyuan Ligao Hongye did not contribute revenue but
contributed net loss after tax RMB790,000 to the Group for
the period from 14 August 2020, the acquisition date, to 31
December 2020.

Other than the acquisition of Ganzhou Baoherun, if the
above acquisitions had occurred on 1 January 2020,
consolidated revenue and net profit after tax of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 would not be
materially different.

The fair value of acquired deposits and other receivables
from the above acquisitions approximate the gross
contractual amount.

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)

27.3 FRULEE (&)
BWERAH _—_T-_TF—A8
TH=HEZZF+H
=+—HILEE > EMERE

A A& B & i m &f‘ﬁmﬁ‘@
FARK1,731,042,000 T2 A
K 1525,096,000 7T ©

U EER Z R B E— 5
—BE#LE UFAEEEE
—E-BE+_A=+—H
I EEN S G RRRE
4 FE 53 3 24 48 F R A R ¥
1,439,162,000 7T °

BRBERE_Z"TF+T
B=+—HLEE mE2&E
EZ ~ BEMAR -~ BRIER &
B0 ) I B ) A SR [ J UL
m BRI IR AR o

BWEHBH_Z-_ZFN\A
THBREZE-_ZF+_A
=+—HLEHE BENSE
FrERAER SRR
BEREREBEARE
790,0007T °

PRULEE RN IR AR SN  fie £t
WREENR T _TF—HF—
AE#E *&EEBE_T—
TE+R=+—HLFEN
Gl E MR AN
BEARDH °

B LB R EAFT RS
R ELAth FE WOR IR BY A P E
GHRMBERRE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.3 Step acquisitions (Continued)

For Note 27.2 and 27.3, gains on bargain purchase were
mainly resulted from the Group’' s accumulative industry
experience in property development and management. The
sellers had the intention to develop long term strategic
business relationship with experienced property developer
who can bring in industry expertise and upscale the
acquired businesses.

27.4 Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change in control

(a)

Acquisition of the remaining 30% equity interests of
Jiangxi Lisheng Real Estate Co., Ltd CIFA/IREXBR
‘~E))(“Jiangxi Lisheng’) and Jiangxi Redco Shengye
Property Development Co., Ltd. CIFAISEEMERR
ZEHMRAR)(“Jiangxi Redco Shengye”)

On 21 January 2020, the Group completed the
purchase of remaining 30% equity interests of
Jiangxi Lisheng and Jiangxi Redco Shengye from
the non-controlling interest at a consideration of
approximately RMB7,671,000 in total. The Group
recorded a decrease in non-controlling interest of
approximately RMB8,840,000 and an increase in the
balance in reserves of approximately RMB1,169,000
upon the completion of the purchase.

Acquisition of the remaining 25% equity interests
of Shenzhen Redco Zhangzhewu Health Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (RN EREERELRELEES

FRAE])(“Shenzhen Redco Zhangzhewu Health”)

On 15 October 2020, the Group completed the
purchase of remaining 25% equity interests of
Shenzhen Redco Zhangzhewu Health from the
non-controlling interest at a consideration of
approximately RMB1,200,000 in total. The Group
recorded an increase in non-controlling interest of
approximately RMB2,384,000 and a decrease in the
balance in reserves of approximately RMB3,584,000
upon the completion of the purchase.

BB RRIEE

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.3 FRULEE (48)

PMIEE27.2 /%2 27.3ME ’

EAE]

BEWRGDTFERNAERBENE
FMEREERBNITEERE

HN-BHAR

JSERAY uuL*Ji'”"‘I—_[

\/\II

WRTENBOELRERE
T REBREBCIERBHRR

214 FEFIEEEHHNBR TR
Mt A B PR A R m R BB

(a)

WEIRNBREEXERRA
B (DI KIS
SREMEREBRAT
(CIANSEE) G T
30% R& 1

TR F-AT
B> mEREUREEGHY
AR 7,671,000 7T M IE
ERMEaTABEL
BAOBRKIANEEE
B &% T 30% A% #E o ST Ak
BERER X AEEES
FEESIME =R AN
R # 8,840,000 7T & H 1th
REGHFENOARE
1,169,000 7t °

WERN N REERE
REZRARAT (DRI
heRERREL ERT
25% f& i

R ZETEFE+ATA
B’ AEBEUREEH
# AN R 11,200,000 7T A
3??’“% MRETmTREE
R NEREEBREN
BR T 25%BR o ST
BERER ~EERRT
FEEFIE R B A A
£ #2,384,000 7t & H
REGHRDOOARE
3,584,000 7T °

NEtEEEERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.4 Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without

change in control (Continued)

(c) Acquisition of the remaining 30% equity interests of
Xianyang Redco Property Development Co., Ltd. (B
BB EMERMZEARAR)(“Xianyang Redco Property
Development’)

On 25 November 2020, the Group completed the
purchase of remaining 30% equity interests of
Xianyang Redco Property Development from the
non-controlling interest at a consideration of
approximately RMB16,297,000 in total. The Group
recorded a decrease in non-controlling interest of
approximately RMB20,859,000 and an increase in the
balance in reserves of approximately RMB4,562,000
upon the completion of the purchase.

28 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Disposal of Hefei Zhonghe Project Management Co., Ltd.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
completed the disposal of 100% equity interest in Hefei
Zhonghe Project Management Co., Ltd. (& B ® & 1
B & 1 A R A B) at a consideration of approximately
RMB20,000,000 to the non-controlling interests. The
disposal company is principally engaged in property
development in the PRC. Upon the completion of
the disposal, the Group lost its control over the
aforementioned company and its financial results are not
consolidated with the results of the Group.

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)

274 EERIEEEFHNBER TR
MEABMBEEDNES

(#8)

(c)

BRI D= Bt ER 3
BRAB (TR LB EM
E F 3% 1) B ER T 30% iR
%

WZZEZZHF+—H
“+EH KERURE
B AR 16,297,000
ToEIEEH R R ST IR
B IEEMERZEN
BR T30% MR - SERL B
SR > AEEREIE
ZEHIMERBALVOAE
# 20,859,000 7t K H fih
REERENNARE
4,562,000 7T ©

28 HEKMRBAR

(a)

H &
NS

GEREEREERR

BE_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—
HIEFER ® REBRLUREY
AR 20,000,000 5t 52 A% @ 3E
EfEEntESERSGEE
EEAR AT BI100% A # °
HERTEERFEREYE
e NHEFETME &
EEXEH LR RTAIES
B MEMBEREIBRASE
EES = =W N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Disposal of LU an Ruiyuan Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. and its subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
completed the disposal of 100% equity interest in (7%
ZIHREBEEZREARAST) (“LU an Ruiyuan”’) and its 20%
equity subsidiary Linquan Huaxin Real Estate Development
Co,ltd. ((ERBESREHMEMNREZBR 2 3) (“Linquan
Huaxin”) at a consideration of RMB106,281,000. The
aforementioned companies are principally engaged in
property development in the PRC. Upon the completion
of the disposal, the Group lost its control over the
aforementioned companies and its financial results are not
consolidated with the results of the Group.

An analysis on the losses on disposal of subsidiaries is as
follows:

Qo

BB RRIEE

28 HEMBARE ()

(b)

HEAREREERRER
AR REMEAT
HE_Z-TEL-A=+—

EIJLEEW ERAELN

A K #106,281,000 7t 58 A% @)
FEFIMEDHENZIRRE

XERBERR2B(TRZHIEREL)
B100% KRB RGEEZR
MEREERAR(TRREE
Z)H20% MBI
AT FEERPENEYZER
BoNUHESTERENRER ® &~&
BREH L QBB
MEMBEETBRAEE X

BB AR ©

HEMB AR AN

Lu an
Ruiyuan
Hefei and its
Zhonghe subsidiary Total
NZE
BIERE KREMEBAR “act
RMPB 000 RMB 000 RMPB 000
AREBTRT AER®Trx AERETR®
Consideration satisfied by: MFHIHEAZARE !
- Cash consideration —BENRE 20,000 106,281 126,281
Less: Net assets disposed of: B HEEERE
- Property, plant and — W BB R E
equipment — (16,134) (16,134)
- Completed properties held —FEHENBIET
for sale S — (217,370) (217,370)
- Deferred income tax —IRIEFRISIRETR
liabilities — 17,601 17,601
- Trade and other receivables, — B REMEK
deposits and prepayments B~ BER
SEINE ] (20,000) (1,070,273) (1,090,273)
- Cash and cash equivalents —REKRIREEEY — (28,001) (28,001)
- Trade and other payables — B 5 REMBENRIE — 525,086 525,086
(20,000) (789,091) (809,091)
Add: Non-controlling o E RS
interests disposed of — 631,189 631,189
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SHMBRRME

28 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

29

Qo

28 HEMBARE ()

Lu an
Ruiyuan
Hefei and its
Zhonghe subsidiary Total
NEIRR
ARRE KEWBAT “ast
RMPB 000 RMB 000 RMPB 000
AREBTrT AR®TrT ARETRT
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary, BRI HE—RNBAE
pre-tax E518 — (51,621) (51,621)
Less: PRC enterprise income B HEWE R B REEN
tax payable upon disposal E PSR
of subsidiaries — — —
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, FRIRBHENB A AREBIE
net of tax — (51,621) (51,621)
An analysis on net inflow HERBABNRE K
of cash and cash equivalents in REZFEYRA
respect of disposal of subsidiaries REEOMAT
is as follows:
Cash consideration REREBE 20,000 106,281 126,281
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B HERERIRE
disposed £EY — (28,001) (28,001)
Net cash inflow REMAFEE 20,000 78,280 98,280
COMMITMENTS 29 K
Capital commitments and property development BREERMERBEE
commitments
o 2020 2019
i el 2: 2 “Z2-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AR®BTT ARETFTT
Contracted but not provided for: BB REE .
- Land use right — T 219,880 821,185
- Leasehold improvement —THEYERE — 1,819
- Property development expenditures — YRR 6,462,872 9,517,520
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

Guarantees on mortgage facilities

The Group had the following contingent liabilities in
respect of financial guarantees on mortgage facilities at
the end of each of the following reporting periods:

2

BB RRIEE

30 MBREARNARR

RIS ENER

FEBRR TS REPRAR
BRENMBERMEFENLT
EIF =

2020 2019
ZTCTHE —ZT-NE
RMB 000 RMB 000
AR®EFT ARETFT
Guarantees in respect of mortgage MEEBYEETERN
facilities for certain purchasers of BRI B IR HERER
the Group’ s properties 9,694,814 9,001,924

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchaser for
repayments. Such guarantees will terminate upon the
earlier of (i) the transfer of the real estate ownership
certificate to the purchaser which will generally occur
within an average period of six months to three years from
the completion of the guarantee registration; or (ii) the
satisfaction of mortgage loans by the purchasers of the
properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default
of mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group
is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage
principal together with accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulting purchasers to the banks and the
Group is entitled to retain the legal title and take over
the possession of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee period starts from the date of grant of mortgage.
The directors consider that the carrying values of the
financial guarantees are immaterial.

FEECHEEBRYENET
BERZHRTRE IMHEX
IEMEERHIER - ZFE
R TIIRBERIEERL !
() BHEFFAEZEXTER
(— R ERE LT MR T I97]
BRE=FmEIT) K ; sL(ii)
ME BB ERIBENE o

RIFEREFRIFER RSB
RiZBENE > AEBEGE
MIRITEEESERBIZIEE
TEREHT B REE S M
EEBRREEBDENL
EERRZEWAER ~EE
BYE (R EA B 1% 3245 B #HE RS
th e BEERA N MBREFRNEK
EHELREK °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

30 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) There are certain corporate guarantees provided by
the Group’s subsidiaries for each other in respect of
borrowings (Note 23) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
The directors consider that the subsidiaries are sufficiently
financially resourced to settle their obligations.

(c) For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
provides a corporate guarantee of AUD70,000,000 to a
subsidiary of Power Out International Ltd., a joint venture
of the Group, for a loan facility which was fully utilised
by the joint venture. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the carrying value of the guarantee is
immaterial.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company had
no other significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

31 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2020 is calculated based on the profit attributable to owners of
the Company.

Qo

30 MBEARIAGR(E)

b) RZFZTEFRZF-NF
tTZA=+—H’ A%EKE
RE)Z AR IERR (P 5E 23)
MERHENETABHER &
ERH WBRRAEAREM
HERBRREET

() BE_ZT—NE+A=+—
HIEFE> A2 —EBS
EhECTBHBENERMNE
@ Power Out International
Ltd — KRB REIIRHAE
70,000,0002 7oA TR ©
KRB EERAERNEEE
WAREK o

PR EXFRIREESIN > AERK
ERBR_E_ZTFE+_1
=+ —HmEAEME AR
BECE—NF D) -

31 SkEF

BE_ZTZHE+_A=+—HLHE
B SREABHNRERNATER
ERERENEE o

2020 2019
—E-F TN

Profit attributable to owners of NAB)EEERIG T
the Company (RMB' 000) (NR¥T7T) 1,295,966 1,034,931

Weighted average number of shares inissue B #TRAPBIINETF S

Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) SREARF (ANRED)

3,551,609,322  3,551,609,322

36.49 29.14

Diluted earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share
as there was no dilutive potential share outstanding for the
years ended 31 December 2020 (2019: same).

REEZZZF+"HA=+—HIt
FE > AR WEETEINEEES
1 BEREERFENERER
BN (ZZ—NFE AERE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, except for amounts
due from non-controlling interest of RMB3,650,000 and
RMB65,000,000 which bear interest of 9% and 24% per annum
respectively (2019: RMB48,512,000 and RMB65,000,000 which
bore interest of 8.5% and 24% per annum respectively) and
are secured by their interests in the Group s subsidiaries, the
amounts due from non-controlling interests are interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand. The carrying values
approximate their fair values and are denominated in RMB.

Except for amounts due to non-controlling interest of
RMB222,737,100 and RMB527,480,000 as at 31 December 2019
which bore interest of 4.75% and 12% per annum respectively,
the amounts due to non-controlling interests as at 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2019 are interest-free, unsecured and
repayable on demand. The carrying values approximate their
fair values and are denominated in RMB.

32

AHMEEERRMIE
FEWL, (FEfT) JEHEH MM 2R RRIR
BEZZHF+_A=+—HILF

E E’f‘ D RFEERE 9% K 24% 512
WIAE R AL BN E A BB iR
MU EESI MR ERIBEA R
3,650,000 7T & A K #5 65,000,000 75

—Z—hF AR48,512,0007T
e A\ K #65,000,000 7T % 32 F ) &

8.5% 2 24% 5t ) Hb * & UK SR 12l
MREEHARRE ~ BRIRARARE
KREE - FREEBEHEAEATERERN
MARBEHE »

BR_E—-—NE+B=+—H03%
81 A R 1222 737,100 & A R &
527,480,000 Tt BY PR JESE I M M 2
RIEBREFED R &4.75% K 12%
Sh RIEZZE+ZB=+—HK
TE-NE+ZHA=+—HWELIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is jointly controlled by Wong Yeuk Hung and Huang
Ruoging, who owns 39.06% and 26.66% of the Company' s shares
respectively.

Major related parties with the Group were as follows:

Qo

Related parties
RS

33 BAMSRB

FEBHEAEIREES
m=% 75 E NN
26.66% RV AR (7

AEBMNVEEMB ST

HEIES
39.06% A

Relationship with the Company

BlAR QTR

Lianyungang Hengrun Real Estate Co., Ltd.
BEEBEHEXRFARAT

Tibet Yunxi Enterprise Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
EEEETEEESR X (BRER)

Funan Anhua Times Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

EERERNBMEREERAR

Love Care Redco (Shanghai) Senior Care Service Co., Ltd.
BRENS (L8 BERFERRE

Huizhou Gaozhao Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
BN BB EREBRAT

Huizhou Lijia Real Estate Co., Ltd.
BEMNEMERRAE

Wuhan Huacheng Quanyou Real Estate Co., Ltd.
HEEHEREXARAE

Jiangxi Hengying Technology Industry Development Co., Ltd.
IREERKERERBRAR

An associate
—XEBE AT

An associate

— RGN
An associate
— R AT
An associate
—XEE AT

An associate
— RGN
An associate
—KEE R E
An associate
—XEE AT

An associate
— KA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

33

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Qo

Related parties
RREk S

33 RAMARS (48)

Relationship with the Company

BlAR AT RRE

Guigang Huazhang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
ERETEHMEREBRAF

Shanghai Gangxuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.
LBBHEXRARAT

Liyang Gangzheng Real Estate Co. Ltd.
RIGBEEFBRAE

Yixing Yangheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
HEGBEFMERERRAR

Changsha Hangao Real Estate Co., Ltd.
RO ESREHMEBRAT

Redco Industry (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.

NEEXE(CIA) BRAR

Hui Gao Investments Development Ltd. and its subsidiary
EeREZRARASRENBASE

Power Out International Holding Ltd. and its subsidiaries
TRBEFRERBR AR RENB AR

Shenzhen Redco Hongye Property Development Co., Ltd.
I SIE R =M EREBRAR

Qingyuan Ligao Hongye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

BENSBEMEREARRARF

Jiangxi Province Guogao Property Services Limited
IREEEYERBERAR

Nanchang Yingmei Property Co., Ltd.
EREVFERRAT

Shijiazhuang Lanting Property Management Co., Ltd.
AREREVMFEEERRAF

Wong Yeuk Hung (Mr. Wong)

BEIL(EXE)

Huang Ruoging (Mr. Huang)

BEB (EEFRE)

il

An associate
—KE AT

An associate
—XHE R E
An associate
—XKEE R E
An associate
— R AF
An associate
— R AT
Ajoint venture

—REEEXE

Ajoint venture
—REERE

Ajoint venture
—REEhE

Ajoint venture
—REERE

Ajoint venture
—REEhE
Ajoint venture
—REEhE

Ajoint venture
—REERE

Ajoint venture
_l“‘\AM/\%

A major shareholder and director

of the Group

FEEN—ZRITERRFES

A major shareholder and director

of the Group

FEEN—ZTERRFBES

NEtEEEERA

8] © 2020 FERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMEE
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 33 RABARS (B)
(a) Balances with related parties (a) EARAEG BV4EER
(i) Amounts due from joint ventures (i) BRESEFREFNE

Qo

2020 2019
- — e
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 Nature Interest Currency
NS ARETT g HME g%
Qingyuan Ligao Hongye Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. - 14,700 Non-trade N/A RMB
BENEBEMEREERAD FESZ AER ARE
Hui Gao Investments Development
Ltd. and its subsidiary 18,003 22,435 Non-trade N/A HKS
EeREXRBRATKRENEAT FES TER BT
Power Out International Holding
Ltd. and its subsidiaries 101,715 22,814 Non-trade N/A HKS
TTRERERBRAR KEME AT FESZ AER BT
119,718 59,949
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values REEREATEES
and are unsecured and repayable on demand. BRI AR EKE

o

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(a) Balances with related parties (Continued)

(i) Amounts due to joint ventures

Qo

BB RRIEE

33 RAMARS (48)
(a) EARGHEASBVAERR (BB)

(i) EVESEEEFE

2020 2019
ZEZZFE  EAF
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 Nature Interest Currency
ARETT ARETT HE FIE =L
Jiangxi Province Guogao Property
Services Limited 881 881 Non-trade N/A RMB
IRAEEENEREBRAR FES TER AR
Shenzhen Redco Hongye Property
Development Co., Ltd. 2,737 2,737 Non-trade N/A RMB
DB RENEREERAT FES TER AR
Redco Industry (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. 47,166 47,158 Non-trade N/A RMB
BEX(IA) BRAT FEZ TERE ARH
50,784 50,776

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values

and are unsecured and repayable on demand.

SREERAAFERS
BERPL AR ERE

o

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(iii)  Amounts due from associates

Qo

Balances with related parties (Continued)

33 RAMARS (48)

(a) ELRAEKTS BOASER ()

(i) [EWHHE R EHE

2020 2019
—BTZEF “T-hE
RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 Nature Interest Currency
NS NS “E HME =
Huizhou Lijia Real Estate Co., Ltd. 108,740 160,763 Non-trade N/A RMB
ENNEMERRAS FEBS TER AEH
Huizhou Gaozhao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. 335 103,950 Non-trade N/A RMB
ENmE KR EREERAT FES TER AEH
Lianyungang Hengrun Real Estate
Co., Ltd — 92,089 Non-trade N/A RMB
ETEBHELERAT FES TER AEH
Funan Anhua Times Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. — 69,400 Non-trade N/A RMB
ERRERAEHEREBRAS FES TER AEH
Ganzhou Baoherun Co., Ltd. — 56,643 Non-trade 10% RMB
ENBNEBEERAS FES 10% NG
Jiangxi Hengying Technology Industry
Development Co., Ltd. 56,000 — Non-trade N/A RMB
IRERRRELEREERAT FES TER AEH
Xizang Yunxi Enterprise Management
Partnership (Limited Partnership) 583,864 — Non-trade N/A RMB
FEEGATEEESB X (BREY) FEH AER NG
Guigang Huazhang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. 109,936 — Non-trade N/A RMB
BERETENEREERAT FEH AER NG
Shanghai Gangxuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. 161,607 — Non-trade Note RMB
LEEHELRRAT FEH Piyst NG
Liyang Gangzheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. 64,950 — Non-trade N/A RMB
ERATEXERAT FEH AER NG
Changsha Hangao Real Estate Co., Ltd. 384,640 — Non-trade N/A RMB
BV EREHERRAS FES AER NG
1,470,072 482,845

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values

and are unsecured and repayable on demand.

Note:

For the amount due from Shanghai Gangxuan Real Estate
Co., Ltd, except for balance of RMB42,008,000 which bears
interest of 12% per annum, the remaining balance is

interest-free.

REELEAEAFERS
BEEMIT AR EZRE

}Eo

MyEE

PEW LEBEHEERRA

BIMIAME * REHFARE

42,008,000 70 A B £ 12% 5t
BOh BRNESHABRE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 33 FAEEARS (M)
(a) Balances with related parties (Continued) (a) ELRAHA BVAEER (B)
(iv)  Amounts due to associates (iv) [ETHENE50E
: 2020 2019
et S -3
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 Nature Interest Currency
AEEFT ARETT HE FE g
Fengcheng Liding Property
Development Co., Ltd. - 305,180 Non-trade N/A RMB
ERmOREHEREERAT FER TEA AR
Fengcheng Hending Property
Development Co., Ltd. — 129,367 Non-trade N/A RMB
SRHRREMEREERAT FEZ TER NG
Fengcheng Xinfei Property
Development Co., Ltd. — 50,233 Non-trade N/A RMB
ERTMREHEREERAG FER ENG)E ARE
Wuhan Huacheng Quanyou Real Estate
Co., Ltd. 745 500 Non-trade N/A RMB
HEENEREEBRAT FEZ TER N
Funan Anhua Times Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. 34,785 — Non-trade N/A RMB
ERRERRARHNEREERAG FER TEA AR
Yixing Yangheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. 123,744 - Non-trade N/A RMB
BEMGREMEREFRAT FEZ 10% N
159,274 485,280
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values REEEAERTERE
and are unsecured and repayable on demand. BRI B iR 2K E

o

Bl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with related parties

The Group has the following related party transactions:

(i)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
purchased property management service up to 25
June 2019 amounting to RMB15,593,000 from Top
Glory Group, at prices mutually agreed by contracted
parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
provided project management consultancy service
amounting to RMB172,078 (2019: RMB632,000) to its
associates, at prices mutually agreed by contracted
parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
received finance income amounting to RMB Nil (2019:
RMB20,674,000) from its associates, at interest rate
mutually agreed by contracted parties.

Key management compensation

Key management includes executive directors and top
management. The compensation paid or payable to key

33 RAMARS (48)
BARAR S BT 5

(b)

762 [ SRR B 5 AT
ik

(i)

(iii)

Rz 5

REBEE-Z-NE+-A
=+— E&EE TEE
REFTNHZERBENE
BaRsEEBEEE"
E-NEFERBZ+HAA
A R 1#15,953,0007¢
M EE RS o

RBEE_ZT-ZF+-4
=+ —HLEFE F&EH
BESINHERBENE
BEEBERBRMIEDH
A RHEL72,0718m(Z &
—NE: AR¥632,000
7o) RIE B BIRRERIARTS o

REE-Z-ZTF+_A
=+— E!thEE AEE
BB B ERF
KEHBENEERS
BARBZT(CE—N
£ AR 120,674,000
7T) BURRE WA ©

FEEEE

TEEEEOAEATESAR
SEEE - BESRFEMH

management for employee services is shown below: FES FEERENENGI R
T
: 2020 2019
—E_8F “E-NEF
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT ARETFTT
Salaries, bonus and other benefits e~ TEA R EMER] 21,125 27,133
Pension costs - defined BRIREA—RE SRS
contribution plan 567 661
21,692 27,794
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
DIVIDENDS 34 KRB
: 2020 2019
—BCEHF —=—NE
RMPB 000 RMB 000
AREBTT ANRETFT
Proposed final dividend of RMB5 cents BERERE
(2019: RMB3 cents) per ordinary share ZERARKS D
(Z2—hF . ARKE3ID) 177,580 106,548
177,580 106,548

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
RMB5 cents (2019: RMB3 cents) per ordinary share, totally
approximately RMB177,580,000 (2019: RMB106,548,000) has been
recommended by the Board for approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The proposed final
dividend has not been recognised as dividend payable as at 31
December 2020.

EEgEEMEBEE_E 25+
EEJr EIJtEF;/JKHEEHHH

EHQ%LHRAE%5 71
FAR®E3ID) sﬂzﬁﬁ%)\ﬁmﬁ
177,580,000 c(ZZE— L &E: AR
#5106,548,0007T) *> WIBFAA G
Eé%@ﬁ%%@fﬁk@tﬂy Bt o 2
ERPERERARENR-_ZZEHF
+ZB=1+—HHNEMRERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

35 FABRMBERBRRKEFHEED

Balance sheet of the Company EATINEERSER
Note 2020 2019
s —TTEF —E-NE
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARETF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—xKMEBATNEE 389,362 389,362
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments TEfIIE 943 573
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS KB A BIFIE 10,345,912 9,354,503
Cash and cash equivalents RBEMRIREEEY 142,714 1,784,430
10,489,569 11,139,506
Total assets HEE 10,878,931 11,528,868
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 35 AATINBEESERKREEES

(CONTINUED) (48)
Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) ERAFNEEERR(E)
: Note 2020 2019
PYEE ka3 3 “BE-NF
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARBTT ARETIT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREaRE
Equity attributable to owners ERATEEEREGER
of the Company
Share capital [SZIS 139,632 139,632
Reserves ] (a) 2,046,576 1,823,734
Total equity RER4EER 2,186,208 1,963,366
Liabilities =K
Non-current liability IS =
Borrowings B 5,170,073 2,437,183
Current liabilities mEEE
Accrued expense FESTE 182,227 263,900
Amount due to a subsidiary e —KIM B A B RIB 1,351 1,430
Borrowings B 3,339,072 6,862,389
e 1,127,719
Total liabilities =10 8,692,723 9,565,502
Total equity and liabilities Rk aE4EEE 10,878,931 11,528,868
The balance sheet of the Company was approved for issue by AABINBESBRRBHAESEN
the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021 and were signed on its ET—F=AZ+NHHETIE W
behalf: B TESARE
WONG Yeuk Hung E&HI HUANG Ruoqing &% &
Director % Director BF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

35
(CONTINUED)

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Note (a): Reserve movement of the Company

Qo

(#8)

3L () - AATEERD

35 FABRMBERBRRKEFHEED

Share Contribution Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserve earnings Total
A& 1E BR R ERHE R &gt
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARBFT AEEBTR ARETR NS o NS
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—BA—H 1,241,423 390,766 81,529 202,383 1,916,101
Comprehensive income 2ENE
- Profits for the year —ERET - - - 27,372 27372
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EEE
- Currency translation differences —-ERBEESE - - (13,191) - (13,191)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  2& (§518) /WHER - - (13,191) 27,372 14,181
Transactions with owners BEE AR S
-Dividend relating to 2018 final -H-E-N\E
REEWORE - - - (106,548) (106,548)
At 31 December 2019 RIE-—NF+ZA=1+—H 1,241,423 390,766 68,338 123,207 1,823,734
At 1 January 2020 RIZZ2F—HA—H 1,241,423 390,766 68,338 123,207 1,823,734
Comprehensive income 2ENE
- Profit for the year —FREE - - - 219,013 219,013
Other comprehensive income Hizmia
- Currency translation differences —GBRREER - - 110,377 - 110,377
Total comprehensive income FENGEE - - 110,377 219,013 329,390
Transactions with owners BEE AR S
- Dividend relating to 2019 final —BTR-NERE
BRENRE - - - (106,548) (106,548)
At 31 December 2020 RoECEE+CBSH-A 1,241,423 390,766 178,715 235,672 2,046,576
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE
36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES 36 EHEFIEKIEE (EB(ATES)
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (58622F)F 3831 - (2B (KE
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF ERMEER) RGN (55 622G E)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION RE# EHRBFEENKEE)
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES
(a) Directors and chief executive s emoluments (a) EFERERITBRASME
The remuneration of each director and the chief executive ZEERERESTHAENMNE
is set out below: EIIMT -
For the year ended 31 December 2020: BHE_ZZEZHFF_A=+—
HIEFE
: Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Salary Discretionary benefit
Name e Fees (Note i) bonuses scheme Total
EEHRIE
]
e  HE(E) FETEA KR st

RMB 000  RMB'000  RMB' 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETx ARETR

Executive Directors RTES
Mr.WONG Yeuk Hung BAIRE - 2,488 - 16 2,504
Mr. HUANG Ruoging BaERE - 2,488 - 16 2,504
Mr. TANG Chengyong BEERE - 3,761 826 45 4,632
Mr. Wang Weifeng (Note ii) TEBLE (ki) - 1,686 - 25 1,711
Independent non-executive  BUIERTES

directors
Dr. WONG Yau Kar, HREBBS KT 4T

David BBS, JP 222 - - - 222
Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen BRERLE 222 - - - 222
Mr. YIP Tai Him T m - _ - m

666 10,423 826 102 12,017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES 36
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION

EEMmkiEm (FR(QEEE)
(55622%)%E 383 1% (AT (I
BEFEMmER) RO (56226
B) REE LHRAFARENKE)

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES (CONTINUED) (4&)
(a) Directors and chief executive s emoluments (Continued) () EERERITHAEMSE
(#&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019: BE_ZT-NF+RA=+—
HIEFE :
o Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Salary Discretionary benefit
Name ez Fees (Note ) bonuses scheme Total
EEHERK
BHEE
EA A ) KBTIt HIMHER st
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AREFT AREFTRT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr.WONG Yeuk Hung BEMLE — 3,000 — 16 3,016
Mr. HUANG Ruoqing BEERE - 3,000 — 16 3,016
Mr. TANG Chengyong BERBRE - 3,000 793 62 3,855
Mr. Wang Weifeng (Note i) Tasek e (Wit - 2,902 - 45 2,947
Independent non-executive  BUFFRTES
directors
Dr. WONG Yau Kar, HREBBS AT 4T
David BBS, JP 220 — — — 220
Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuan BRERTE 220 — - — 220
Mr. YIP Tai Him ERsns 220 - - - 220
Mr. CHOW Kwong Fai, BREAFEL
Edward JP (Note i) (BrzEiii) 240 - - - 240
900 11,902 793 139 13,734
Note i: M5

PITESRENFEaEESNE
BAABRENBABNREBME
ISR EWRH — RN o

Salary received by the executive directors included all emoluments
paid or receivable in respect of directors services in connection
with the management of the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Directors and chief executive s emoluments (Continued)

Note ii:

Mr. WANG Weifeng resigned as executive director with effect from
28 May 2020.

Note iii:

Mr. CHOW Kwong Fai, Edward JP resigned as independent non-
executive director with effect from 26 November 2019.

Directors retirement and termination benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiaries undertaking during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

No payment was made to the directors as compensation
for early termination of the appointment during the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil)

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors services

No payment was made to any former employers of the
directors for making available the services of them as
a director of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

BB RRIEE

36 EFFmKiED (FE(QEFRGD
(55622%)%E 383 1% (AT (I
BEFEMmER) RO (56226
B) REE LHRAFARENKE)

(&)

(a)

EERE&R
(#)

M5 -

THAEMS

ITEBEERINTES B
TEERATHN\REER -

B 5E i

B YRR S KT A T BHEB IR
HiITEE B-Z—-NAEF+—8
THREREEN -

EFRERERETN

BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—
AIEFE > BERENESAE
HMARBHEWBARDNE
i‘“’f"’ﬂ“féﬂﬁ’]ﬂf’@ﬁﬁﬁ‘*ﬁ‘ﬁaﬁﬁﬁh
WHRKBH (ZE—NEF:

#) o

BE_Z_ZTFE+_RB=1+—
E¢¢§ WEREERAK
FEEMEZHEREEC
T—NEF #|) o

MiRMERRBMAF=S
RHUNAE

BE_ZT_ZF+_A=+—
AIEFE > BEMEFHES
AEEFEMEESFNEMA
BEZMNEARECE-A
FIE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES 36
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES (CONTINUED)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

(e) Directors material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’ s business to which the Group
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

EEF R iEm (FR(QEEE)
(55622 F) 5 383 1% (AR (K
BEZFmER) ARG (556226
B)REE LHRAFARENKE)
(48)

(d) ARAUES RZEFEFE
HEEANABREMRERE
ARTANER - BUER
REMZZHER

HE-S-FET-A=t—
AL B ER  EE
RREMEZLUEE « FuS
EFEHNEA LT REME
BEATHEA(CE—AF:

) o

(e) EEMXZE  BHHEHZ
EAfEL

RAT BT I B ARE B ETR
ERMARRESTNETHES
BRI (TmBEEEE)
BEREXRTINBE_ZT_ZF
+TZRA=t—HLEFEREM
REFENERARS Tk
BHCE-NEE) -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MIBEE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities and non- AEBRBERABYBFENESE BE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as RaBEURIEEREAREE (HaKE
extracted from the audited financial statements is set out below: ZHHIRER) |

Qo

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“ERE E—tFE EBE-N\E IZ-NE IEBEIEZEF
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETTT AREFTT ARETT AREBTT ARETT

(Restated)
(&=E31)
Revenue & 5,270,090 6,734,067 6,735,931 8,602,321 12,451,999
Gross profit EF 1,085,339 1,676,440 2,387,720 2,954,114 2,812,657
Operating profit Sl 945,198 1,541,213 2,112,641 2,560,025 1,973,812
Profit before income tax BRFFIEIRAIEF 960,748 1,597,867 2,213,472 2,640,985 2,126,311
Profit for the year FEPaF 554,765 990,132 1,296,428 1,551,660 1,442,811
Attributable to: DUR AN TFELS -
Owners of the Company ZEAB#EEA 450,756 862,237 990,747 1,034,931 1,295,966
Non-controlling SRR E R
interests 104,009 127,895 305,681 516,729 146,845
554,765 990,132 1,296,428 1,551,660 1,442,811
Non-Current Assets JEREEE 674,523 2,219,846 2,245,326 3,105,894 4,000,613
Current Assets TRENEE 14,180,183 17,652,161 32,900,980 59,503,446 81,973,565
Current Liabilities VEI=NE 7,987,529 11,015,003 23,282,086 47,645,100 57,672,218
Non-current Liabilities  JEREIEE 3,462,142 4,247,704 5,198,802 5,329,692 15,354,285
Total Equity T 4EER 3,405,035 4,609,300 6,665,418 9,634,548 12,947,675
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PROPERTY PROFILE

MERIT

Qo

%of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
FEERYE BN /R
ER i H@Eat BIAS st HEER
Spain Standard Nanchang 100% Q42014 Jinsha 2nd Road, Xianghu Xin Cheng, Nanchang Residential and commercial
County, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC
NEERSE EE 3-NE TEIREEETRaRSMME) —B EEREE
FES
Riverside International ~ Nanchang 100% Q42014 Intersection of Binjian Road and Yujin Road, Chaoyang  Residential and commercial
Xin Cheng, Xihu District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province,
PRC
ELER EE g HEIREEETANEAR A [ RATRACEE  ATRkEE
FUES
Bluelake County Nanchang 100% Q32016 South of Lian" an Road, East of Cheng an Road, Residential and commercial
Xianghu Xin Cheng, Nanchang County, Nanchang,
Jiangxi Province, PRC
MR B “ERE HEIREEETHERS M ELRE « MZRE EERER
F=%F
Riverlake International ~ Nanchang 51% Q22017 West of Chuangxin First Road, North and east of Residential and commercial
Planned Road, South of Provincial Academy of Scienes,
Gaoxin District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC
BHER B Z—tF TEIRERETRNRAIN—ROR  REBRLRN  HEREE
g% & ARERUE
Imperial Metropolis Nanchang 51% Q42017 Lianhua Road, Nanchang County, Nan Chang, Jiangxi ~ Residential and commercial
Province, PRC
BHHg B 3tE PETRE R E R SRELHR AEREE
EUES
Imperial Mansion Nanchang 8% Q42016 Lianhua Road, Nanchang County, Nan Chang, Jiangxi  Residential and commercial
Province, PRC
EHER EE “EE PEIRERETRERETE EERE=
FUES
Bluelake International ~ Nanchang 51% Q42017 No.20 Qingshan North Road, Donghu District, Residential and commercial
Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC
R B Z—tF HEIREEETRABSLLIE0R TEREE
FMF
Luxurious Royal Nanchang 51% Q32019 South of Dongyue Avenue, East of Fusheng East Road,  Residential and commercial
West of Taohua West Road, Changnan New City,
Nanchang County, Jiangxi Province, PRC
iR HE “B-hE HEIREEERE M HRRAELE  BERRENR Y AERBE
=% HRERRR LA
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FEERYE BN /R
ER i H@Eat BIAS st HEER
The Garden of Spring~ Nanchang 42% Q22018 Zuokuyuan Village, Ruihong, Yugan County, Shangrao, ~ Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, PRC
TEER EE “3N\E PEDIFE R AT RER EEREE
£°%
Scenery Bay Nanchang 50% Q32020 Longquan Road, Fengcheng City,Jiangxi Province, PRC  Residential and commercial
ERE B ZZI%fF hEIF S SRR EEREZ
F=%F
Delight Scenery Nanchang 51% Q42019 399 Changgang Street, High-tech Zone, Nanchang, Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, PRC
REE B “Z-NE HEIREEE S MRE AT 3995 EREE
EUES
Life Sunshine Town Nanchang 100% Q42020 Xinjian District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Provice, PRC Residential and commercial
ey et B 234 TEIRERENER EERER
FNE
The Phoenix Nanchang 46% Q42020 366 Fenghe North Avenue, Nanchang, Jiangxi Provice, ~ Commercial
PRC
BEHMX HE ZZI%F HEN IS BMILKIE 3665 BE
P>
Golden Mansion Nanchang 40% Q42020 Fengquan Road, Longquan Road, Fengcheng City, Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Provice, PRC
TGN EE a2 HEIEE SN mRREBRE EEREE
FnE
Royal City Nanchang 16% Q42021 Junction of Dongyue Avenue and Dongxin 2nd Road, Residential and commercial
Nanchang, Jiangxi Provice, PRC
BEY B %T-f PEIREREREABRRN _BRER EERER
FNE

NEMEERERAR - 2020 FERS

303



»

PROPERTY PROFILE
MERBFT
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
FEERYE BN /R
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Fifth Avenue Ganzhou 30% Q42020 No. 3 Qinjiang Road, Zhangjiang New District, Residential and commercial
Ganzhou, Jiangxi Province, PRC
ENERAE N 5 TEIREENTRINES RIS HEREE
FES
Sunshine Coast Tianjin 100% Q42028 South of Haibin Avenue, Binhai Tourism District, Residential and commercial
Tianjin, PRC
miER K2 ZZTN\E HEXETEERERBEAER HTEREE
EJES
Land Lot Nos.ALand A2 Tianjin 100% Q22018 Land Lot Nos. Al and A2, Binhai Tourism District, Residential and commercial
Tianjin, PRC
AL R A2 IR PN “B-0\E HERETEBIRERALRA2SHR TEREE
%
Perfection Ocean Tianjing 18% Q32020 Hangu East Expansion Zone, Binhai New Area, Tianjin,  Residential and commercial
PRC
B K2 5 HEXEEENREERER HEREE
F=F
Luminescence Ocean Tianjing 23% Q32020 Hangu East Expansion Zone, Binhai New Area, Tianjin,  Residential and commercial
PRC
/s K2 234 HEXEEENEELRER HTEREE
F=%F
Cloud Metropolis Ningbo 32% Q22022 Fengyang Street, Yuyao City, Ningbo,Ningbo, Zhejiang  Residential and commercial
Province, China
R B S SENR=EN G Rl TEREE
%
Bluelake County Jinan 80% Q42018 North of Sushan Road, West of Dongyu Avenue, Residential and commercial
Tiangiao District Jinan, Shandong Province
R B E-N\EF FELREEETRBEREFAHMUE BRI HEREE
FES
Royal Family Jinan 51% Q42018 No. 52 Zhangzhuang Road, Huaiyin District, Jinan, Residential and commercial
Shangdong Province, PRC
BHER B -0\ HEILRE AR RRE R 525 HTEREE
EJES
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TEEEE  BR/BE
B i EREat BIAH bib THEER
Imperial Mansion Jinan 90% Q42018 South of Jinging Road, West of Shihe Street, Jinan, Residential and commercial
Shandong Province, PRC
EHER Em “E-N\E R REEFETESRUE  ATHMUA FEREE
FJLES
Redco Visionary Jinan 85% Q42018 Southwest of Junction of Jing er Road and Weisan Residential and commercial
Road, Jiyang County, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC
NERT Em ZZ-N\F HE L EEERERRE — R e = B ERARE FEREE
FNE
Redco Visionary Il Jinan 85% Q42021 Southwest of Junction of Jing er Road and Weisan Residential and commercial
Road,Jiyang County, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC
NIRRT 8 ] “2T-F HE R EEE AR RE R - B R R FEREE
FME
Spring Villa Jinan 60% Q22022 Juntion of the 308 National Highway and the Liuliu Residential and commercial
River, Qihe County, Dezhou,Jinan, Shandong Province,
PRC
BRI & _ECCE HELRA AR ENE R 08 EE R AR ER FEREE
%
Sunshine Coast - Yantai 100% Q22016 East of Nongda Road, Gaoxin District, Yantai, Residential and commercial
Phase | Shandong Province, PRC
BrsE—H a5 ZE-REF HELREEATEMERERRE  HElKE FEREE
g%
Sunhine Coast - Phase Il Yantai 100% Q42018 East of Nongda Road, Gaoxin District, Yantai,Shandong ~ Residential and commercial
Province, PRC
FrtER-5_14 Ea ZZ-N\E HELREEATEHEEARUE FEREE
FNE
Sunhine Coast - Phase Il Yantai 100% Q22019 East of Nongda Road, Gaoxin District, Yantai,Shandong  Residential and commercial
Province, PRC
Brisr-5=1 28 “E-NEF HELREEETEMRERRNR FEREE
%
Sunshine Coast - Yantai 100% Q42020 East of Nongda Road, Gaoxin District, Yantai, Residential and commercial
Phase IV Shandong Province, PRC
BtEE— S8 a5 “ET%E HELREEATEHERRARR FEREE
EJLES
Mix Kingdom Redco Hefei 80% Q22017 Mengcheng North Road, Shuangfeng Industrial Zone,  Residential and commercial
Changfeng County, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC
ERE ] A —Z—tf HEZHE AT REHEATERENIHR FEREE
g%
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B i EREat BIAH bib THEER
Prince Royal Family Hefei 100% Q22017 East of Fengshan Road, south of Tianshui Road, Residential and commercial
Xinzhan District, Hefei City, Anhui Province, the PRC
EMtER = “2tE HREZHE AETHIEEBLRENE « RKBUE FEREE
FE
Royal International Hefei 30% Q22019 Southwest corner of the Junction of Baogong Avenue  Residential and commercial
and Linquan East Road, DI an Town, Feidong County,
Anhui Province, PRC
EHER =S IS HEZHERREEREO A ERERRRRARTA FEREE
g%
Blelake City Hefei 70% Q22020 300 meters Junction North of Yangtze River Road and ~ Residential and commercial
Zhenxi Road, Feidong County, Hefei, Anhui Province,
PRC
B =S _ECFE PEZHA G EmEEERR T REERRROIE300 K FEREE
7%
Majestic Residence Hefei 60% Q22021 Intersection of Fuzhen Road and Honggi Road, Feidong ~ Residential and commercial
County, Hefei City, Anhui Province
KR A “2T-F B AR AR R ER RO FEREE
g%
Virtuous City Hefei 20% Q42020 West of the second bridge of the River Eddy in Residential and commercial
Huaiyuan County, Bengbu City, Anhui Province, north
and south of Yudou Avenue
REH s “2°%E ZYLHETRERAT_EAR SBAETLMA FEREE
FmE
Funan Huaan City Fu Yang 20% Q22020 East side of Fushun Park, Linquan County, Fuyang City, ~ Residential and commercial
Anhui Province, PRC
BRELY BlE i e A EUNEE FEREE
g%
Redco Courtyard Wuhan 70% Q32020 Fengxiang Island Resort, Zhiyinhu Avenue, Caidian Residential and commercial
District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC
EE BE - REHIA R ER GRS A EEHEERN FEREE
£=%
Youthfulness Wuhan 40% Q22020 Intersection of Guanggu 4th Road and Shendun 3rd Commercial
Road, Donghu New Technology Development Zone,
Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC
B i “TT%E REALERER I RITEZREE AR =R &%
£F R
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Royal City - Phase | Xianyang 70% Q32017 Zhonghua West Road, Gaoxin District, Xiangyang, Residential and commercial
Shaanxi Province, PRC
g8 B 3tE HERFELEET R TRTERR EEREE
F=F
Majestic Mansion Xianyang 75% Q42020 Southeast corner of the Junction of Tiangong First Residential and commercial
Road and Zhouwen Road, Zhouling Town, Xihan New
District, Xianyang, Shaanxi Province, PRC
PNEE R 2% TERALEETARNER EMMARRR T —RERX  FEREE
FUES BRERREA
Royal International Shenzhen 51% Q22016 Lot No. G11337-0095, Pingshan New District, Shenzhen,  Residential and commercial
Guangdong Province, PRC
BHER A “ERE HEERE AT LFEE G11337-0095 iR EEREZ
%
Jinhai Mansion Nantong 49% Q22020 Gangzha District, Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, PRC  Residential and commercial
EHBT 8t a2 TEIREEET AR EEREE
5%
Royal Family Zhongshan 70% Q22019 No. 46, Fuhua Road, West District, Zhongshan, Residential and commercial
Guangdong Province, PRC
BHER il “E-nE HEERERLTAREEE 62— EERER
%
Bluelake Landmark Zhangshan 70% Q32019 Donghuan Road, Huangpu Town, Zhongshan, Residential and commercial
Guangdong Province, PRC
HER ALl “B-hE hEEREPUHREERLRR TEREE
F=%
Bayview Quan Zhou 33% Q42019 Junction of Kailin Road and Lianxiang Road, Taiwanese ~ Residential and commercial
Investment Zone, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
B M “2-nE HEREE RNTERERIMEERMETER EEREE
e
Redco Majestic Macheng 25% Q42019 Intersection of Jingiao Avenue and Jintong Avenue, Residential and commercial
Residence Macheng City, Hubei Province
NEXRE—H ikt ik MILEMETEBABETRABRER EERER
FNE
Redco Majestic Macheng 25% Q42023 Intersection of Jingiao Avenue and Jintong Avenue, Residential and commercial
Residence Il Macheng City, Hubei Province
NERRE_H i S MLERh BT BAERER TEREE
FNE
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Golden Bridge Horizon ~ Macheng 20% Q32020 No.1 Jingiao Avenue, Macheng City, Hubei Province Residential and commercial
(next to the municipal government)
EFipNU i a2 MILBRMEHERAEE 15 (FERE) EEREE
F=F
Intelligence City Huanggang 20% Q22021 No.169, Qichang Avenue, Caohe Town, Huanggang Residential and commercial
City, Hubei Province
B2 =i %T-f BB EATHEEREIRBEEAE 1695 EERER
%
Fortune East Huanggang 20% Q42020 Next to the Party School of the County Party Residential and commercial
Committee, Huanggang City, Hubei Province
IRRR =] ZZI%F ML RETHEEAEREERS TEREE
EIES
Delight Dragon City Enshi 18% Q42021 Lianjiang Road, Nanhuan Avenue, Enshi City, Hubei Residential and commercial
Province (next to Lichuan Fifth Middle School)
&R B “EC-f ML EREHRRABRLIE R ZPE) EEREE
FES
Prime Sydney, 26% Q12010 101 Waterloo Road, Macquarie Park, Sydney, Australia ~ Residential and commercial
Australia
Prime BHER 3-%F 101 Waterloo Road, Macquarie Park, Sydney, Australia ~ FER#EE
%
Leisure's Mansion Jinan 55% Q42021 Southwest of Jigi Road, North of 26th Middle, Jinan Residential and commercial
City, Shandong Province, China
BRF B ZZT-f B R EEDARRERE R TEREE
EES
Jiyang Il Jinan 85% Q42023 South of Weier Road and East of Xiaojingwu Road, Residential and commercial
Jiyang District, Jinan City, Shandong Province, China
ERAZH otz “FCf HELREEETERER R  VERER EEREE
FES
Royal Mansion Qingyuan 100% Q22022 District 49, Xincheng West, Qingyuan City, Guangdong  Residential and commercial
Province, China
BEN A s hEEREBETMHATE EERER
%
Enjoy Peak Quan Zhou 100% Q32021 Tangxi Community, Wan'an Street, Luojiang District, Residential and commercial
Quanzhou City, Fujian Province, China
RER FM ZZT-f HEREE RN IEEZHERRALE TEREE
£=%
Center Mansion Foshan 100% Q42021 North of Yile Road, West of Fenghuang Road, Xijiang Residential and commercial
New City, Gaoming District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province, China
BEAT gl “EC-f TEEREHBUTRRREIMMALEIL  BERUA FTkEE
EUES
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TEERE  ER/EH
B i) EREAL BTRH ik TR R
Royal Universe Hefei 85% Q22022 Intersection of Wolonghu Road and Xiangwang Road, Residential and commercial
Xinzhan District, Hefei City, Anhui Province, China
EEXT = “2TCE FEZHEA TR RABTRRO FEREE
>
Grand Mansion Jinan 53% Q32021 East of the Railway Protection Green Line and North of  Residential and commercial
the Second Machine Tool Road, Huaiyin District, Jinan
City, Shandong Province, China
ERERN Em “ET-F R REEFTRERERMESELE  BRCARN  EhEE
FZE I
Leisure's Mansion Quan Zhou 59% Q12021 North District, Chidian Town, Jinjiang City, Quanzhou Residential and commercial
City, Fujian Province, China
iR M “ET-F FEEELFMME IMAEENI A E FEREE
g%
Dragon Bay Quan Zhou 55% Q42026 Qunxian Village, Zhangban Town, Taiwan Business Residential and commercial
Investment Zone, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, China
She S “ETRE HEBRA RN AERERRIRENEN FEREE
FME
Leisure's Mansion Ganzhou 49% Q42021 West of Jinying Road, North of Jinping East Road, Residential and commercial
Economic Development Zone, Ganzhou City, Jiangxi
Province, China
BN El “ET-F HEIRLBENMARESREAR S TREILH FEREE
FJLES
Royal Central Quan Zhou 55% Q32021 Hongzhai'an Community and Luotang Street's Quetang ~ Residential and commercial
Communit, Qingyang Street, Jinjiang City, Quanzhou
City, Fujian Province, China
EZ2mp FM “ET-F TEERARNTEIMERGELTRHE  BUGER GThEE
FZE BHE
Cloud Terrace Hefei 51% Q42021 West of Fuyang North Road, south of Meideng Road, Residential and commercial
Shuangfeng Development Zone, Changfeng County,
Hefei City, Anhui Province, China
ZHen =S “E2T-F HEZHEARETREFEERNEREFIIRUA  BER  HEhEE
L WE
Eastern Aesthetics Shijiazhuang 40% Q42023 Shangzhuang Town, Luquan District, Shijiazhuang City, ~ Residential and commercial
Hebei Province, China
IRERRE AR =gy HE S ERETERE LA FEREE
FME
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The Phoenix - Phase Il Nanchang 51% Q42020 No. 366 Fenghe North Avenue, Honggutan District, Residential and commercial
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province, China
BEHAZH EE “ECI%fF TEIAEEEMASEEEMIKE 30665 EEREE
FES
Scenery Mansion Chongging 51% Q42021 No. 6, Changhin Road, Fengshan Street, Wulong Residential and commercial
District, Chongging, China
LIkEER BE S tEERTREEBLEEREROH EERER
EJES
Sky Terrace Huizhou 49% Q32022 Dongxing Area, Dongjiang Industrial Park, Zhongkai Residential and commercial
High-tech Zone, Huizhou, Guangdong, China
el E ZZCTF TEERESMNMESHER I EXERERE TEREE
£=%
YONG Lake Scenic Center Nanchang 41% Q22022 No. 936 Aixihu North Road, Gaoxin District, Nanchang ~ Residential and commercial
City, Jiangxi Province, China
EHEM EE “FCCF HEIEEEETaNEZMI% 9365 EEREE
5%
Changsha Phoenix Changsha 41% Q22022 No. 74 Chiling Road, Tianxin District, Changsha City, Residential and commercial
Hunan Province, China
RIVBEAMK = s hEHEE R TRORRER 145 EERER
%
One Riverside Glory Nanchang 40% Q42022 Dongxin Township, Nanchang County, Nanchang City, ~ Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, China
BEBI_H HE ZZCTF TEIRERETEERENAS TEREE
EES
Two Riverside Glory Nanchang 40% Q42021 Dongxin Township, Nanchang County, Nanchang City, ~ Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, China
BEBI-H EE S HEIREEEDRaERRNE EEREE
FES
Golden Mansion Fengcheng 50% Q32021 No. 988 Fuyou East Road, Hezhou Street, Fengcheng Residential and commercial
City, Jiangxi Province, China
g1 £5 S hEDIFE BB AR 980 EERER
F=%F
Eastern Grand Fengcheng 50% Q32021 No. 8, Longguang Avenue, Jiannan Street, Fengcheng ~ Residential and commercial
City, Jiangxi Province, China
#HEE 24 ZZT-f HEIRESEmEIREAER R AE SR TEREE
£=%
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rEEEE  BR/ED
R i EEEntt BIRS it ERER
Sky Palace Huizhou 33% Q32022 Baimitian Section, Longgang Village Committee, Residential and commercial
Longxi Street, Boluo County, Huizhou City, Guangdong
Province, China
BETE M B TEEREENTERRRFHERENZEORENE  AEREE
=%
Royal Redco Xian 30% Q42021 North of Tiangong First Road, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, ~ Residential and commercial
China, east of Yingbin Avenue, west of Zhouwen Road
NEEl A% 2% TEREEAEETRI—RL DEAEMNE BB AZREE
FJliEs 7
Royal Family Xianyang 30% Q42020 West of Qinhuang Road, North of Wenlin West Road, Residential and commercial
Qindu District, Xianyang City, Shaanxi Province, China
B2 B “2°%E HERFEERE T RSERERUFE « MFERLE TEREE
FJIES
Riviera One Taizhou 30% Q42023 East side of Qinhu Avenue, south side of Machang Residential and commercial
Road, Jiangyan District, Taizhou City, Jiangsu
Province, China
REE M S HRETHE NN EERRAXERA « SH%mEf FERER
FJIES
Cathay Palace Yantai 2% Q42021 Laishan Economic Development Zone, Yantai City, Residential and commercial
Shandong Province, China, south of Majiadu Road and
west of Majiadu Middle Road
Sl eI “2T-F FELREEETRILAERER  BRBRUE B8 ATkEE
FME HEELLF
Eastern Imperial Garden  Fengcheng 20% Q42021 66 Fuzhou South Road, Sundu Street, Fengcheng City,  Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, China
FHER &4 ET-f HEIEE M REEESNER 6% HEREE
FJliEs
Bauhinia Residence Hefei 20% Q22021 South of Yudu Avenue, Jingshan Town, Huaiyuan Residential and commercial
County, Bengbu City, Anhui Province, China
EXil &I S HEZHE e EERA RSB AER FEREE
5%
Eastern Crystal Fengcheng 20% Q42021 Intersection of Cambridge Avenue and Cambridge East  Residential and commercial
Il Road, New City, Fengcheng City, Jiangxi Province,
China
BHEE =31 s HETI S S MR RIBAE AR ER 2 B E FERER
FJIES
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TEERE  ER/EH
B i) EREAL BTRH ik TR R
Eastern Harmony Fengcheng 20% Q32021 Intersection of Jianxia East Road and Longze Avenue,  Residential and commercial
Fengcheng, Jiangxi Province, China
HAHE g5 “ET-F HE AL SN FRR AR EAERE FEREE
F=F
Eastern Exquisite Fengcheng 20% Q22021 Intersection of Longguang Avenue and Jiannan Road,  Residential and commercial
Xincheng District, Fengcheng City, Jiangxi Province,
China
HHREE 25 “ET-F HELIAS SN MR A BRI R RE FEREE
g%
Sunshine Capital Nanchang 20% Q42022 Shichun Road, Wuyuan City, Jiangxi Province, China Residential and commercial
BXER #HE - HE RSB RMSER FEREE
FME
Huizhou Leisure’ s Huizhou 25% Q32022 No.106, Shiwan Nan Road, Boluo County, Huizhou City, Residential and commercial
Mansion Guangdong Province
BINBRAT ESl _ECCE EREENTEREREHE 10657 FEREE
F=F
Blissful Bay Zhanjiang 60% Q32023 East side of Haitian Road and southwest side of Haihu Residential and commercial
Road, Chikan District, Zhanjiang City, Guangdong
Province
IR5E w1 —2T-F EREEITMEERRER  BHRARM FEREE
F=%
Peach Creek Villa Ningbo 56% Q22022 No. 344-1, West Second Ring North Road, Cixi City, Residentialand commercial
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province (next to Cixi City Rural
Commercial Bank (Zonghan Sub-branch))
WEZE B _ECCE WIRERTRETA_RIM4-1% (ZETENBEE tThEE
F_F T(REZ)E)
Sunshine Coast - Phase V' Yantai 100% Q42022 No. 2016, Binhai East Road, Leshan District, Yantai City, Residential and commercial
Shandong Province
BrEE-500 Ea - LRBEATRUEZSERR 20163 FEREE
FME
Delight Mansion Yantai 51% Q12025 No.8, Lakang Street, Fushan District, Yantai City, Residential and commercial
Shandong Province
BRER 25 _E_IE URBEATRLREEHSS: FEREE
F
Imperial Mansion Yantai 30% Q32023 No.65, Tianshan Road, Development Zone, Yantai City, Residential and commercial
Shandong Province
HEAR 25 _EC-E URBEATHERRILE65H FEREE
£=%
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rEERE  BR/BH
ER i E@EA BIAS it HEER
Rivera Mansion Nanchang 51% Q32024 East of Jiangfang West Road, south of Yanjiang North Residential and commercial
Road, north of Tangshan Road and west of Jiangfang
East Road, Qingshan Lake District, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province
B HE 15 IREEETE AR IHRBRUE I ABUE B AERER
=% WERBUE ~ T4 B LA
Leisuré s Mansion Hefei 100% Q32022 The southeast corner of the intersection of Changlin Residential and commercial
Road and Huangpu Mountain Road, Fudong County,
Hefei City, Anhui Province
BT & “ECCF ZHESETERHRRARERASHURRORES  AThEE
£=%F
YuYao Project Ningbo 100% Q42023 East side of Xiaolang Road, Yuyao City, Ningbo, Zhejiang Residential and commercial
Province(North side of Wumiao River)
RIVEE B Z2TCk WIBE R R S RBEE (R IILR) EERE=
FUES
Jiangmen Leisure’ s Jiangmen 34% Q22023 Northwest of the junction of Xingang Road and Zui Xian Residential and commercial
Mansion Road, No. 35, Gaoxin District, Jiangmen City, Guangdong
Province
IFERE IF] S ERGIFIHEHE S R ER EXERT AR EERER
%
Yuelu Green Town Huaihua 20% Q42021 Intersection of Hutian Avenue and Nanhuan Road, Residential and commercial
Huaihua City, Hunan Province
EREN e ZZT-f HEgRIth AR B EERRER TEREE
EIES
Yuelu Celebrity Town ~ Yongzhou 20% Q42023 Intersection of Xianjiang West Road and Nandian Road, Residential and commercial
Lengshuitan District, Yongzhou City, Hunan Province
EEAW M “FCf HEL AT kR SRR I RREEaRRER EEREE
FES
Putian Causeway Bay Putian 30% Q42024 Intersection of Qingtang Avenue and Li Gang Avenue, Residential and commercial
Plaza Wushi Town, Xiuyu District, Putian City, Fujian Province
BHEELES #H 15 REABEETAEBRNREREAE  HEAERXO EERER
EJES
Riverside One Zhanjiang 60% Q32023 No.1, Dongdabu Farm, Guangzhan Kilometer, Chikan Residential and commercial
District, Zhanjiang City, Guangdong Province
e &L S EREEITFNEBREAERAERS 1R TEREE
F=%F

NEMEERERAR - 2020 FERS

313



»

PROPERTY PROFILE
MERBFT
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
rEERE  BR/BH
ER Wi E@EA BIAS it HEER
Mingbang Golden Age Bengbu 21% Q32022 North side of Yingbin Avenue and west side of Huang Residential and commercial
Yuan Road, Guzhen County, Bengbu City, Anhui Province
REFE g S THERSTEERIINGE  DEANELA BRRAN AThEX
F=F
Prestige Mansion Huainan 30% Q32022 Intersection of Jiaozhou North Road and Machang Road, Residential and commercial
Fengtai County, Huainan City, Anhui Province
B&F ide s ZHAERmESHENIEEEERTO EEREZ
F=%F
Garden Lane Hefei 20% Q22022 South of Jincheng Road, North of Luyang Avenue and Residential and commercial
West of Chengzhong South Road, Linquan County,
Fuyang City, Anhui Province
AEE &I S cHARBTEREEHERE  BEAELA  HhEE ATREX
5% Fafl
Visionary B2 Lot Jinan 85%  Noimmediate  East of Planning Road 1, North of Weier Road and West Residential and commercial
plans of Jinger Road, Jiyang District, Jinan City, Shandong
Province
RS B2 H 3t B ] LREEEDERERE—BE BRI £ZRA TERBE
Visionary A7 Lot Jinan 85%  Noimmediate  South of South Ring Road, East of Jing San Road, West Residential and commercial
plans of Planning Road 1, Jiyang District, Jinan City, Shandong
Province
FRIAT B DR B Bhmstal URBERTEREEREE  £=RE  RE-BA EERER
Jade Grand Mansion Suzhou 51% Q32023 East side of Cultural Center, Fugian Road, Daxin Town, Residential and commercial
Zhangjiagang, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province
R M "B CE IR RN RIBAMANF RO REA FTEREE
F=%F
132 muin Tongzhou Nantong 51% Q22024 East side of Jinfu Road and south side of No.5 Henghe Residential and commercial
River, Yinhe New District, Tongzhou District, Nantong
City, Jiangsu Province
BNE 1328 B B 15 IEdmEhENeRINEeERRA  RREIEN  dEREE
%
Leisuré s Mansion Chuzhou 51% Q12025 Intersection of Zhongxin Avenue and Huizhou Road, Residential and commercial
Nanchang District, Chuzhou City, Anhui Province
BIRAT T “ECRE ZHARNTRER T ABRENERER EERER
%
Time Spring Palace Wuxi 40% Q32023 North side of Qingyuan Avenue and west side of Li River, Residential and commercial
Yixing Economic and Technological Development Zone,
Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province
B ks “2T-F IHARGTEETLOERNREEERAENH 208 k%
H=F il

314

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2020



»

PROPERTY PROFILE
MRS
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
TEERE  ER/EH
B i) EREAL BTRH ik TR R
Yanshan Impression Changzhou 30% Q22023 Intersection of Dongtai Road and Jinhui Road, Yanshan Residential and commercial
New District, Liyang, Changzhou City, Jiangsu Province
bl B _EC=E IHLENTERRLNERRR A ERRER FEREE
FE
Hangao Acadamy Changsha 25% Q32023 Intersection of Xueshi Road and Ziyuan Road, Yuelu Residential and commercial
Mansion District, Changsha City, Hunan Province
ERRLH =3 _EC-E HEERNTEERR T RARERRER FEREE
£=%
Royal Terrace Xiangtan 35% Q22024 Intersection of Fuxing East Road and Shuangzhuang Residential and commercial
North Road, Yue Tang District, Xiangtan City, Hunan
Province
EER HE “2TmE HEARENEEE RERRASE LR ER FEREE
g%
Yangxin Causeway Bay ~ Huangshi 20% Q12022 Intersection of Huanhu East Road and Malong Road, Residential and commercial
Chengdong New District, Yangxin County, Huangshi City,
Hubei Province
[ EEEE BA - A ERmEMEN RN R R R B ER FEREE
g%
Majestic Bay Jivjiang 20% Q22022 Intersection of Bailihu Avenue and Jiangzhou Avenue, Residential and commercial
Chaisang District(Jiujiang County), Jiujiang City, Jiangxi
Province
KinE NI _ECCE IRENVITERR(UIHR) \ERRERTINRENRE FThi%
% &
Mid-Levels Villa Jivjiang 20% Q32022 East of the intersection of Jiu Lian North Road and Xue Residential and commercial
Zi Road, Lianxi District, Jiujiang City, Jiangxi Province
FUE NI _ECCE IR TEZENELRARTRRERMNE FEREE
F=%
Zhonghui Acadany Jivjiang 20% Q22023 East of Jiu Lian North Road and west of College Road, Residential and commercial
House Shili Street, Lianxi District, Jiujiang City, Jiangxi
Province(Original Zone - Zhonglao School District)
FIEER NI _EC-E IRENITRERHEGENELRIE  ERBUA (R FEREE
F_F B—HERE)
Royal Impression Nanchang 17% Q32023 West of Yinhu Middle Road, south of Wenshan Third Road Residential and commercial
and north of Wenshan Fourth Road within Nanchang
County, Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province
BEIR #Ha =gy IREHETREHREENRATENA  XW=BME> FEkEE
£=% XLmEELE
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rEERE  BR/BH
ER W EZEft #BIRH it HEER
Park Isle Lake Shangrao 20% Q22023 South side of Fenghuang West Avenue and west side Residential and commercial
of Huiren Yangguang Garden, Shangrao Economic and
Technological Development Zone, Jiangxi Province
N in: ZZCCF IRE LETEERNRERBEAAERA  ECRATE AThE:
% i
Violet Pavilion Shangrao 9% Q22023 Huangling Bald Mountain, Shishi Township, Guangxin Residential and commercial
District, Shangrao City, Jiangxi Province, at the
intersection of Hukun Expressway
%Z5 i “FCf IRE LETRERRRARERAL BESREO EREE
%
Yuelu Green Town Yongzhou 2% Q32023 Intersection of Yongzhou Avenue and Zhongxing Road, Residential and commercial
Lingshitan District, Yongzhou City, Hunan Province
EEEN KM S AL RNS e KBRINKEERERTER EERE=
F=F
Tang Dynasty Putian 10% Q42022 Lot 2, Wu Chu area, Wushi Town, Xiuyu District, Putian Residential and commercial
City, Fujian Province
REHER & - RREEENFERNAERER BLEIE_ FEREE
EJES
Royal Glory Quanzhou 10% Q32023 Intersection of Kaiyuan Road and Yingbin Road, Jinjiang Residential and commercial
City, Quanzhou City, Fujian Province
ERR M “FCf REERMNT S IHHETRENERIXO EREE
£=%F
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